
PUBLIC SAFETY and JUDICIARY COMMITTEE 
AGENDA 

Called by: Brad Lindmark, Chairman DATE: WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 18, 2023 
Members:  Aaron Booker, Jean TIME: 5:30 PM 
Crosby, Tim Nabors, Angie Goral, 
Kevin McCarthy, Chris Scrol 

LOCATION:   ROOM 510 
COUNTY ADMINISTRATION BLDG 
404 ELM STREET 
ROCKFORD, IL 61101 

AGENDA: 

A. Call to Order

B. Roll Call

C. Approval of September 28, 2023 Minutes

D. Public Comment – This is the time we invite the public to address the Public Safety and
Judiciary Committee with issues and concerns.  We ask you to limit your comments to three
minutes.  Personal attacks or inappropriate language of any sort will not be tolerated.  We will
allow a maximum of five speakers on a first come basis with sign up at the meeting.  Speakers
may not address zoning matters which are pending before the ZBA, the Zoning Committee or
the County Board.  Personnel matters or pending or threatened litigation may not be addressed
in open session.  An individual may speak a maximum of three times per calendar year on the
same topic.  This prohibition shall include the repetition of the same topic in a statement on
what is purported to be a different topic.  After acknowledgement by the chair, please stand and
state your name.  Thank you.

E. Resolution Accepting FY2024 Award and Authorizing Agreements between the County of
Winnebago, Illinois, the U.S. Department of Justice, and Project Safe Neighborhoods (PSN)
Partners

F. Resolution Accepting Award and Authorizing Service Agreement for the Violent Crime
Reduction in Illinois Communities (VCRIC) Program

G. Resolution Awarding Service Agreements Using Public Safety Sales Tax Alternative Funding
to Tommy Meeks, Rosecrance and Remedies

H. Future Agenda Items

I. Adjournment



Page 1 

Winnebago County Board 
Special Public Safety and Judiciary Committee Meeting 

County Courthouse 
Conference Room 815, Behind County Board Room 

400 West State Street 
Rockford, IL 61101 

Thursday, September 28, 2023 
5:30 PM 

Present: Others Present: 
Brad Lindmark, Chairperson 
Aaron Booker, Vice Chairperson 
Jean Crosby 
Tim Nabors 
Chris Scrol 

Absent: 
Angie Goral 
Kevin McCarthy 

Marlana Dokken, Director, Chairman’s Office of 
Criminal Justice Initiatives 
Anthony Miceli, Winnebago County Sheriff’s Office 
Charlotte Hoss, Asst. State’s Attorney 

AGENDA: 
A. Call to Order
B. Roll Call
C. Approval of June 14 and July 19, 2023 Minutes
D. Public Comment – This is the time we invite the public to address the Public Safety

and Judiciary Committee with issues and concerns.  We ask you to limit your
comments to three minutes.  Personal attacks or inappropriate language of any sort
will not be tolerated.  We will allow a maximum of five speakers on a first come
basis with sign up at the meeting.  Speakers may not address zoning matters which
are pending before the ZBA, the Zoning Committee or the County Board.
Personnel matters or pending or threatened litigation may not be addressed in open
session.  An individual may speak a maximum of three times per calendar year on
the same topic.  This prohibition shall include the repetition of the same topic in a
statement on what is purported to be a different topic.  After acknowledgement by
the chair, please stand and state your name.  Thank you.

E. Resolution Awarding County Towing Service
F. Resolution Authorizing the Chairman of the County Board to Execute an

Agreement with the City of Loves Park for Dispatch Services
G. Future Agenda Items
H. Adjournment

Call to Order 
Chairperson Lindmark called the meeting to order at 5:30 PM. 

Roll Call 
Chairperson Lindmark yes, Mr. Booker yes, Ms. Crosby yes, Mr. Nabors yes, Mr. Scrol 
yes. 

Approval of June 14 and July 19, 2023 Minutes 



Page 2 

Motion: Mr. Nabors.  Second: Ms. Crosby. 
Motion passed by unanimous voice vote. 

Public Comment 
Chairperson Lindmark omitted reading the Public Comment Section of the Agenda due 
to no one present to speak. 

Resolution Awarding County Towing Service 
Motion: Ms. Crosby.  Second: Mr. Booker. 
Chairperson Lindmark called for any discussion. 

• Discussion followed.
Motion passed by unanimous voice vote. 

Resolution Authorizing the Chairman of the County Board to Execute an Agreement 
with the City of Loves Park for Dispatch Services 
Motion:  Chairperson Lindmark.  Second:  Ms. Crosby. 
Chairperson Lindmark called for any discussion. 

• Discussion followed.
Motion passed by unanimous voice vote. 

Future Agenda Items 
None reported. 

Adjournment 
Chairperson Lindmark called for a motion to adjourn. 
Motion:  Mr. Booker.  Second: Ms. Crosby. 
Motion passed by unanimous voice vote. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Nancy Bleile 
Administrative Assistant 



    Resolution Executive Summary 

Chairman’s Office of Criminal Justice Initiatives | 404 Elm Street, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.gov 
Phone: (815) 319- 4059 | Email: mdokken@admin.wincoil.gov     

Prepared By: Marlana Dokken 
Committee: Public Safety and Judiciary Committee 
Committee Date: October 18, 2023 
Resolution Title:  Resolution Accepting FY2024 Award and Authorizing Agreements 

between the County of Winnebago, Illinois, the U.S. Department of 
Justice, and Project Safe Neighborhoods (PSN) Partners 

County Code:  Not applicable 
Board Meeting Date: October 26, 2023 

Budget Information: 

Was item budgeted?    No Appropriation Amount:   $399,019.00 

If not, explain funding source:     Department of Justice, Bureau of Justice Assistance 

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:  N/A  Budget Impact:   N/A 

Background Information: The County of Winnebago, Illinois desires to continue its role as Fiscal Agency 
for the United States Department of Justice, Northern District of Illinois Project Safe Neighborhoods (PSN) 
initiative pursuant to the terms of the Agreement and retaining ten percent (10%) of the total award which 
will be applied to grants administration and indirect costs. Sub-award Agreements are pre-selected by the 
Project Safe Neighborhoods Task Force with final approval by the Department of Justice. 

Recommendation: The following agreement/sub-agreements are recommended, pending final DOJ 
approval: 

1) Agreement with the U.S Department of Justice $399,019 
2) Sub-award Agreement with Winnebago County State’s Attorney’s Office $109,799 
3) Sub-award Agreement with Illinois Department of Corrections $109,880 
4) Sub-award Agreement with City of Chicago, Chicago Police Department $109,880 
5) Sub-award Agreement with City of Rockford, Rockford Police Department $  25,000 

Contract/Agreement: See attached.

Legal Review:  The State’s Attorney’s Office has reviewed the award and will review each sub-
agreement prior to execution. 

Follow-Up: Not Applicable 

http://www.wincoil.gov/


County Board:  10/26/2023 
R E S O L U T I O N 

of the 
COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Sponsored by:  Brad Lindmark, Committee Chairman 
Submitted by:  Public Safety and Judiciary Committee 

2023 CR 
RESOLUTION ACCEPTING FY2024 AWARD AND AUTHORIZING AGREEMENTS BETWEEN THE 
COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS, THE U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE, AND PROJECT SAFE 

NEIGHBORHOODS (PSN) PARTNERS 

 WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago’s Chairman’s Office of Criminal Justice Initiatives 
has partnered with the U.S. Department of Justice to act as Fiscal Agency to implement 
Project Safe Neighborhoods; and 

WHEREAS, the Public Safety and Judiciary Committee of the County Board for the County 
of Winnebago, Illinois, has reviewed the DOJ Award Letter, Resolution Exhibit A, and 
recommends accepting award and awarding sub agreements; and 

WHEREAS, the Public Safety and Judiciary Committee has determined that the funding 
for the aforementioned shall be as follows: 

XXXXX-various-XXXXX 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois that the County Board Chairman is authorized to accept and execute, on behalf of the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois, an Agreement with the U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE, in the dollar 
amount of three hundred ninety-nine thousand and nineteen dollars ($399,019.00), and sub-
agreements with the WINNEBAGO COUNTY STATES ATTORNEY’S OFFICE in the amount of one 
hundred nine thousand seven hundred ninety-nine dollars ($109,799.00), the ILLINOIS 
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS in the amount of one hundred nine thousand eight hundred 
eighty dollars ($109,880.00), the CITY OF CHICAGO, CHICAGO POLICE DEPARTMENT in the 
amount of one hundred nine thousand eight hundred eighty dollars ($109,880.00), and the CITY 
OF ROCKFORD, ROCKFORD POLICE DEPARTMENT in the amount of twenty-five thousand dollars 
($25,000.00). 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois that Joseph Chiarelli, the Winnebago County Board Chairman, is authorized and directed to 
execute the aforementioned sub-agreements, and the award in substantially the same form as 
the Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit A. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately 
upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to prepare and deliver 
certified copies of this Resolution to the Director of the Chairman’s Office of Criminal Justice 
Initiatives, Director of Purchasing, Finance Director, County Board Office, and County Auditor. 



 Respectfully Submitted, 
   PUBLIC SAFETY AND JUDICIARY COMMITTEE 

AGREE DISAGREE 

BRAD LINDMARK, CHAIR BRAD LINDMARK, CHAIR 

AARON BOOKER AARON BOOKER 

JEAN CROSBY JEAN CROSBY 

ANGIE GORAL ANGIE GORAL 

KEVIN MCCARTHY KEVIN MCCARTHY 

TIM NABORS TIM NABORS 

CHRIS SCROL CHRIS SCROL 

The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2023. 

ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIR OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 



GRANT SUMMARY WORKSHEET 

404 Elm Street, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.us 

Prepared By: Marlana Dokken 

Committee: Public Safety & Judiciary Committee 

Committee Date: 10/18/23 

Resolution Title: 
Resolution Accepting FY2024 Award and Authorizing Agreements between 
the County of Winnebago, Illinois, the U.S. Department of Justice, and 
Project Safe Neighborhoods (PSN) Partners 

Board Meeting Date: 10/26/23 

All new grant awards must be approved through their respective Committees prior to presenting 
for Board approval. Those requiring a budget modification must also be approved by the Finance 
Committee. To provide the County Board with the information needed for compliance 
requirements, please provide a complete Committee and Board packet that includes this form, 
the Executive Summary, Resolution, and Award. 

Funding Information: 
Grant Period of Performance: 10/01/23 – 09/30/26 

Is match required?     yes    no 

   - If yes, did you work with Accounting to determine match allocation?     yes    no 

Are Indirect Costs Allowable under the award?   yes    no 

  - If yes, is the 10% de minimus Indirect Cost rate included in the budget?    yes    no 
Indirect Cost Base includes: salaries, fringe benefits, travel, supplies, training, and up to the first $25,000 of each 
subaward. 

 - If no, please explain: 

Does funding agreement contain Special Conditions that may prohibit another department’s 
ability to apply for funding?                                                                                         yes     no  
  - If yes, please explain: 

How many sub-awards are included in this award?   Four (4) 

   - Do subawards/contracts contain Indirect Costs?       yes    no 
  -  If yes, please provide Indirect Cost rates and total Indirect applied to each subaward or  

  contract: 

http://www.wincoil.us/


Department of Justice (DOJ)

Office of Justice Programs

Bureau of Justice Assistance  

Washington, D.C. 20531

Name and Address of Recipient: COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO 
404 ELM ST 

City, State and Zip: ROCKFORD, IL 61101  

Recipient UEI: SBEVXUKXKGK3 

Project Title: Project Safe Neighborhoods,
Northern District of IL  Award Number: 15PBJA-23-GG-02454-GUNP

Solicitation Title: BJA FY 23 Project Safe Neighborhoods Formula Grant Program 

Federal Award Amount: $399,019.00   Federal Award Date: 9/25/23 

Awarding Agency:   Office of Justice Programs
Bureau of Justice Assistance  

Funding Instrument Type: Grant 

Opportunity Category: O
Assistance Listing:
16.609 - Project Safe Neighborhoods

Project Period Start Date: 10/1/23  Project Period End Date: 9/30/26 

Budget Period Start Date: 10/1/23  Budget Period End Date: 9/30/26 

Project Description:

The proposed project period is October 1, 2023 through September 31, 2026 and seeks to focus on reducing
crime in Chicago and Rockford, Illinois. In Rockford, the focus is City-wide, in Chicago the effort is focused on
the seven most violent police districts in the city: 4th (South Shore); 7th (Englewood); 9th (Back of the Yards);
10th (Lawndale); 11th (Garfield Park); 15th (Austin); and the 6th District (Auburn/Gresham).

The overarching goal is to reduce violent crime in the most violent neighborhoods in Chicago and Rockford by
addressing crime before it happens. The Northern District of Illinois (NDIL) Project Safe Neighborhoods (PSN)
Task Force has a collaborative, comprehensive strategy to address all four PSN Design Features which includes
activity related to gun trafficking, gun and gang violence, prosecution, felon recidivism, and youth violence
intervention and prevention in Chicago and Rockford through previous years PSN funding. Additionally, the
NDIL has a research partner as a member of the PSN Task Force not funded under PSN. In FY 23, the PSN
strategy will fund a range of initiatives to support focused and strategic enforcement as well as prevention and
intervention services in both Chicago and Rockford.

In alignment with the NDIL’s PSN Strategic Plan, primary activities of PSN 2023 include 1) enforcement and
prevention through Parolee Forums and parole compliance checks for high-risk offenders in Chicago and
Rockford PSN Districts, 2) enforcement through increased prosecution, 3) equipment to mitigate risks for
victims, offenders, and officers during enforcement and prevention efforts in Chicago, and 4) equipment to assist
the PSN goal of preventing, disrupting, and prosecuting violent crime in Rockford.

After ten percent to the County of Winnebago for fiscal agency functions, and the required travel allotment,
NDIL PSN Task Force members identified and voted the following priorities to be allocated using the balance of

Page: 1 of 24

EXHIBIT A



PSN 2023 funds:

30% to the IL Department of Corrections to address high risk, and gang involved parolees in Chicago’s seven
PSN districts and in Rockford’s citywide PSN district;

30% to the Winnebago County States Attorney’s Office to enhance prosecutions in Winnebago County related
to the Rockford PSN district;

30% to the Chicago Police Department to purchase standardized equipment to mitigate risk of injury to all
parties during apprehension efforts in Chicago PSN districts; and

10% to the Rockford Police Department for equipment to support efforts to apprehend the most violent gun
offenders in the Rockford PSN district.

 

Page: 2 of 24



Award Letter

September 25, 2023  

Dear Marlana Dokken,
 
On behalf of Attorney General Merrick B. Garland, it is my pleasure to inform you the Office of Justice Programs
(OJP) has approved the application submitted by  COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO  for an award under the funding
opportunity entitled 2023 BJA FY 23 Project Safe Neighborhoods Formula Grant Program. The approved award
amount is $399,019.
Review the Award Instrument below carefully and familiarize yourself with all conditions and requirements before
accepting your award. The Award Instrument includes the Award Offer (Award Information, Project Information,
Financial Information, and Award Conditions) and Award Acceptance. For COPS Office and OVW funding the Award
Offer also includes any Other Award Documents. 

Please note that award requirements include not only the conditions and limitations set forth in the Award Offer, but
also compliance with assurances and certifications that relate to conduct during the period of performance for the
award. These requirements encompass financial, administrative, and programmatic matters, as well as other important
matters (e.g., specific restrictions on use of funds). Therefore, all key staff should receive the award conditions, the
assurances and certifications, and the application as approved by OJP, so that they understand the award
requirements. Information on all pertinent award requirements also must be provided to any subrecipient of the award.
 

Should you accept the award and then fail to comply with an award requirement, DOJ will pursue appropriate remedies
for non-compliance, which may include termination of the award and/or a requirement to repay award funds.

Prior to accepting the award, your Entity Administrator must assign a Financial Manager, Grant Award Administrator,
and Authorized Representative(s) in the Justice Grants System (JustGrants). The Entity Administrator will need to
ensure the assigned Authorized Representative(s) is current and has the legal authority to accept awards and bind the
entity to the award terms and conditions. To accept the award, the Authorized Representative(s) must accept all parts
of the Award Offer in the Justice Grants System (JustGrants), including by executing the required declaration and
certification, within 45 days from the award date.

To access your funds, you will need to enroll in the Automated Standard Application for Payments (ASAP) system, if
you haven’t already completed the enrollment process in ASAP. The Entity Administrator should have already received
an email from ASAP to initiate this process. 

Congratulations, and we look forward to working with you.

Amy Solomon
Assistant Attorney General  
Office for Civil Rights Notice for All Recipients

The Office for Civil Rights (OCR), Office of Justice Programs (OJP), U.S. Department of Justice (DOJ) has been
delegated the responsibility for ensuring that recipients of federal financial assistance from the OJP, the Office of
Community Oriented Policing Services (COPS), and the Office on Violence Against Women (OVW) are not engaged in
discrimination prohibited by law. Several federal civil rights laws, such as Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and
Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, require recipients of federal financial assistance to give assurances that
they will comply with those laws. Taken together, these civil rights laws prohibit recipients of federal financial
assistance from DOJ from discriminating in services and employment because of race, color, national origin, religion,
disability, sex, and, for grants authorized under the Violence Against Women Act, sexual orientation and gender
identity.  Recipients are also prohibited from discriminating in services because of age.  For a complete review of these
civil rights laws and nondiscrimination requirements, in connection with DOJ awards, see https://ojp.gov/funding/
Explore/LegalOverview/CivilRightsRequirements.htm.

Under the delegation of authority, the OCR investigates allegations of discrimination against recipients from individuals,
entities, or groups. In addition, the OCR conducts limited compliance reviews and audits based on regulatory criteria.

Page: 3 of 24



These reviews and audits permit the OCR to evaluate whether recipients of financial assistance from the Department
are providing services in a nondiscriminatory manner to their service population or have employment practices that
meet equal-opportunity standards.
 
If you are a recipient of grant awards under the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act or the Juvenile Justice
and Delinquency Prevention Act and your agency is part of a criminal justice system, there are two additional
obligations that may apply in connection with the awards: (1) complying with the regulation relating to Equal
Employment Opportunity Programs (EEOPs); and (2) submitting findings of discrimination to OCR. For additional
information regarding the EEOP requirement, see 28 CFR Part 42, subpart E, and for additional information regarding
requirements when there is an adverse finding, see 28 C.F.R. §§ 42.204(c), .205(c)(5). 

The OCR is available to help you and your organization meet the civil rights requirements that are associated with DOJ
grant funding. If you would like the OCR to assist you in fulfilling your organization's civil rights or nondiscrimination
responsibilities as a recipient of federal financial assistance, please do not hesitate to contact the OCR at
askOCR@ojp.usdoj.gov.
 

Memorandum Regarding NEPA

NEPA Letter Type
OJP - Categorical Exclusion

NEPA Letter

The FY23 Project Safe Neighborhoods Initiative, represents a strategic approach that brings more “science” into criminal justice
operations by leveraging innovative applications of analysis, technology, and evidence-based practices with the goal of improving
performance and effectiveness while containing costs while addressing crime associated with gun crime and gang violence.
Awards under this program will implement the five core elements of PSN— partnerships, strategic planning and research
integration, training and technical assistance outreach, and accountability, data analysis, and data-informed efforts —to address
specific gun crime and gang violence problems in that district.

None of the following activities will be conducted either under the OJP federal action or a related third party action:

1) New construction;

2) Any renovation or remodeling of a property either (a) listed on or eligible for listing on the National Register of Historic Places
or (b) located within a 100-year flood plain;

3) A renovation which will change the basic prior use of a facility or significantly change its size;

4) Research and technology whose anticipated and future application could be expected to have an effect on the environment; or

5) Implementation of a program involving the use of chemicals.

Consequently, the subject federal action meets OJP's criteria for a categorical exclusion as contained in paragraph 4(b) of
Appendix D to Part 61 of the Title 28 of the Code of Federal Regulations. Additionally, the proposed action is neither a phase nor a
segment or a project which when viewed in its entirety would not meet the criteria for a categorical exclusion.

Orbin Terry, NEPA Coordinator

NEPA Coordinator
First Name
Orbin Middle Name

Last Name
Terry

Award Information

This award is offered subject to the conditions or limitations set forth in the Award Information, Project

Page: 4 of 24



Information, Financial Information, and Award Conditions.

Recipient Information

Recipient Name
COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO

UEI
SBEVXUKXKGK3

Street 1
404 ELM ST Street 2

City
ROCKFORD

State/U.S. Territory
Illinois

Zip/Postal Code
61101

Country
United States

County/Parish
 

Province
 

Award Details

Federal Award Date
9/25/23

Award Type
Initial

Award Number
15PBJA-23-GG-02454-GUNP

Supplement Number
00

Federal Award Amount
$399,019.00

Funding Instrument Type
Grant

Assistance Listing
Number

Assistance Listings Program Title

16.609 Project Safe Neighborhoods

Statutory Authority

34 U.S.C. §§60701-60705

[X] 
I have read and understand the information presented in this section of the Federal Award Instrument.

 

Project Information

This award is offered subject to the conditions or limitations set forth in the Award Information, Project
Information, Financial Information, and Award Conditions.

Solicitation Title Awarding Agency

Page: 5 of 24



2023 BJA FY 23 Project Safe Neighborhoods Formula
Grant Program

Application Number
GRANT13814028

OJP

Program Office
BJA

Grant Manager Name
Lauren Troy
Phone Number
202-598-9472
E-mail Address
Lauren.Troy@usdoj.gov

Project Title
Project Safe Neighborhoods, Northern District of IL

Performance Period Start
Date
10/01/2023

Performance Period End Date
09/30/2026

Budget Period Start Date
10/01/2023

Budget Period End Date
09/30/2026

Project Description

The proposed project period is October 1, 2023 through September 31, 2026 and seeks to focus on reducing
crime in Chicago and Rockford, Illinois. In Rockford, the focus is City-wide, in Chicago the effort is focused on
the seven most violent police districts in the city: 4th (South Shore); 7th (Englewood); 9th (Back of the Yards);
10th (Lawndale); 11th (Garfield Park); 15th (Austin); and the 6th District (Auburn/Gresham).

The overarching goal is to reduce violent crime in the most violent neighborhoods in Chicago and Rockford by
addressing crime before it happens. The Northern District of Illinois (NDIL) Project Safe Neighborhoods (PSN)
Task Force has a collaborative, comprehensive strategy to address all four PSN Design Features which includes
activity related to gun trafficking, gun and gang violence, prosecution, felon recidivism, and youth violence
intervention and prevention in Chicago and Rockford through previous years PSN funding. Additionally, the
NDIL has a research partner as a member of the PSN Task Force not funded under PSN. In FY 23, the PSN
strategy will fund a range of initiatives to support focused and strategic enforcement as well as prevention and
intervention services in both Chicago and Rockford.

In alignment with the NDIL’s PSN Strategic Plan, primary activities of PSN 2023 include 1) enforcement and
prevention through Parolee Forums and parole compliance checks for high-risk offenders in Chicago and
Rockford PSN Districts, 2) enforcement through increased prosecution, 3) equipment to mitigate risks for
victims, offenders, and officers during enforcement and prevention efforts in Chicago, and 4) equipment to assist
the PSN goal of preventing, disrupting, and prosecuting violent crime in Rockford.

After ten percent to the County of Winnebago for fiscal agency functions, and the required travel allotment,
NDIL PSN Task Force members identified and voted the following priorities to be allocated using the balance of
PSN 2023 funds:

30% to the IL Department of Corrections to address high risk, and gang involved parolees in Chicago’s seven
PSN districts and in Rockford’s citywide PSN district;

Page: 6 of 24

tel:202-598-9472


30% to the Winnebago County States Attorney’s Office to enhance prosecutions in Winnebago County related
to the Rockford PSN district;

30% to the Chicago Police Department to purchase standardized equipment to mitigate risk of injury to all
parties during apprehension efforts in Chicago PSN districts; and

10% to the Rockford Police Department for equipment to support efforts to apprehend the most violent gun
offenders in the Rockford PSN district.

[X] 
I have read and understand the information presented in this section of the Federal Award Instrument.

 

Financial Information

This award is offered subject to the conditions or limitations set forth in the Award Information, Project
Information, Financial Information, and Award Conditions.

A financial analysis of budgeted costs has been completed. Costs under this award appear reasonable, allowable, and
consistent with existing guidelines. Exceptions / Adjustments are noted below.

sample text

Year 1 Year 2 Total

Personnel

$8,016 $8,256 $16,272

Fringe Benefits

$3,839 $3,861 $7,700

Travel

$4,478 $0 $4,478

Equipment

$0 $0 $0

Supplies

$2,804 $0 $2,804

Construction

$0 $0 $0

Page: 7 of 24



SubAwards

$354,639 $0 $354,639

Procurement Contracts

$0 $0 $0

Other Costs

$0 $0 $0

Total Direct Costs

$373,776 $12,117 $385,893

Indirect Costs

$11,914 $1,212 $13,126

Total Project Costs

$385,690 $13,329 $399,019

Federal

$385,690 $13,329 $399,019

Non-Federal

$0 $0 $0

Budget Totals

Total Percentage

Total Project Cost $399,019

Federal Funds $399,019 100.00~symbolPlaceholder~

Non-Federal Amount $0 0.00~symbolPlaceholder~

Match Amount $0 0.00~symbolPlaceholder~

Program Income $
0

Page: 8 of 24



0

0.00~symbolPlaceholder~

Empty Space

Please note: After completing this budget detail summary, please confirm that the following
final values entered in this section are identical to those entered in the corresponding
estimated cost section of the Standard Applicant Information. Specifically, the following must
be equivalent. If they are not, you will not be able to submit this application until they are
updated to be equivalent.
 

Standard Applicant Information Equals Budget Summary
Total Estimated Funding = Total Project Costs

Federal Estimated Funding (federal share) = Federal Funds
Applicant Estimated Funding (non-federal

share)
= Match  Amount

Program Income Estimated Funding = Program Income Amount

 
Budget Category

Personnel

Fringe Benefits

Travel

Equipment

Supplies

Construction

SubAwards

Procurement Contracts

Other Costs

Indirect Costs

[X] 
I have read and understand the information presented in this section of the Federal Award Instrument.

 

Award Conditions

This award is offered subject to the conditions or limitations set forth in the Award Information, Project
Information, Financial Information, and Award Conditions.

Page: 9 of 24



1
Compliance with restrictions on the use of federal funds--prohibited and controlled equipment under OJP awards

Consistent with Executive Order 14074, “Advancing Effective, Accountable Policing and Criminal Justice Practices To
Enhance Public Trust and Public Safety,” OJP has prohibited the use of federal funds under this award for purchases
or transfers of specified equipment by law enforcement agencies. In addition, OJP requires the recipient, and any
subrecipient (“subgrantee”) at any tier, to put in place specified controls prior to using federal funds under this award to
acquire or transfer any property identified on the “controlled equipment” list. The details of the requirement are posted
on the OJP web site at https://www.ojp.gov/funding/explore/prohibited-and-controlled-equipment (Award condition:
Compliance with restrictions on the use of federal funds--prohibited and controlled equipment under OJP awards), and
are incorporated by reference here.

2
Compliance with DOJ regulations pertaining to civil rights and nondiscrimination - 28 C.F.R. Part 54

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable requirements of 28
C.F.R. Part 54, which relates to nondiscrimination on the basis of sex in certain "education programs."

3
Compliance with 41 U.S.C. 4712 (including prohibitions on reprisal; notice to employees)

The recipient (and any subrecipient at any tier) must comply with, and is subject to, all applicable provisions of 41
U.S.C. 4712, including all applicable provisions that prohibit, under specified circumstances, discrimination against an
employee as reprisal for the employee's disclosure of information related to gross mismanagement of a federal grant, a
gross waste of federal funds, an abuse of authority relating to a federal grant, a substantial and specific danger to
public health or safety, or a violation of law, rule, or regulation related to a federal grant.

The recipient also must inform its employees, in writing (and in the predominant native language of the workforce), of
employee rights and remedies under 41 U.S.C. 4712.

Should a question arise as to the applicability of the provisions of 41 U.S.C. 4712 to this award, the recipient is to
contact the DOJ awarding agency (OJP or OVW, as appropriate) for guidance.

4
Applicability of Part 200 Uniform Requirements

The Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements in 2 C.F.R. Part 200, as adopted
and supplemented by DOJ in 2 C.F.R. Part 2800 (together, the "Part 200 Uniform Requirements") apply to this FY
2022 award from OJP.

The Part 200 Uniform Requirements were first adopted by DOJ on December 26, 2014. If this FY 2022 award
supplements funds previously awarded by OJP under the same award number (e.g., funds awarded during or before
December 2014), the Part 200 Uniform Requirements apply with respect to all funds under that award number
(regardless of the award date, and regardless of whether derived from the initial award or a supplemental award) that
are obligated on or after the acceptance date of this FY 2022 award.

For more information and resources on the Part 200 Uniform Requirements as they relate to OJP awards and
subawards ("subgrants"), see the OJP website at https://ojp.gov/funding/Part200UniformRequirements.htm.

Record retention and access: Records pertinent to the award that the recipient (and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at
any tier) must retain -- typically for a period of 3 years from the date of submission of the final expenditure report (SF
425), unless a different retention period applies -- and to which the recipient (and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at
any tier) must provide access, include performance measurement information, in addition to the financial records,
supporting documents, statistical records, and other pertinent records indicated at 2 C.F.R. 200.334.

In the event that an award-related question arises from documents or other materials prepared or distributed by OJP
that may appear to conflict with, or differ in some way from, the provisions of the Part 200 Uniform Requirements, the

Page: 10 of 24



recipient is to contact OJP promptly for clarification.

5
Compliance with applicable rules regarding approval, planning, and reporting of conferences, meetings, trainings, and
other events

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable laws, regulations,
policies, and official DOJ guidance (including specific cost limits, prior approval and reporting requirements, where
applicable) governing the use of federal funds for expenses related to conferences (as that term is defined by DOJ),
including the provision of food and/or beverages at such conferences, and costs of attendance at such conferences.

Information on the pertinent DOJ definition of conferences and the rules applicable to this award appears in the DOJ
Grants Financial Guide (currently, as section 3.10 of "Postaward Requirements" in the "DOJ Grants Financial Guide").

6
Requirement for data on performance and effectiveness under the award

The recipient must collect and maintain data that measure the performance and effectiveness of work under this
award. The data must be provided to OJP in the manner (including within the timeframes) specified by OJP in the
program solicitation or other applicable written guidance. Data collection supports compliance with the Government
Performance and Results Act (GPRA) and the GPRA Modernization Act of 2010, and other applicable laws.

7
Compliance with DOJ Grants Financial Guide

References to the DOJ Grants Financial Guide are to the DOJ Grants Financial Guide as posted on the OJP website
(currently, the "DOJ Grants Financial Guide" available at https://ojp.gov/financialguide/DOJ/index.htm), including any
updated version that may be posted during the period of performance. The recipient agrees to comply with the DOJ
Grants Financial Guide.

8
Compliance with general appropriations-law restrictions on the use of federal funds (FY 2022)

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable restrictions on the use of
federal funds set out in federal appropriations statutes. Pertinent restrictions, including from various "general
provisions" in the Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2022, are set out at https://www.ojp.gov/funding/Explore/
FY22AppropriationsRestrictions.htm, and are incorporated by reference here.

Should a question arise as to whether a particular use of federal funds by a recipient (or a subrecipient) would or might
fall within the scope of an appropriations-law restriction, the recipient is to contact OJP for guidance, and may not
proceed without the express prior written approval of OJP.

9
Compliance with DOJ regulations pertaining to civil rights and nondiscrimination - 28 C.F.R. Part 38

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable requirements of 28
C.F.R. Part 38 (as may be applicable from time to time), specifically including any applicable requirements regarding
written notice to program beneficiaries and prospective program beneficiaries.

Currently, among other things, 28 C.F.R. Part 38 includes rules that prohibit specific forms of discrimination on the
basis of religion, a religious belief, a refusal to hold a religious belief, or refusal to attend or participate in a religious
practice. Part 38, currently, also sets out rules and requirements that pertain to recipient and subrecipient
("subgrantee") organizations that engage in or conduct explicitly religious activities, as well as rules and requirements
that pertain to recipients and subrecipients that are faith-based or religious organizations.

The text of 28 C.F.R. Part 38 is available via the Electronic Code of Federal Regulations (currently accessible at https:/

Page: 11 of 24



/www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/ECFR?page=browse), by browsing to Title 28-Judicial Administration, Chapter 1, Part 38, under
e-CFR "current" data.

10
Effect of failure to address audit issues

The recipient understands and agrees that the DOJ awarding agency (OJP or OVW, as appropriate) may withhold
award funds, or may impose other related requirements, if (as determined by the DOJ awarding agency) the recipient
does not satisfactorily and promptly address outstanding issues from audits required by the Part 200 Uniform
Requirements (or by the terms of this award), or other outstanding issues that arise in connection with audits,
investigations, or reviews of DOJ awards.

11
Requirements of the award; remedies for non-compliance or for materially false statements

The conditions of this award are material requirements of the award. Compliance with any assurances or certifications
submitted by or on behalf of the recipient that relate to conduct during the period of performance also is a material
requirement of this award.

Limited Exceptions. In certain special circumstances, the U.S. Department of Justice ("DOJ") may determine that it will
not enforce, or enforce only in part, one or more requirements otherwise applicable to the award. Any such exceptions
regarding enforcement, including any such exceptions made during the period of performance, are (or will be during
the period of performance) set out through the Office of Justice Programs ("OJP") webpage entitled "Legal Notices:
Special circumstances as to particular award conditions" (ojp.gov/funding/Explore/LegalNotices-AwardReqts.htm), and
incorporated by reference into the award.

By signing and accepting this award on behalf of the recipient, the authorized recipient official accepts all material
requirements of the award, and specifically adopts, as if personally executed by the authorized recipient official, all
assurances or certifications submitted by or on behalf of the recipient that relate to conduct during the period of
performance.

Failure to comply with one or more award requirements -- whether a condition set out in full below, a condition
incorporated by reference below, or an assurance or certification related to conduct during the award period -- may
result in OJP taking appropriate action with respect to the recipient and the award. Among other things, the OJP may
withhold award funds, disallow costs, or suspend or terminate the award. DOJ, including OJP, also may take other
legal action as appropriate.

Any materially false, fictitious, or fraudulent statement to the federal government related to this award (or concealment
or omission of a material fact) may be the subject of criminal prosecution (including under 18 U.S.C. 1001 and/or 1621,
and/or 34 U.S.C. 10271-10273), and also may lead to imposition of civil penalties and administrative remedies for false
claims or otherwise (including under 31 U.S.C. 3729-3730 and 3801-3812).

Should any provision of a requirement of this award be held to be invalid or unenforceable by its terms, that provision
shall first be applied with a limited construction so as to give it the maximum effect permitted by law. Should it be held,
instead, that the provision is utterly invalid or -unenforceable, such provision shall be deemed severable from this
award.

12
Compliance with DOJ regulations pertaining to civil rights and nondiscrimination - 28 C.F.R. Part 42

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable requirements of 28
C.F.R. Part 42, specifically including any applicable requirements in Subpart E of 28 C.F.R. Part 42 that relate to an
equal employment opportunity program.

13
Requirements related to "de minimis" indirect cost rate

Page: 12 of 24



A recipient that is eligible under the Part 200 Uniform Requirements and other applicable law to use the "de minimis"
indirect cost rate described in 2 C.F.R. 200.414(f), and that elects to use the "de minimis" indirect cost rate, must
advise OJP in writing of both its eligibility and its election, and must comply with all associated requirements in the Part
200 Uniform Requirements. The "de minimis" rate may be applied only to modified total direct costs (MTDC) as defined
by the Part 200 Uniform Requirements.

14
Employment eligibility verification for hiring under the award

1. The recipient (and any subrecipient at any tier) must--

A. Ensure that, as part of the hiring process for any position within the United States that is or will be funded (in whole
or in part) with award funds, the recipient (or any subrecipient) properly verifies the employment eligibility of the
individual who is being hired, consistent with the provisions of 8 U.S.C. 1324a(a)(1).

B. Notify all persons associated with the recipient (or any subrecipient) who are or will be involved in activities under
this award of both--

(1) this award requirement for verification of employment eligibility, and

(2) the associated provisions in 8 U.S.C. 1324a(a)(1) that, generally speaking, make it unlawful, in the United States, to
hire (or recruit for employment) certain aliens.

C. Provide training (to the extent necessary) to those persons required by this condition to be notified of the award
requirement for employment eligibility verification and of the associated provisions of 8 U.S.C. 1324a(a)(1).

D. As part of the recordkeeping for the award (including pursuant to the Part 200 Uniform Requirements), maintain
records of all employment eligibility verifications pertinent to compliance with this award condition in accordance with
Form I-9 record retention requirements, as well as records of all pertinent notifications and trainings.

2. Monitoring

The recipient's monitoring responsibilities include monitoring of subrecipient compliance with this condition.

3. Allowable costs

To the extent that such costs are not reimbursed under any other federal program, award funds may be obligated for
the reasonable, necessary, and allocable costs (if any) of actions designed to ensure compliance with this condition.

4. Rules of construction

A. Staff involved in the hiring process

For purposes of this condition, persons "who are or will be involved in activities under this award" specifically includes
(without limitation) any and all recipient (or any subrecipient) officials or other staff who are or will be involved in the
hiring process with respect to a position that is or will be funded (in whole or in part) with award funds.

B. Employment eligibility confirmation with E-Verify

For purposes of satisfying the requirement of this condition regarding verification of employment eligibility, the recipient
(or any subrecipient) may choose to participate in, and use, E-Verify (www.e-verify.gov), provided an appropriate
person authorized to act on behalf of the recipient (or subrecipient) uses E-Verify (and follows the proper E-Verify
procedures, including in the event of a "Tentative Nonconfirmation" or a "Final Nonconfirmation") to confirm
employment eligibility for each hiring for a position in the United States that is or will be funded (in whole or in part) with
award funds.

C. "United States" specifically includes the District of Columbia, Puerto Rico, Guam, the Virgin Islands of the United
States, and the Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana Islands.

Page: 13 of 24



D. Nothing in this condition shall be understood to authorize or require any recipient, any subrecipient at any tier, or
any person or other entity, to violate any federal law, including any applicable civil rights or nondiscrimination law.

E. Nothing in this condition, including in paragraph 4.B., shall be understood to relieve any recipient, any subrecipient
at any tier, or any person or other entity, of any obligation otherwise imposed by law, including 8 U.S.C. 1324a(a)(1).

Questions about E-Verify should be directed to DHS. For more information about E-Verify visit the E-Verify website
(https://www.e-verify.gov/) or email E-Verify at E-Verify@dhs.gov. E-Verify employer agents can email E-Verify at E-
VerifyEmployerAgent@dhs.gov.

Questions about the meaning or scope of this condition should be directed to OJP, before award acceptance.

15
OJP Training Guiding Principles

Any training or training materials that the recipient -- or any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier -- develops or
delivers with OJP award funds must adhere to the OJP Training Guiding Principles for Grantees and Subgrantees,
available at https://www.ojp.gov/funding/implement/training-guiding-principles-grantees-and-subgrantees.

16
Determination of suitability to interact with participating minors

SCOPE. This condition applies to this award if it is indicated -- in the application for the award (as approved by DOJ)(or
in the application for any subaward, at any tier), the DOJ funding announcement (solicitation), or an associated federal
statute -- that a purpose of some or all of the activities to be carried out under the award (whether by the recipient, or a
subrecipient at any tier) is to benefit a set of individuals under 18 years of age.

The recipient, and any subrecipient at any tier, must make determinations of suitability before certain individuals may
interact with participating minors. This requirement applies regardless of an individual's employment status.

The details of this requirement are posted on the OJP web site at https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/Interact-Minors.htm
(Award condition: Determination of suitability required, in advance, for certain individuals who may interact with
participating minors), and are incorporated by reference here.

17
Potential imposition of additional requirements

The recipient agrees to comply with any additional requirements that may be imposed by the DOJ awarding agency
(OJP or OVW, as appropriate) during the period of performance for this award, if the recipient is designated as "high-
risk" for purposes of the DOJ high-risk grantee list.

18
Required training for Grant Award Administrator and Financial Manager

The Grant Award Administrator and all Financial Managers for this award must have successfully completed an "OJP
financial management and grant administration training" by 120 days after the date of the recipient's acceptance of the
award. Successful completion of such a training on or after October 15, 2020, will satisfy this condition.

In the event that either the Grant Award Administrator or a Financial Manager for this award changes during the period
of performance, the new Grant Award Administrator or Financial Manager must have successfully completed an "OJP
financial management and grant administration training" by 120 calendar days after the date the Entity Administrator
enters updated Grant Award Administrator or Financial Manager information in JustGrants. Successful completion of
such a training on or after October 15, 2020, will satisfy this condition.

A list of OJP trainings that OJP will consider "OJP financial management and grant administration training" for
purposes of this condition is available at https://onlinegfmt.training.ojp.gov/. All trainings that satisfy this condition
include a session on grant fraud prevention and detection.

Page: 14 of 24



The recipient should anticipate that OJP will immediately withhold ("freeze") award funds if the recipient fails to comply
with this condition. The recipient's failure to comply also may lead OJP to impose additional appropriate conditions on
this award.

19
Restrictions and certifications regarding non-disclosure agreements and related matters

No recipient or subrecipient ("subgrantee") under this award, or entity that receives a procurement contract or
subcontract with any funds under this award, may require any employee or contractor to sign an internal confidentiality
agreement or statement that prohibits or otherwise restricts, or purports to prohibit or restrict, the reporting (in
accordance with law) of waste, fraud, or abuse to an investigative or law enforcement representative of a federal
department or agency authorized to receive such information.

The foregoing is not intended, and shall not be understood by the agency making this award, to contravene
requirements applicable to Standard Form 312 (which relates to classified information), Form 4414 (which relates to
sensitive compartmented information), or any other form issued by a federal department or agency governing the
nondisclosure of classified information.

1. In accepting this award, the recipient--

a. represents that it neither requires nor has required internal confidentiality agreements or statements from employees
or contractors that currently prohibit or otherwise currently restrict (or purport to prohibit or restrict) employees or
contractors from reporting waste, fraud, or abuse as described above; and

b. certifies that, if it learns or is notified that it is or has been requiring its employees or contractors to execute
agreements or statements that prohibit or otherwise restrict (or purport to prohibit or restrict), reporting of waste, fraud,
or abuse as described above, it will immediately stop any further obligations of award funds, will provide prompt written
notification to the federal agency making this award, and will resume (or permit resumption of) such obligations only if
expressly authorized to do so by that agency.

2. If the recipient does or is authorized under this award to make subawards ("subgrants"), procurement contracts, or
both--

a. it represents that--

(1) it has determined that no other entity that the recipient's application proposes may or will receive award funds
(whether through a subaward ("subgrant"), procurement contract, or subcontract under a procurement contract) either
requires or has required internal confidentiality agreements or statements from employees or contractors that currently
prohibit or otherwise currently restrict (or purport to prohibit or restrict) employees or contractors from reporting waste,
fraud, or abuse as described above; and

(2) it has made appropriate inquiry, or otherwise has an adequate factual basis, to support this representation; and

b. it certifies that, if it learns or is notified that any subrecipient, contractor, or subcontractor entity that receives funds
under this award is or has been requiring its employees or contractors to execute agreements or statements that
prohibit or otherwise restrict (or purport to prohibit or restrict), reporting of waste, fraud, or abuse as described above, it
will immediately stop any further obligations of award funds to or by that entity, will provide prompt written notification to
the federal agency making this award, and will resume (or permit resumption of) such obligations only if expressly
authorized to do so by that agency.

20
Reclassification of various statutory provisions to a new Title 34 of the United States Code

On September 1, 2017, various statutory provisions previously codified elsewhere in the U.S. Code were editorially
reclassified (that is, moved and renumbered) to a new Title 34, entitled "Crime Control and Law Enforcement." The
reclassification encompassed a number of statutory provisions pertinent to OJP awards (that is, OJP grants and
cooperative agreements), including many provisions previously codified in Title 42 of the U.S. Code.

Page: 15 of 24



Effective as of September 1, 2017, any reference in this award document to a statutory provision that has been
reclassified to the new Title 34 of the U.S. Code is to be read as a reference to that statutory provision as reclassified
to Title 34. This rule of construction specifically includes references set out in award conditions, references set out in
material incorporated by reference through award conditions, and references set out in other award requirements.

21
Requirement to report actual or imminent breach of personally identifiable information (PII)

The recipient (and any "subrecipient" at any tier) must have written procedures in place to respond in the event of an
actual or imminent "breach" (OMB M-17-12) if it (or a subrecipient) -- (1) creates, collects, uses, processes, stores,
maintains, disseminates, discloses, or disposes of "Personally Identifiable Information (PII)" (2 CFR 200.1) within the
scope of an OJP grant-funded program or activity, or (2) uses or operates a "Federal information system" (OMB
Circular A-130). The recipient's breach procedures must include a requirement to report actual or imminent breach of
PII to an OJP Program Manager no later than 24 hours after an occurrence of an actual breach, or the detection of an
imminent breach.

22
Requirement to disclose whether recipient is designated "high risk" by a federal grant-making agency outside of DOJ

If the recipient is designated "high risk" by a federal grant-making agency outside of DOJ, currently or at any time
during the course of the period of performance under this award, the recipient must disclose that fact and certain
related information to OJP by email at OJP.ComplianceReporting@ojp.usdoj.gov. For purposes of this disclosure, high
risk includes any status under which a federal awarding agency provides additional oversight due to the recipient's past
performance, or other programmatic or financial concerns with the recipient. The recipient's disclosure must include the
following: 1. The federal awarding agency that currently designates the recipient high risk, 2. The date the recipient
was designated high risk, 3. The high-risk point of contact at that federal awarding agency (name, phone number, and
email address), and 4. The reasons for the high-risk status, as set out by the federal awarding agency.

23
Encouragement of policies to ban text messaging while driving

Pursuant to Executive Order 13513, "Federal Leadership on Reducing Text Messaging While Driving," 74 Fed. Reg.
51225 (October 1, 2009), DOJ encourages recipients and subrecipients ("subgrantees") to adopt and enforce policies
banning employees from text messaging while driving any vehicle during the course of performing work funded by this
award, and to establish workplace safety policies and conduct education, awareness, and other outreach to decrease
crashes caused by distracted drivers.

24
All subawards ("subgrants") must have specific federal authorization

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable requirements for
authorization of any subaward. This condition applies to agreements that -- for purposes of federal grants
administrative requirements -- OJP considers a "subaward" (and therefore does not consider a procurement
"contract").

The details of the requirement for authorization of any subaward are posted on the OJP web site at https://ojp.gov/
funding/Explore/SubawardAuthorization.htm (Award condition: All subawards ("subgrants") must have specific federal
authorization), and are incorporated by reference here.

25
Specific post-award approval required to use a noncompetitive approach in any procurement contract that would
exceed $250,000

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable requirements to obtain
specific advance approval to use a noncompetitive approach in any procurement contract that would exceed the

Page: 16 of 24



Simplified Acquisition Threshold (currently, $250,000). This condition applies to agreements that -- for purposes of
federal grants administrative requirements -- OJP considers a procurement "contract" (and therefore does not consider
a subaward).

The details of the requirement for advance approval to use a noncompetitive approach in a procurement contract under
an OJP award are posted on the OJP web site at https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/NoncompetitiveProcurement.htm
(Award condition: Specific post-award approval required to use a noncompetitive approach in a procurement contract
(if contract would exceed $250,000)), and are incorporated by reference here.

26
Requirements pertaining to prohibited conduct related to trafficking in persons (including reporting requirements and
OJP authority to terminate award)

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable requirements (including
requirements to report allegations) pertaining to prohibited conduct related to the trafficking of persons, whether on the
part of recipients, subrecipients ("subgrantees"), or individuals defined (for purposes of this condition) as "employees"
of the recipient or of any subrecipient.

The details of the recipient's obligations related to prohibited conduct related to trafficking in persons are posted on the
OJP web site at https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/ProhibitedConduct-Trafficking.htm (Award condition: Prohibited
conduct by recipients and subrecipients related to trafficking in persons (including reporting requirements and OJP
authority to terminate award)), and are incorporated by reference here.

27
Requirement to report potentially duplicative funding

If the recipient currently has other active awards of federal funds, or if the recipient receives any other award of federal
funds during the period of performance for this award, the recipient promptly must determine whether funds from any of
those other federal awards have been, are being, or are to be used (in whole or in part) for one or more of the identical
cost items for which funds are provided under this award. If so, the recipient must promptly notify the DOJ awarding
agency (OJP or OVW, as appropriate) in writing of the potential duplication, and, if so requested by the DOJ awarding
agency, must seek a budget-modification or change-of-project-scope Grant Award Modification (GAM) to eliminate any
inappropriate duplication of funding.

28
Reporting potential fraud, waste, and abuse, and similar misconduct

The recipient, and any subrecipients ("subgrantees") at any tier, must promptly refer to the DOJ Office of the Inspector
General (OIG) any credible evidence that a principal, employee, agent, subrecipient, contractor, subcontractor, or other
person has, in connection with funds under this award-- (1) submitted a claim that violates the False Claims Act; or (2)
committed a criminal or civil violation of laws pertaining to fraud, conflict of interest, bribery, gratuity, or similar
misconduct.

Potential fraud, waste, abuse, or misconduct involving or relating to funds under this award should be reported to the
OIG by--(1) online submission accessible via the OIG webpage at https://oig.justice.gov/hotline/contact-grants.htm
(select "Submit Report Online"); (2) mail directed to: U.S. Department of Justice, Office of the Inspector General,
Investigations Division, ATTN: Grantee Reporting, 950 Pennsylvania Ave., NW, Washington, DC 20530; and/or (3) by
facsimile directed to the DOJ OIG Investigations Division (Attn: Grantee Reporting) at (202) 616-9881 (fax).

Additional information is available from the DOJ OIG website at https://oig.justice.gov/hotline.

29
Requirements related to System for Award Management and Universal Identifier Requirements

The recipient must comply with applicable requirements regarding the System for Award Management (SAM), currently
accessible at https://www.sam.gov/. This includes applicable requirements regarding registration with SAM, as well as
maintaining the currency of information in SAM.

Page: 17 of 24



The recipient also must comply with applicable restrictions on subawards ("subgrants") to first-tier subrecipients (first-
tier "subgrantees"), including restrictions on subawards to entities that do not acquire and provide (to the recipient) the
unique entity identifier required for SAM registration.

The details of the recipient's obligations related to SAM and to unique entity identifiers are posted on the OJP web site
at https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/SAM.htm (Award condition: System for Award Management (SAM) and Universal
Identifier Requirements), and are incorporated by reference here.

This condition does not apply to an award to an individual who received the award as a natural person (i.e., unrelated
to any business or non-profit organization that he or she may own or operate in his or her name).

30
Restrictions on "lobbying"

In general, as a matter of federal law, federal funds awarded by OJP may not be used by the recipient, or any
subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, either directly or indirectly, to support or oppose the enactment, repeal,
modification, or adoption of any law, regulation, or policy, at any level of government. See 18 U.S.C. 1913. (There may
be exceptions if an applicable federal statute specifically authorizes certain activities that otherwise would be barred by
law.)

Another federal law generally prohibits federal funds awarded by OJP from being used by the recipient, or any
subrecipient at any tier, to pay any person to influence (or attempt to influence) a federal agency, a Member of
Congress, or Congress (or an official or employee of any of them) with respect to the awarding of a federal grant or
cooperative agreement, subgrant, contract, subcontract, or loan, or with respect to actions such as renewing,
extending, or modifying any such award. See 31 U.S.C. 1352. Certain exceptions to this law apply, including an
exception that applies to Indian tribes and tribal organizations.

Should any question arise as to whether a particular use of federal funds by a recipient (or subrecipient) would or might
fall within the scope of these prohibitions, the recipient is to contact OJP for guidance, and may not proceed without the
express prior written approval of OJP.

31
FFATA reporting: Subawards and executive compensation

The recipient must comply with applicable requirements to report first-tier subawards ("subgrants") of $30,000 or more
and, in certain circumstances, to report the names and total compensation of the five most highly compensated
executives of the recipient and first-tier subrecipients (first-tier "subgrantees") of award funds. The details of recipient
obligations, which derive from the Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act of 2006 (FFATA), are posted
on the OJP web site at https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/FFATA.htm (Award condition: Reporting Subawards and
Executive Compensation), and are incorporated by reference here.

This condition, including its reporting requirement, does not apply to-- (1) an award of less than $30,000, or (2) an
award made to an individual who received the award as a natural person (i.e., unrelated to any business or non-profit
organization that he or she may own or operate in his or her name).

32
The recipient agrees to submit to BJA for review and approval any product (e.g., curricula, training materials,
publications, reports, videos, or any other written, web-based, or audio-visual, or other materials) that will be developed
and published under this award at least thirty (30) working days prior to the targeted dissemination date. The current
edition of the DOJ Grants Financial Guide provides guidance on allowable printing and publication activities. Any
products developed under this award, (with the exception of press releases, web sites, and mobile applications), shall
contain the following statements: “This project was supported by Grant No. <Award_Number> awarded by the Bureau
of Justice Assistance, Office of Justice Programs, U.S. Department of Justice. Points of view or opinions in this
document are those of the author and do not necessarily represent the official position or policies of the U.S.
Department of Justice." (Note: A separate disclaimer has been developed and is required for web sites and mobile
applications. No disclaimer is required for press releases.)

Page: 18 of 24



33
The recipient agrees to cooperate with any assessments, national evaluation efforts, or information or data collection
requests, including, but not limited to, the provision of any information required for the assessment or evaluation of any
activities within this project.

34
Verification and updating of recipient contact information

The recipient must verify its Grant Award Administrator, Financial Manager, and Authorized Representative contact
information in JustGrants, including telephone number and e-mail address. If any information is incorrect or has
changed, the award recipient’s Entity Administrator must make changes to contact information through DIAMD.
Instructions on how to update contact information in JustGrants can be found at https://justicegrants.usdoj.gov/training/
training-entity-management.

35
Required attendance at BJA-sponsored events

The recipient (and its subrecipients at any tier) must participate in BJA-sponsored training events, technical assistance
events, or conferences held by BJA or its designees, upon BJA's request.

36
Cooperating with OJP Monitoring

The recipient agrees to cooperate with OJP monitoring of this award pursuant to OJP's guidelines, protocols, and
procedures, and to cooperate with OJP (including the grant manager for this award and the Office of Chief Financial
Officer (OCFO)) requests related to such monitoring, including requests related to desk reviews and/or site visits. The
recipient agrees to provide to OJP all documentation necessary for OJP to complete its monitoring tasks, including
documentation related to any subawards made under this award. Further, the recipient agrees to abide by reasonable
deadlines set by OJP for providing the requested documents. Failure to cooperate with OJP's monitoring activities may
result in actions that affect the recipient's DOJ awards, including, but not limited to: withholdings and/or other
restrictions on the recipient's access to award funds; referral to the DOJ OIG for audit review; designation of the
recipient as a DOJ High Risk grantee; or termination of an award(s).

37
Protection of human research subjects 

The recipient (and any subrecipient at any tier) must comply with the requirements of 28 C.F.R. Part 46 and all OJP
policies and procedures regarding the protection of human research subjects, including obtainment of Institutional
Review Board approval, if appropriate, and subject informed consent.

38
Confidentiality of data

The recipient (and any subrecipient at any tier) must comply with all confidentiality requirements of 34 U.S.C. 10231
and 28 C.F.R. Part 22 that are applicable to collection, use, and revelation of data or information. The recipient further
agrees, as a condition of award approval, to submit a Privacy Certificate that is in accord with requirements of 28
C.F.R. Part 22 and, in particular, 28 C.F.R. 22.23.

39
Any Web site that is funded in whole or in part under this award must include the following statement on the home
page, on all major entry pages (i.e., pages (exclusive of documents) whose primary purpose is to navigate the user to
interior content), and on any pages from which a visitor may access or use a Web-based service, including any pages
that provide results or outputs from the service: "This Web site is funded in whole or in part through a grant from the
Bureau of Justice Assistance, Office of Justice Programs, U.S. Department of Justice. Neither the U.S. Department of

Page: 19 of 24



Justice nor any of its components operate, control, are responsible for, or necessarily endorse, this Web site (including,
without limitation, its content, technical infrastructure, and policies, and any services or tools provided)." The full text of
the foregoing statement must be clearly visible on the home page. On other pages, the statement may be included
through a link, entitled "Notice of Federal Funding and Federal Disclaimer," to the full text of the statement.

40
Applicants must ensure that Limited English Proficiency persons have meaningful access to the services under this
program(s). National origin discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To
ensure compliance with Title VI and the Safe Streets Act, recipients are required to take reasonable steps to ensure
that LEP persons have meaningful access to their programs. Meaningful access may entail providing language
assistance services, including oral and written translation when necessary. The U.S. Department of Justice has issued
guidance for grantees to help them comply with Title VI requirements. The guidance document can be accessed on the
Internet at www.lep.gov.

41
Body armor - compliance with NIJ standards and other requirements 

Ballistic-resistant and stab-resistant body armor purchased with award funds may be purchased at any threat level,
make or model, from any distributor or manufacturer, as long as the body armor has been tested and found to comply
with applicable National Institute of Justice ballistic or stab standards, and is listed on the NIJ Compliant Body Armor
Model List. In addition, ballistic-resistant and stab-resistant body armor purchased must be made in the United States
and must be uniquely fitted, as set forth in 34 U.S.C. 10202(c)(1)(A). The latest NIJ standard information and the NIJ
Compliant Body Armor List may be found by following the links located on the NIJ Body Armor page: https://nij.ojp.gov/
topics/equipment-and-technology/body-armor. In addition, if recipient uses funds under this award to purchase body
armor, the recipient is strongly encouraged to have a "mandatory wear" policy in effect. There are no requirements
regarding the nature of the policy other than it be a mandatory wear policy for all uniformed officers while on duty.

42
In accepting this award, the recipient agrees that grant funds cannot be used for Facial Recognition Technology (FRT)
unless the recipient has policies and procedures in place to ensure that the FRT will be utilized in an appropriate and
responsible manner that promotes public safety, and protects privacy, civil rights, and civil liberties and complies with
all applicable provisions of the U.S. Constitution, including the Fourth Amendment’s protection against unreasonable
searches and seizures and the First Amendment’s freedom of association and speech, as well as other laws and
regulations. Recipients utilizing funds for FRT must make such policies and procedures available to DOJ upon request.

43
The grantee agrees to secure and maintain on file signed statements by each member of the selection committee
appointed by the United States Attorney or the PSN Task Force indicating that in making recommendations or
decisions regarding contracts or subgrants paid for by this grant, the member had no conflict of interest. Such
statements must include all of the language included in the PSN Conflict of Interest Certification, however, the grantee
may use a different format or may add other related certifications of their own.

44
Justification of consultant rate

Approval of this award does not indicate approval of any consultant rate in excess of $650 per day. A detailed
justification must be submitted to and approved by the OJP program office prior to obligation or expenditure of such
funds.

45
The recipient agrees to ensure that 30 percent of PSN funding is used to support gang task forces in the United States
regions experiencing a significant or increased presence of criminal or transnational organizations engaging in high
levels of violent crime, firearms offenses, human trafficking, and drug trafficking.

46

Page: 20 of 24



The recipient agrees to submit to DOJ for review and approval, any proposal or plan for Project Safe Neighborhoods
media-related outreach. DOJ approval must be received prior to any obligation or expenditure of grant funds related to
the development of media-related outreach projects.

47
The recipient agrees to coordinate the project with the U.S. Attorney and Project Safe Neighborhoods Task Force for
the district covered by the award. The recipient also is encouraged to coordinate with other community justice
initiatives, and other ongoing, local gun prosecution and law enforcement strategies.

48
PSN Fiscal Agent Definition

References in this award document to "recipient" and "fiscal agent" both refer equally to the entity or organization
receiving this award directly.

49
The recipient understands and agrees that no more than 10 percent of the total amount of this award may be used by
the recipient for costs associated with administering the award.

50
The recipient understands that proposed subawards are approved on a provisional basis only. The recipient may not
obligate, expend, or draw down funds for subawards until BJA provides explicit written approval of the proposed
subaward. Prior approval for all subawards must be obtained post-award, through the submission and approval of a
Grant Award Modification (GAM) through OJP’s JustGrants system.

51
Required monitoring of subawards

The recipient must monitor subawards under this award in accordance with all applicable statutes, regulations, award
conditions, and the DOJ Grants Financial Guide, and must include the applicable conditions of this award in any
subaward. Among other things, the recipient is responsible for oversight of subrecipient spending and monitoring of
specific outcomes and benefits attributable to use of award funds by subrecipients. The recipient agrees to submit,
upon request, documentation of its policies and procedures for monitoring of subawards under this award.

52
The recipient understands that, in accepting this award, the Authorized Representative declares and certifies, among
other things, that he or she possesses the requisite legal authority to accept the award on behalf of the recipient entity
and, in so doing, accepts (or adopts) all material requirements that relate to conduct throughout the period of
performance under this award. The recipient further understands, and agrees, that it will not assign anyone to the role
of Authorized Representative during the period of performance under the award without first ensuring that the
individual has the requisite legal authority.

53
If award funds are used for DNA testing of evidentiary materials, any resulting eligible DNA profiles must be uploaded
to the Combined DNA Index System ("CODIS," the DNA database operated by the FBI) by a government DNA
laboratory with access to CODIS. With the exception of Forensic Genetic Genealogy, no profiles generated under this
award may be entered or uploaded into any non-governmental DNA database without prior express written approval
from BJA. Award funds may not be used for the purchase of DNA equipment and supplies unless the resulting DNA
profiles may be accepted for entry into CODIS. Booking agencies should work with their state CODIS agency to ensure
all requirements are met for participation in Rapid DNA (see National Rapid DNA Booking Operational Procedures
Manual).

54
The recipient agrees that no funds under this grant award (including via subcontract or subaward, at any tier) may be

Page: 21 of 24



used for unmanned aircraft systems (UAS), which includes unmanned aircraft vehicles (UAV), or for any
accompanying accessories to support UAS.

55
Limit on use of grant funds for grantees' employees' salaries

With respect to this award, federal funds may not be used to pay cash compensation (salary plus bonuses) to any
employee of the award recipient at a rate that exceeds 110% of the maximum annual salary payable to a member of
the federal government's Senior Executive Service (SES) at an agency with a Certified SES Performance Appraisal
System for that year. (An award recipient may compensate an employee at a higher rate, provided the amount in
excess of this compensation limitation is paid with non-federal funds.)

This limitation on compensation rates allowable under this award may be waived on an individual basis at the
discretion of the OJP official indicated in the program announcement under which this award is made.

[X] 
I have read and understand the information presented in this section of the Federal Award Instrument.

 

Award Acceptance

Declaration and Certification to the U.S. Department of Justice as to Acceptance

By checking the declaration and certification box below, I-- 

A.    Declare to the U.S. Department of Justice (DOJ), under penalty of perjury, that I have authority to make this
declaration and certification on behalf of the applicant.

B.    Certify to DOJ, under penalty of perjury, on behalf of myself and the applicant, to the best of my knowledge and
belief, that the following are true as of the date of this award acceptance: (1) I have conducted or there was conducted
(including by applicant’s legal counsel as appropriate and made available to me) a diligent review of all terms and
conditions of, and all supporting materials submitted in connection with, this award, including any assurances and
certifications (including anything submitted  in connection therewith by a person on behalf of the applicant before, after,
or at the time of the application submission and any materials that accompany this acceptance and certification); and
(2) I have the legal authority to accept this award on behalf of the applicant. 

C.    Accept this award on behalf of the applicant.

D.    Declare the following to DOJ, under penalty of perjury, on behalf of myself and the applicant:  (1) I understand
that, in taking (or not taking) any action pursuant to this declaration and certification, DOJ will rely upon this declaration
and certification as a material representation; and (2) I understand that any materially false, fictitious, or fraudulent
information or statement in this declaration and certification (or concealment or omission of a material fact as to either)
may be the subject of criminal prosecution (including under 18 U.S.C. §§ 1001 and/or 1621, and/or 34 U.S.C. §§
10271-10273), and also may subject me and the applicant to civil penalties and administrative remedies under the
federal False Claims Act (including under 31 U.S.C. §§ 3729-3730 and/or §§ 3801-3812) or otherwise.

Agency Approval

Title of Approving Official
Assistant Attorney General

Name of Approving Official
Amy Solomon

Signed Date And Time
9/19/23 2:58 PM

Authorized Representative

 Declaration and Certification

Entity Acceptance

Page: 22 of 24



Title of Authorized Entity Official
County Administrator

Name of Authorized Entity Official
Patrick Thompson

Signed Date And Time
9/28/2023 2:30 PM

 

Page: 23 of 24



Resolution Executive Summary 
Prepared By:   Marlana Dokken 

Committee:   Public Safety & Judiciary Committee 

Committee Date:   October 18, 2023 

Resolution Title:  RESOLUTION ACCEPTING AWARD AND AUTHORIZING SERVICE AGREEMENT FOR 

THE VIOLENT CRIME REDUCTION IN ILLINOIS COMMUNITIES (VCRIC) PROGRAM 

County Code: Winnebago County Purchasing Ordinance 

Board Meeting Date:   October 26, 2023 

Budget Information: 

Was item budgeted?    Yes      Amount:   $282,538 

If not, explain funding source:   U.S. Department of Justice 

ORG/OBJ/Project Code: 61400/Various/02703  Budget Impact:   n/a 

Background Information:  The Chairman’s Office of Criminal Justice Initiatives proposes to accept an 
award from the Illinois Criminal Justice Information Authority (ICJIA) and enter into a sub-agreement with 
a grassroots non-profit to provide Navigator services for moderate and high risk individuals involved, or 
formerly involved, in our criminal justice system. The award provides funding for 3 part-time 
evening/weekend Navigators and a Program Coordinator. Winnebago County will enter into agreement 
with GET CONNECTED 815 to provide Navigators services. Also included is funding for grant compliance 
and reentry assessor services which will be provided by WINNEBAGO COUNTY.  

Recommendation:    I recommend the following Agreements: 

1) Accept Award Agreement from Illinois Criminal Justice Information Authority $282,538  
2) Sub- Agreement with Get Connected 815 $177,768 

Contract/Agreement: County will accept, thereby entering into Agreement with the ILLINOIS CRIMINAL 
JUSTICE INFORMATION AUTHORITY (ICJIA); and execute Agreement with GET CONNECTED 815 ($177,768) 
which will contain a 30-day out clause.  

Legal Review:  Legal has reviewed agreement with ICJIA and will review Sub-Agreement prior to 
execution. 

Follow-Up:   Chairman’s Office of Criminal Justice Initiatives will proceed with agreement(s) executions. 



County Board:  October 26, 2023 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Sponsored by:   Brad Lindmark 
Submitted by:   Public Safety and Judiciary Committee 

2023 CR

RESOLUTION ACCEPTING AWARD AND AUTHORIZING SERVICE AGREEMENT FOR THE VIOLENT 
CRIME REDUCTION IN ILLINOIS COMMUNITIES (VCRIC) PROGRAM 

 WHEREAS, Winnebago County has been awarded the Violent Crime Reduction in 
Illinois Communities (VCRIC) Program grant from the Illinois Criminal Justice Information 
Authority; and 

WHEREAS, the Public Safety & Judiciary Committee of the County Board for the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois, has reviewed the agreement from the Illinois Criminal Justice 
Information Authority; and 

WHEREAS, the Public Safety & Judiciary Committee has determined that the funding 
for the aforementioned purchase shall be paid as follows: 

61400/various/02702 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois that the County Board Chairman is authorized to execute, on behalf of the County of 
Winnebago, an Agreement with the ILLINOIS CRIMINAL JUSTICE INFORMATION AUTHORITY, 
in the dollar amount two hundred eighty-two thousand five hundred thirty-eight dollars 
($282,538) and Sub Agreement with GET CONNECTED 815, in the amount of one hundred 
seventy-seven thousand seven hundred sixty-eight dollars ($177,768). 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois that Joseph Chiarelli, the Winnebago County Board Chairman, is authorized and directed to 
execute the aforementioned Agreements, in substantially the same form as the Agreements 
attached hereto as Resolution Exhibit B. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective 
immediately upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to 
prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the Chairman’s Office of Criminal 
Justice Initiatives, Director of Purchasing, Finance Director, County Board Office, and County 
Auditor.        



 

                 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 

  PUBLIC SAFETY and JUDICIARY COMMITTEE 
            

                  
AGREE  DISAGREE 

 
 

  

BRAD LINDMARK, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 BRAD LINDMARK, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

AARON BOOKER 
 
 

 AARON BOOKER 
 

KEVIN MCCARTHY  KEVIN MCCARTHY 
 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

                                                                          JEAN CROSBY 
 

 
CHRIS SCROL 
 
 

 CHRIS SCROL 
 

ANGIE GORAL 
 
 

 ANGIE GORAL 
 

TIM NABORS 
 
 

 TIM NABORS 
 

The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2023. 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH V. CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 

 



GRANT SUMMARY WORKSHEET 

404 Elm Street, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.us 

Prepared By: Marlana Dokken 

Committee: Public Safety & Judiciary Committee 

Committee Date: 10/18/23 

Resolution Title: Resolution Accepting Award and Authorizing Service Agreement for the 
Violent Crime Reduction in Illinois Communities (VCRIC) Program 

Board Meeting Date: 10/26/23 

All new grant awards must be approved through their respective Committees prior to presenting 
for Board approval. Those requiring a budget modification must also be approved by the Finance 
Committee. To provide the County Board with the information needed for compliance 
requirements, please provide a complete Committee and Board packet that includes this form, 
the Executive Summary, Resolution, and Award. 

Funding Information: 
Grant Period of Performance: 10/01/23 – 02/28/2025 

Is match required?     yes    no 

- If yes, did you work with Accounting to determine match allocation?    yes    no 

Are Indirect Costs Allowable under the award?   yes    no 

- If yes, is the 10% de minimus Indirect Cost rate included in the budget?    yes    no 
Indirect Cost Base includes: salaries, fringe benefits, travel, supplies, training, and up to the first $25,000 of each 
subaward. 

- If no, please explain:

Does funding agreement contain Special Conditions that may prohibit another department’s 
ability to apply for funding?                                                                                         yes     no  

- If yes, please explain:

How many sub-awards are included in this award?   One (1) 

- Do subawards/contracts contain Indirect Costs?    yes    no 
- If yes, please provide Indirect Cost rates and total Indirect applied to each subaward or

contract: $2,508.00

http://www.wincoil.us/


 Agreement No. 420060 

State of Illinois 
GRANT AGREEMENT FISCAL YEAR 2024 / 4/27/2023 

Page 1 of 64 

GRANT AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN 

THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, ILLINOIS CRIMINAL JUSTICE INFORMATION AUTHORITY 
AND 

WINNEBAGO COUNTY 

The parties to this Grant Agreement (Agreement) are the State of Illinois (State), acting through the undersigned 
agency (Grantor) and Winnebago County (Grantee) (collectively, the "Parties" and individually, a "Party"). The 
Agreement, consisting of the signature page, the parts listed below, and any additional exhibits or attachments 
referenced in this Agreement, constitute the entire agreement between the Parties. No promises, terms, or 
conditions not recited, incorporated or referenced herein, including prior agreements or oral discussions, are binding 
upon either Grantee or Grantor.  

PART ONE – The Uniform Terms 

Article I Definitions 
Article II Award Information 
Article III Grantee Certifications and Representations  
Article IV Payment Requirements 
Article V  Scope of Award Activities/Purpose of Award 
Article VI Budget 
Article VII Allowable Costs  
Article VIII Lobbying  
Article IX Maintenance and Accessibility of Records; Monitoring  
Article X Financial Reporting Requirements  
Article XI Performance Reporting Requirements  
Article XII Audit Requirements  
Article XIII Termination; Suspension; Non-compliance  
Article XIV Subcontracts/Subawards  
Article XV Notice of Change  
Article XVI Structural Reorganization and Reconstitution of Board Membership 
Article XVII Conflict of Interest 
Article XVIII Equipment or Property 
Article XIX Promotional Materials; Prior Notification 
Article XX Insurance 
Article XXI Lawsuits and Indemnification 
Article XXII Miscellaneous 
Exhibit A Project Description 
Exhibit B Deliverables or Milestones 
Exhibit C Contact Information 
Exhibit D Performance Measures and Standards 
Exhibit E  Specific Conditions 

PART TWO –  Grantor-Specific Terms 



  Agreement No. 420060 
 
 

State of Illinois 
GRANT AGREEMENT FISCAL YEAR 2024 / 4/27/2023 

Page 2 of 64 
 
 

PART THREE – Project-Specific Terms 

The Parties or their duly authorized representatives hereby execute this Agreement.  

 

ILLINOIS CRIMINAL JUSTICE INFORMATION AUTHORITY  WINNEBAGO COUNTY 

 

 

By: ____________________________________  By: ____________________________________ 
Delrice Adams, Executive Director    Joseph Chiarelli, Chairman 
Date: ____________________________________  Date: __________________________________ 
 
 

       By: ________________________________________ 
 Steve Schultz, Chief Financial Officer 

  Date: ______________________________________ 
   

 

   By: ______________________________________ 
 Marlana Dokken, Director, Chairman’s Office of 

Criminal Justice Initiatives 

  Date: __________________________________ 

  



  Agreement No. 420060 
 
 

State of Illinois 
GRANT AGREEMENT FISCAL YEAR 2024 / 4/27/2023 

Page 3 of 64 
 
 

 
PART ONE – THE UNIFORM TERMS 

 
ARTICLE I 

DEFINITIONS 
 

1.1. Definitions. Capitalized words and phrases used in this Agreement have the meanings stated in 2 
CFR 200.1 unless otherwise stated below. 

 
“Allowable Costs” has the same meaning as in 44 Ill. Admin. Code 7000.30. 
 
“Award” has the same meaning as in 44 Ill. Admin. Code 7000.30. 
 
“Budget” has the same meaning as in 44 Ill. Admin. Code 7000.30. 
 
“Catalog of State Financial Assistance” or “CSFA” has the same meaning as in 44 Ill. Admin. Code 7000.30. 
 
 “Close-out Report” means a report from the Grantee allowing Grantor to determine whether all applicable 

administrative actions and required work have been completed, and therefore closeout actions can commence. 
 
“Conflict of Interest” has the same meaning as in 44 Ill. Admin. Code 7000.30. 
 
"Cooperative Research and Development Agreement" has the same meaning as in 15 USC 3710a. 
 
“Direct Costs” has the same meaning as in 44 Ill. Admin. Code 7000.30. 
 
“Financial Assistance” has the same meaning as in 44 Ill. Admin. Code 7000.30.  
 
“GATU” has the same meaning as in 44 Ill. Admin. Code 7000.30. 

 
“Grant Agreement” has the same meaning as in 44 Ill. Admin. Code 7000.30. 
 
“Grant Funds” means the Financial Assistance made available to Grantee through this Agreement.  
 
“Grantee Portal” has the same meaning as in 44 Ill. Admin. Code 7000.30. 

“Indirect Costs” has the same meaning as in 44 Ill. Admin. Code 7000.30.  

 “Indirect Cost Rate” means a device for determining in a reasonable manner the proportion of Indirect Costs 
each Program should bear. It is a ratio (expressed as a percentage) of the Indirect Costs to a Direct Cost base. If 
reimbursement of Indirect Costs is allowable under an Award, Grantor will not reimburse those Indirect Costs unless 
Grantee has established an Indirect Cost Rate covering the applicable activities and period of time, unless Indirect 
Costs are reimbursed at a fixed rate.  
 
 “Indirect Cost Rate Proposal” has the same meaning as in 44 Ill. Admin. Code 7000.30. 
 

“Obligations” has the same meaning as in 44 Ill. Admin. Code 7000.30. 
 
 “Period of Performance” has the same meaning as in 44 Ill. Admin. Code 7000.30.   



  Agreement No. 420060 
 
 

State of Illinois 
GRANT AGREEMENT FISCAL YEAR 2024 / 4/27/2023 

Page 4 of 64 
 
 

 “Prior Approval” has the same meaning as in 44 Ill. Admin. Code 7000.30. 
 
 “Profit” means an entity’s total revenue less its operating expenses, interest paid, depreciation, and taxes. 
“Profit” is synonymous with the term “net revenue.” 
 
 “Program” means the services to be provided pursuant to this Agreement.  "Program" is used 
interchangeably with "Project." 
 
 “Program Costs” means all Allowable Costs incurred by Grantee and the value of the contributions made by 
third parties in accomplishing the objectives of the Award during the Term of this Agreement. 
 
 “Related Parties” has the meaning set forth in Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting 
Standards Codification (ASC) 850-10-20. 
 
 “SAM” means the federal System for Award Management (SAM), the federal repository into which an entity 
must provide information required for the conduct of business as a recipient. 
 
 "State Grantee Compliance Enforcement System" means the statewide framework for State agencies to 
manage occurrences of non-compliance with Award requirements. 
 
 “State-issued Award” means the assistance that a grantee receives directly from a State agency.  The funding 
source of the State-issued Award can be federal pass-through, State or a combination thereof. "State-issued Award" 
does not include the following: 

• contracts issued pursuant to the Illinois Procurement Code that a State agency uses to buy goods or services 
from a contractor or a contract to operate State government-owned, contractor-operated facilities;  

• agreements that meet the definition of "contract" under 2 CFR 200.1 and 2 CFR 200.331, which a State 
agency uses to procure goods or services but are exempt from the Illinois Procurement Code due to an 
exemption listed under 30 ILCS 500/1-10, or pursuant to a disaster proclamation, executive order, or any 
other exemption permitted by law;  

• amounts received for services rendered to an individual; 
• Cooperative Research and Development Agreements; 
• an agreement that provides only direct cash assistance to an individual; 
• a subsidy; 
• a loan; 
• a loan guarantee; or 
• insurance. 

  
 “Illinois Stop Payment List” has the same meaning as in 44 Ill. Admin. Code 7000.30. 
 
 “Unallowable Cost” has the same meaning as in 44 Ill. Admin. Code 7000.30. 
 
 “Unique Entity Identifier” or “UEI” has the same meaning as in 44 Ill. Admin. Code 7000.30. 

  

http://financial-dictionary.thefreedictionary.com/Total+Revenue
http://financial-dictionary.thefreedictionary.com/Operating+Expenses
http://financial-dictionary.thefreedictionary.com/Interest
http://financial-dictionary.thefreedictionary.com/Depreciation


  Agreement No. 420060 
 
 

State of Illinois 
GRANT AGREEMENT FISCAL YEAR 2024 / 4/27/2023 

Page 5 of 64 
 
 

ARTICLE II 
AWARD INFORMATION 

 
2.1. Term. This Agreement is effective on 10/1/2023 and expires on 2/28/2025 (the Term), unless 

terminated pursuant to this Agreement. 
 
2.2. Amount of Agreement. Grant Funds (check one) ☒ must not exceed or  are estimated to be 

$282,538.00, of which $282,538.00 are federal funds. Grantee accepts Grantor’s payment as specified in this 
ARTICLE.  

 
2.3. Payment. Payment will be made as follows (see additional payment requirements in ARTICLE IV; 

additional payment provisions specific to this Award may be included in PART TWO or PART THREE):  
The Grantor agrees to make payment to the Grantee for the administration and implementation of the program 
described in Exhibits A, B, D, and E. Upon receipt of the fiscal and progress reports, payments will be made to the 
Grantee. No payment will be made until all outstanding reports are received by the Grantor, including outstanding 
reports from previously funded Grantor programs. No payment will be made to Grantee unless and until Grantee is 
in full compliance with applicable State and federal laws and the terms and conditions of this agreement.  
 
Grantee must provide for the deposit of grant funds into a bank account in the name of the Grantee. Grant funds 
shall be immediately deposited into such bank account. Grantee may deposit such funds into an account separate 
from any of its other bank accounts or treat such funds as a separate line item per its budget and audited financial 
statements. If Grantee receives more than one award from the Grantor, Grantee shall ensure that the grant funds 
for each award are accounted for separately. 
 

1.1. Award Identification Numbers.  If applicable, the Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN) is 
2020-DJ-BX-0017, the federal awarding agency is U.S. Department of Justice Programs, Bureau of Justice Assistance, 
and the Federal Award date is September 19, 2020. The Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) Name is the 
2020 BJA Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) Program – State Solicitation and the Assistance 
Listing Number is 16.738.  The Catalog of State Financial Assistance (CSFA) Number is 546-00-2094.  The State Award 
Identification Number is 2094-44673. 

 
 

ARTICLE II 
GRANTEE CERTIFICATIONS AND REPRESENTATIONS 

 
3.1. Registration Certification.  Grantee certifies that: (i) it is registered with SAM and SBEVXUKXKGK3 is 

Grantee’s correct UEI; (ii) it is in good standing with the Illinois Secretary of State, if applicable; and (iii) Grantee has 
successfully completed the annual registration and prequalification through the Grantee Portal.  
 

Grantee must remain current with these registrations and requirements. If Grantee’s status with regard to any of 
these requirements changes, or the certifications made in and information provided in the uniform grant application 
changes, Grantee must notify Grantor in accordance with ARTICLE XV. 
 

3.2. Tax Identification Certification. Grantee certifies that: 366006681 is Grantee’s correct federal 
employer identification number (FEIN) or Social Security Number. Grantee further certifies, if applicable: (a) that 
Grantee is not subject to backup withholding because (i) Grantee is exempt from backup withholding, or (ii) Grantee 
has not been notified by the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) that Grantee is subject to backup withholding as a result 
of a failure to report all interest or dividends, or (iii) the IRS has notified Grantee that Grantee is no longer subject to 
backup withholding; and (b) Grantee is a U.S. citizen or other U.S. person.  Grantee is doing business as a (check 



  Agreement No. 420060 
 
 

State of Illinois 
GRANT AGREEMENT FISCAL YEAR 2024 / 4/27/2023 

Page 6 of 64 
 
 

one): 
 ☐ Individual    ☐ Pharmacy-Non-Corporate  
 ☐ Sole Proprietorship   ☐ Pharmacy/Funeral Home/Cemetery Corp. 
 ☐ Partnership    ☐ Tax Exempt 

 ☐      Corporation (includes Not For Profit) ☐ Limited Liability Company (select 

 ☐ Medical Corporation     applicable tax classification) 

 ☒ Governmental Unit     ☐  P = partnership 

☐ Estate or Trust      ☐  C = corporation 
 
If Grantee has not received a payment from the State of Illinois in the last two years, Grantee must submit a W-9 tax 
form with this Agreement.  
 

3.3. Compliance with Uniform Grant Rules.  Grantee certifies that it must adhere to the applicable 
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, which are 
published in Title 2, Part 200 of the Code of Federal Regulations (2 CFR Part 200) and are incorporated herein by 
reference.  44 Ill. Admin. Code 7000.40(c)(1)(A).  The requirements of 2 CFR Part 200 apply to the Grant Funds 
awarded through this Agreement, regardless of whether the original source of the funds is State or federal, unless 
an exception is noted in federal or State statutes or regulations.  30 ILCS 708/5(b).   

 
3.4. Representations and Use of Funds. Grantee certifies under oath that (1) all representations made in 

this Agreement are true and correct and (2) all Grant Funds awarded pursuant to this Agreement must be used only 
for the purpose(s) described herein. Grantee acknowledges that the Award is made solely upon this certification and 
that any false statements, misrepresentations, or material omissions will be the basis for immediate termination of 
this Agreement and repayment of all Grant Funds. 

 
3.5. Specific Certifications. Grantee is responsible for compliance with the enumerated certifications in 

this Paragraph to the extent that the certifications apply to Grantee. 
 

(a) Bribery. Grantee certifies that it has not been convicted of bribery or attempting to bribe 
an officer or employee of the State of Illinois, nor made an admission of guilt of such conduct which is a 
matter of record. 

 
 (b) Bid Rigging. Grantee certifies that it has not been barred from contracting with a unit of 
State or local government as a result of a violation of Paragraph 33E-3 or 33E-4 of the Criminal Code of 2012 
(720 ILCS 5/33E-3 or 720 ILCS 5/33E-4, respectively). 
 

(c) Debt to State. Grantee certifies that neither it, nor its affiliate(s), is/are barred from 
receiving an Award because Grantee, or its affiliate(s), is/are delinquent in the payment of any debt to the 
State, unless Grantee, or its affiliate(s), has/have entered into a deferred payment plan to pay off the debt. 

 (d) International Boycott. Grantee certifies that neither it nor any substantially owned 
affiliated company is participating or will participate in an international boycott in violation of the provision 
of the Anti-Boycott Act of 2018, Part II of the Export Control Reform Act of 2018 (50 USC 4841 through 
4843), and the anti-boycott provisions set forth in Part 760 of the federal Export Administration Regulations 
(15 CFR Parts 730 through 774). 
 
 (e) Discriminatory Club Dues or Fees. Grantee certifies that it is not prohibited from receiving 



  Agreement No. 420060 
 
 

State of Illinois 
GRANT AGREEMENT FISCAL YEAR 2024 / 4/27/2023 

Page 7 of 64 
 
 

an Award because it pays dues or fees on behalf of its employees or agents, or subsidizes or otherwise 
reimburses employees or agents for payment of their dues or fees to any club which unlawfully discriminates 
(775 ILCS 25/2). 
 
 (f) Pro-Children Act. Grantee certifies that it is in compliance with the Pro-Children Act of 
2001 in that it prohibits smoking in any portion of its facility used for the provision of health, day care, early 
childhood development services, education or library services to children under the age of eighteen (18) 
(except such portions of the facilities which are used for inpatient substance abuse treatment) (20 USC 7181-
7184). 

 
  (g) Drug-Free Workplace. If Grantee is not an individual, Grantee certifies it will provide a 

drug free workplace pursuant to the Drug Free Workplace Act.  30 ILCS 580/3.  If Grantee is an individual and 
this Agreement is valued at more than $5,000, Grantee certifies it will not engage in the unlawful 
manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession, or use of a controlled substance during the 
performance of the Agreement.  30 ILCS 580/4. Grantee further certifies that if it is a recipient of federal 
pass-through funds, it is in compliance with the government-wide requirements for a drug-free workplace as 
set forth in 41 USC 8103.  

 (h) Motor Voter Law. Grantee certifies that it is in full compliance with the terms and 
provisions of the National Voter Registration Act of 1993 (52 USC 20501 et seq.). 

(i) Clean Air Act and Clean Water Act. Grantee certifies that it is in compliance with all 
applicable standards, orders or regulations issued pursuant to the Clean Air Act (42 USC 7401 et seq.) and 
the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended (33 USC 1251 et seq.).  
 

(j) Debarment. Grantee certifies that it is not debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment 
or permanent inclusion on the Illinois Stop Payment List, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from 
participation in this Agreement by any federal department or agency (2 CFR 200.205(a)), or by the State (30 
ILCS 708/25(6)(G)). 
 

(k) Non-procurement Debarment and Suspension. Grantee certifies that it is in compliance 
with Subpart C of 2 CFR Part 180 as supplemented by 2 CFR Part 376, Subpart C. 

 
  (l) Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. Grantee certifies that it is in 
compliance with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA) (Public Law No. 
104-191, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164, and the Social Security Act, 42 USC 1320d-2 through 1320d-7), in 
that it may not use or disclose protected health information other than as permitted or required by law and 
agrees to use appropriate safeguards to prevent use or disclosure of the protected health information. 
Grantee must maintain, for a minimum of six (6) years, all protected health information. 
 

(m) Criminal Convictions. Grantee certifies that: 
 
 (i)  Neither it nor a managerial agent of Grantee (for non-governmental grantees only, this 
includes any officer, director or partner of Grantee) has been convicted of a felony under the 
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, nor a Class 3 or Class 2 felony under Illinois Securities Law of 1953, or 
that at least five (5) years have passed since the date of the conviction; and   
 
 (ii)  It must disclose to Grantor all violations of criminal law involving fraud, bribery or 
gratuity violations potentially affecting this Award. Failure to disclose may result in remedial actions 



  Agreement No. 420060 
 
 

State of Illinois 
GRANT AGREEMENT FISCAL YEAR 2024 / 4/27/2023 

Page 8 of 64 
 
 

as stated in the Grant Accountability and Transparency Act. 30 ILCS 708/40.  Additionally, if Grantee 
receives over $10 million in total federal Financial Assistance, during the period of this Award, 
Grantee must maintain the currency of information reported to SAM regarding civil, criminal or 
administrative proceedings as required by 2 CFR 200.113 and Appendix XII of 2 CFR Part 200, and 30 
ILCS 708/40.   
  
(n) Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act of 2006 (FFATA). Grantee certifies 

that it is in compliance with the terms and requirements of 31 USC 6101 with respect to Federal Awards 
greater than or equal to $30,000. A FFATA subaward report must be filed by the end of the month following 
the month in which the award was made. 

 
(o) Illinois Works Review Panel. For Awards made for public works projects, as defined in the 

Illinois Works Jobs Program Act, Grantee certifies that it and any contractor(s) or subcontractor(s) that 
performs work using funds from this Award, must, upon reasonable notice, appear before and respond to 
requests for information from the Illinois Works Review Panel.  30 ILCS 559/20-25(d).  

 
  (p)  Anti-Discrimination. Grantee certifies that its employees and subcontractors under 

subcontract made pursuant to this Agreement, must comply with all applicable provisions of State and 
federal laws and regulations pertaining to nondiscrimination, sexual harassment and equal employment 
opportunity including, but not limited to: Illinois Human Rights Act (775 ILCS 5/1-101 et seq.), including, 
without limitation, 44 Ill. Admin. Code 750- Appendix A, which is incorporated herein; Public Works 
Employment Discrimination Act (775 ILCS 10/1 et seq.); Civil Rights Act of 1964 (as amended) (42 USC 2000a 
- 2000h-6); Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 USC 794); Americans with Disabilities Act of 
1990 (as amended) (42 USC 12101 et seq.); and the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 USC 6101 et seq.). 

 
  (q) Internal Revenue Code and Illinois Income Tax Act. Grantee certifies that it complies with 

all provisions of the federal Internal Revenue Code (26 USC 1), the Illinois Income Tax Act (35 ILCS 5), and all 
regulations and rules promulgated thereunder, including withholding provisions and timely deposits of 
employee taxes and unemployment insurance taxes.  

 
 

ARTICLE III 
PAYMENT REQUIREMENTS 

 
3.1. Availability of Appropriation; Sufficiency of Funds. This Agreement is contingent upon and subject 

to the availability of sufficient funds. Grantor may terminate or suspend this Agreement, in whole or in part, without 
penalty or further payment being required, if (i) sufficient funds for this Agreement have not been appropriated or 
otherwise made available to Grantor by the State or the federal funding source, (ii) the Governor or Grantor 
reserves funds, or (iii) the Governor or Grantor determines that funds will not or may not be available for payment. 
Grantor must provide notice, in writing, to Grantee of any such funding failure and its election to terminate or 
suspend this Agreement as soon as practicable. Any suspension or termination pursuant to this Paragraph will be 
effective upon the date of the written notice unless otherwise indicated. 

 
3.2. Pre-Award Costs.  Pre-award costs are not permitted unless specifically authorized by Grantor in 

Exhibit A, PART TWO or PART THREE of this Agreement.  If they are authorized, pre-award costs must be charged to 
the initial Budget Period of the Award, unless otherwise specified by Grantor. 2 CFR 200.458. 

 
3.3. Return of Grant Funds. Grantee must liquidate all Obligations incurred under the Award within 

forty-five (45) days of the end of the Period of Performance, or in the case of capital improvement Awards, within 



  Agreement No. 420060 
 
 

State of Illinois 
GRANT AGREEMENT FISCAL YEAR 2024 / 4/27/2023 

Page 9 of 64 
 
 

forty-five (45) days of the  end of the time period the Grant Funds are available for expenditure or obligation, unless 
Grantor permits a longer period in PART TWO OR PART THREE.    

 
3.4. Cash Management Improvement Act of 1990. Unless notified otherwise in PART TWO or PART 

THREE, Grantee must manage federal funds received under this Agreement in accordance with the Cash 
Management Improvement Act of 1990 (31 USC 6501 et seq.) and any other applicable federal laws or regulations.  
2 CFR 200.305; 44 Ill. Admin. Code 7000.120. 

 
3.5. Payments to Third Parties. Grantor will have no liability to Grantee when Grantor acts in good faith 

to redirect all or a portion of any Grantee payment to a third party. Grantor will be deemed to have acted in good 
faith when it is in possession of information that indicates Grantee authorized Grantor to intercept or redirect 
payments to a third party or when so ordered by a court of competent jurisdiction. 

 
3.6. Modifications to Estimated Amount. If the Agreement amount is established on an estimated basis, 

then it may be increased by mutual agreement at any time during the Term. Grantor may decrease the estimated 
amount of this Agreement at any time during the Term if (i) Grantor believes Grantee will not use the funds during 
the Term, (ii) Grantor believes Grantee has used Grant Funds in a manner that was not authorized by this 
Agreement, (iii) sufficient funds for this Agreement have not been appropriated or otherwise made available to 
Grantor by the State or the federal funding source, (iv) the Governor or Grantor reserves funds, or (v) the Governor 
or Grantor determines that funds will or may not be available for payment. Grantee will be notified, in writing, of 
any adjustment of the estimated amount of this Agreement.  In the event of such reduction, services provided by 
Grantee under Exhibit A may be reduced accordingly.  Grantor must pay Grantee  for work satisfactorily performed 
prior to the date of the notice regarding adjustment. 2 CFR 200.308. 

 
3.7. Interest. 

 
  (a)  All interest earned on Grant Funds held by a Grantee will be treated in accordance with 2 

CFR 200.305(b)(9), unless otherwise provided in PART TWO or PART THREE.  Grantee must remit annually 
any amount due in accordance with 2 CFR 200.305(b)(9) or to Grantor, as applicable.  

 
(b) Grant Funds must be placed in an insured account, whenever possible, that bears interest, 

unless exempted under 2 CFR 200.305(b)(8).  
 

3.8. Timely Billing Required. Grantee must submit any payment request to Grantor within fifteen (15) 
days of the end of the quarter, unless another billing schedule is specified in ARTICLE II, PART TWO, or PART THREE.  
Failure to submit such payment request timely will render the amounts billed Unallowable Costs which Grantor 
cannot reimburse. In the event that Grantee is unable, for good cause, to submit its payment request timely, 
Grantee shall timely notify Grantor and may request an extension of time to submit the payment request. Grantor’s 
approval of Grantee’s request for an extension shall not be unreasonably withheld.   

 
3.9. Certification. Pursuant to 2 CFR 200.415, each invoice and report submitted by Grantee (or 

subrecipient) must contain the following certification by an official authorized to legally bind Grantee (or 
subrecipient): 

 
By signing this report [or payment request or both], I certify to the best of my 
knowledge and belief that the report [or payment request] is true, complete, and 
accurate; that the expenditures, disbursements and cash receipts are for the 
purposes and objectives set forth in the terms and conditions of the State or 
federal pass-through award; and that supporting documentation has been 



  Agreement No. 420060 
 
 

State of Illinois 
GRANT AGREEMENT FISCAL YEAR 2024 / 4/27/2023 

Page 10 of 64 
 
 

submitted as required by the grant agreement. I acknowledge that approval for 
any other expenditure described herein is considered conditional subject to 
further review and verification in accordance with the monitoring and records 
retention provisions of the grant agreement. I am aware that any false, fictitious, 
or fraudulent information, or the omission of any material fact, may subject me to 
criminal, civil or administrative penalties for fraud, false statements, false claims 
or otherwise (U.S. Code Title 18, Section 1001 and Title 31, Sections 3729-3730 
and 3801-3812; 30 ILCS 708/120). 

  
 

ARTICLE IV 
SCOPE OF AWARD ACTIVITIES/PURPOSE OF AWARD 

 
4.1. Scope of Award Activities/Purpose of Award. Grantee must perform as described in this Agreement, 

including as described in Exhibit A (Project Description), Exhibit B (Deliverables or Milestones), and Exhibit D 
(Performance Measures and Standards), as applicable. Grantee must further comply with all terms and conditions 
set forth in the Notice of State Award (44 Ill. Admin. Code 7000.360) which is incorporated herein by reference.  All 
Grantor-specific provisions and programmatic reporting required under this Agreement are described in PART TWO 
(Grantor-Specific Terms).  All Project-specific provisions and reporting required under this Agreement are described 
in PART THREE (Project-Specific Terms). 

 
4.2. Scope Revisions.  Grantee must obtain Prior Approval from Grantor whenever a scope revision is 

necessary for one or more of the reasons enumerated in 44 Ill. Admin. Code 7000.370(b)(2).  All requests for scope 
revisions that require Grantor approval must be signed by Grantee’s authorized representative and submitted to 
Grantor for approval.  Expenditure of funds under a requested revision is prohibited and will not be reimbursed if 
expended before Grantor gives written approval.  2 CFR 200.308.  

 
4.3. Specific Conditions. If applicable, specific conditions required after a risk assessment are included in 

Exhibit E.  Grantee must adhere to the specific conditions listed therein. 44 Ill. Admin. Code 7000.340(e). 
 
 

ARTICLE V 
BUDGET 

 
5.1. Budget. The Budget submitted by Grantee at application, or a revised Budget subsequently 

submitted and approved by Grantor, is considered final and is incorporated herein by reference.   
 

5.2. Budget Revisions. Grantee must obtain Prior Approval, whether mandated or discretionary, from 
Grantor whenever a Budget revision, is necessary for one or more of the reasons enumerated in 44 Ill. Admin. Code 
7000.370(b). All requests for Budget revisions that require Grantor approval must be signed by Grantee’s authorized 
representative and submitted to Grantor for approval.  Expenditure of funds under a requested revision is 
prohibited and will not be reimbursed if expended before Grantor gives written approval.  

 
5.3. Notification. Within thirty (30) calendar days from the date of receipt of the request for Budget 

revisions, Grantor will review the request and notify Grantee whether the Budget revision has been approved, 
denied, or the date upon which a decision will be reached.  44 Ill. Admin. Code 7000.370(b)(7).    

 
 

ARTICLE VI 



  Agreement No. 420060 
 
 

State of Illinois 
GRANT AGREEMENT FISCAL YEAR 2024 / 4/27/2023 

Page 11 of 64 
 
 

ALLOWABLE COSTS 
6.1. Allowability of Costs; Cost Allocation Methods. The allowability of costs and cost allocation methods 

for work performed under this Agreement will be determined in accordance with 2 CFR Part 200 Subpart E and 
Appendices III, IV, V, and VII.   

 
6.2. Indirect Cost Rate Submission.   

 
(a) All grantees, except for Local Education Agencies (as defined in 34 CFR 77.1), must make an 

Indirect Cost Rate election in the Grantee Portal, even grantees that do not charge or expect to charge 
Indirect Costs.  44 Ill. Admin. Code 7000.420(e).  

 
(i) Waived and de minimis Indirect Cost Rate elections will remain in effect until 

Grantee elects a different option. 
 

(b) Grantee must submit an Indirect Cost Rate Proposal in accordance with federal and State 
regulations, in a format prescribed by Grantor.  For grantees who have never negotiated an Indirect Cost 
Rate before, the Indirect Cost Rate Proposal must be submitted for approval no later than three months 
after the effective date of the Award.  For grantees who have previously negotiated an Indirect Cost Rate, 
the Indirect Cost Rate Proposal must be submitted for approval within 180 days of Grantee’s fiscal year end, 
as dictated in the applicable appendices, such as:  

(i) Appendix VII to 2 CFR Part 200 governs Indirect Cost Rate Proposals for state and 
Local Governments and Indian Tribes, 

(ii) Appendix III to 2 CFR Part 200 governs Indirect Cost Rate Proposals for public and 
private institutions of higher education, 

(iii) Appendix IV to 2 CFR Part 200 governs Indirect (F&A) Costs Identification and 
Assignment, and Rate Determination for Nonprofit Organizations, and  

(iv) Appendix V to 2 CFR Part 200 governs state/Local Governmentwide Central 
Service Cost Allocation Plans. 

 
(c) A grantee who has a current, applicable rate negotiated by a cognizant federal agency 

must provide to Grantor a copy of its Indirect Cost Rate acceptance letter from the federal government and 
a copy of all documentation regarding the allocation methodology for costs used to negotiate that rate, e.g., 
without limitation, the cost policy statement or disclosure narrative statement.  Grantor will accept that 
Indirect Cost Rate, up to any statutory, rule-based or programmatic limit. 

 
(d) A grantee who does not have a current negotiated rate, may elect to charge a de minimis 

rate of 10% of Modified Total Direct Cost which may be used indefinitely. No documentation is required to 
justify the 10% de minimis Indirect Cost Rate. 2 CFR 200.414(f). 
 

6.3. Transfer of Costs. Cost transfers between Grants, whether as a means to compensate for cost 
overruns or for other reasons, are unallowable.  2 CFR 200.451. 

 
6.4. Commercial Organization Cost Principles. The federal cost principles and procedures for cost 

analysis and the determination, negotiation and allowance of costs that apply to commercial organizations are set 
forth in 48 CFR Part 31. 

 
6.5. Financial Management Standards. The financial management systems of Grantee must meet the 

following standards: 



  Agreement No. 420060 
 
 

State of Illinois 
GRANT AGREEMENT FISCAL YEAR 2024 / 4/27/2023 

Page 12 of 64 
 
 

(a) Accounting System. Grantee organizations must have an accounting system that provides 
accurate, current, and complete disclosure of all financial transactions related to each state- and federally-
funded Program. Accounting records must contain information pertaining to State and federal pass-through 
awards, authorizations, Obligations, unobligated balances, assets, outlays, and income. These records must 
be maintained on a current basis and balanced at least quarterly. Cash contributions to the Program from 
third parties must be accounted for in the general ledger with other Grant Funds. Third party in-kind (non-
cash) contributions are not required to be recorded in the general ledger, but must be under accounting 
control, possibly through the use of a memorandum ledger.  To comply with 2 CFR 200.305(b)(7)(i) and 30 
ILCS 708/97, Grantee must use reasonable efforts to ensure that funding streams are delineated within 
Grantee’s accounting system.  2 CFR 200.302. 

(b) Source Documentation. Accounting records must be supported by such source 
documentation as canceled checks, bank statements, invoices, paid bills, donor letters, time and attendance 
records, activity reports, travel reports, contractual and consultant agreements, and subaward 
documentation. All supporting documentation must be clearly identified with the Award and general ledger 
accounts which are to be charged or credited. 

(i) The documentation standards for salary charges to Grants are prescribed by 2 CFR 
200.430, and in the cost principles applicable to the Grantee’s organization. 

(ii) If records do not meet the standards in 2 CFR 200.430, then Grantor may notify 
Grantee in PART TWO, PART THREE or Exhibit E of the requirement to submit personnel activity 
reports.  2 CFR 200.430(i)(8).  Personnel activity reports must account on an after-the-fact basis for 
one hundred percent (100%) of the employee's actual time, separately indicating the time spent on 
the Award, other grants or projects, vacation or sick leave, and administrative time, if applicable. 
The reports must be signed by the employee, approved by the appropriate official, and coincide 
with a pay period. These time records must be used to record the distribution of salary costs to the 
appropriate accounts no less frequently than quarterly. 

(iii) Formal agreements with independent contractors, such as consultants, must 
include a description of the services to be performed, the period of performance, the fee and 
method of payment, an itemization of travel and other costs which are chargeable to the 
agreement, and the signatures of both the contractor and an appropriate official of Grantee. 

(iv) If third party in-kind (non-cash) contributions are used for Award purposes, the 
valuation of these contributions must be supported with adequate documentation. 

(c) Internal Control. Grantee must maintain effective control and accountability for all cash, 
real and personal property, and other assets. Grantee must adequately safeguard all such property and must 
provide assurance that it is used solely for authorized purposes. Grantee must also have systems in place 
that provide reasonable assurance that the information is accurate, allowable, and compliant with the terms 
and conditions of this Agreement.  2 CFR 200.303. 

(d) Budget Control. Grantee must maintain records of expenditures for each Award by the 
cost categories of the approved Budget (including Indirect Costs that are charged to the Award), and actual 
expenditures are to be compared with budgeted amounts at least quarterly. 

(e) Cash Management. Requests for advance payment must be limited to Grantee's 
immediate cash needs. Grantee must have written procedures to minimize the time elapsing between the 
receipt and the disbursement of Grant Funds to avoid having excess funds on hand. 2 CFR 200.305. 

 



  Agreement No. 420060 
 
 

State of Illinois 
GRANT AGREEMENT FISCAL YEAR 2024 / 4/27/2023 

Page 13 of 64 
 
 

6.6. Profits. It is not permitted for any person or entity to earn a Profit from an Award. See, e.g., 2 CFR 
200.400(g); see also 30 ILCS 708/60(a)(7). 

 
6.7. Management of Program Income.  Grantee is encouraged to earn income to defray Program Costs 

where appropriate, subject to 2 CFR 200.307. 
 

 
ARTICLE VII 
LOBBYING 

 
7.1. Improper Influence. Grantee certifies that it will not use and has not used Grant Funds to influence 

or attempt to influence an officer or employee of any government agency or a member or employee of the State or 
federal legislature in connection with the awarding of any agreement, the making of any grant, the making of any 
loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, or the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment or 
modification of any agreement, grant, loan or cooperative agreement.  Additionally, Grantee certifies that it has filed 
the required certification under the Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment (31 USC 1352), if applicable. 

 
7.2. Federal Form LLL. If any federal funds, other than federally-appropriated funds, were paid or will be 

paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence any of the above persons in connection with this 
Agreement, the undersigned must also complete and submit Federal Form LLL, Disclosure of Lobbying Activities 
Form, in accordance with its instructions. 

 
7.3. Lobbying Costs. Grantee certifies that it is in compliance with the restrictions on lobbying set forth 

in 2 CFR 200.450. For any Indirect Costs associated with this Agreement, total lobbying costs must be separately 
identified in the Program Budget, and thereafter treated as other Unallowable Costs. 

 
7.4. Procurement Lobbying. Grantee warrants and certifies that it and, to the best of its knowledge, its 

subrecipients have complied and will comply with Illinois Executive Order No. 1 (2007) (EO 1-2007). EO 1-2007 
generally prohibits grantees and subcontractors from hiring the then-serving Governor’s family members to lobby 
procurement activities of the State, or any other unit of government in Illinois including local governments, if that 
procurement may result in a contract valued at over $25,000. This prohibition also applies to hiring for that same 
purpose any former State employee who had procurement authority at any time during the one-year period 
preceding the procurement lobbying activity. 

 
7.5. Subawards. Grantee must include the language of this ARTICLE in the award documents for any 

subawards made pursuant to this Award at all tiers. All subrecipients are also subject to certification and disclosure.  
Pursuant to Appendix II(I) to 2 CFR Part 200, Grantee must forward all disclosures by contractors regarding this 
certification to Grantor.   

 
7.6. Certification. This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed 

to enter into this transaction and is a prerequisite for this transaction, pursuant to 31 USC 1352. Any person who 
fails to file the required certifications will be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000, and not more than 
$100,000, for each such failure. 

 
ARTICLE VIII 

MAINTENANCE AND ACCESSIBILITY OF RECORDS; MONITORING 
 

8.1. Records Retention. Grantee must maintain for three (3) years from the date of submission of the 
final expenditure report, adequate books, all financial records and, supporting documents, statistical records, and all 



  Agreement No. 420060 
 
 

State of Illinois 
GRANT AGREEMENT FISCAL YEAR 2024 / 4/27/2023 

Page 14 of 64 
 
 

other records pertinent to this Award, adequate to comply with 2 CFR 200.334, unless a different retention period is 
specified in 2 CFR 200.334,  44 Ill. Admin. Code 7000.430(a) and (b) or PART TWO or PART THREE.  If any litigation, 
claim or audit is started before the expiration of the retention period, the records must be retained until all 
litigation, claims or audit exceptions involving the records have been resolved and final action taken.  

 
8.2. Accessibility of Records. Grantee, in compliance with 2 CFR 200.337 and 44 Ill. Admin. 

Code 7000.430(f), must make books, records, related papers, supporting documentation and personnel relevant to 
this Agreement available to authorized Grantor representatives, the Illinois Auditor General, Illinois Attorney 
General, any Executive Inspector General, Grantor’s Inspector General, federal authorities, any person identified in 2 
CFR 200.337, and any other person as may be authorized by Grantor (including auditors), by the State of Illinois or 
by federal statute.  Grantee must cooperate fully in any such audit or inquiry.   

 
8.3. Failure to Maintain Books and Records. Failure to maintain books, records and supporting 

documentation, as described in this ARTICLE, establishes a presumption in favor of the State for the recovery of any 
Grant Funds paid by the State under this Agreement for which adequate books, records and supporting 
documentation are not available to support disbursement. 

 
8.4. Monitoring and Access to Information. Grantee must monitor its activities to assure compliance 

with applicable state and federal requirements and to assure its performance expectations are being achieved.  
Grantor will monitor the activities of Grantee to assure compliance with all requirements and performance 
expectations of the Award.  Grantee must timely submit all financial and performance reports, and must supply, 
upon Grantor’s request, documents and information relevant to the Award.  Grantor may make site visits as 
warranted by Program needs.   2 CFR 200.329; 200.332.  Additional monitoring requirements may be in PART TWO 
or PART THREE. 

 
 

ARTICLE IX 
FINANCIAL REPORTING REQUIREMENTS 

 
9.1. Required Periodic Financial Reports. Grantee must submit financial reports as requested and in the 

format required by Grantor no later than the dues date(s) specified in PART TWO or PART THREE. Grantee must 
submit quarterly reports with Grantor describing the expenditure(s) of the funds related thereto, unless more 
frequent reporting is required by the Grantee due to the funding source or pursuant to specific award conditions.  2 
CFR 200.208.  Any report required by 30 ILCS 708/125 may be detailed in PART TWO or PART THREE. 

 
9.2. Financial Close-out Report.  

 
(a) Grantee must submit a financial Close-out Report, in the format required by Grantor, by 

the due date specified in PART TWO or PART THREE, which must be no later than sixty (60) calendar days 
following the end of the Period of Performance for this Agreement or Agreement termination.  The format 
of this financial Close-out Report must follow a format prescribed by Grantor. 2 CFR 200.344; 44 Ill. Admin. 
Code 7000.440(b).   
 

(b)  If an audit or review of Grantee occurs and results in adjustments after Grantee submits a 
Close-out Report, Grantee must submit a new financial Close-out Report based on audit adjustments, and 
immediately submit a refund to Grantor, if applicable.  2 CFR 200.345; 44 Ill. Admin. Code 7000.450. 

 
9.3. Effect of Failure to Comply. Failure to comply with the reporting requirements in this Agreement 

may cause a delay or suspension of funding or require the return of improper payments or Unallowable Costs, and 



  Agreement No. 420060 
 
 

State of Illinois 
GRANT AGREEMENT FISCAL YEAR 2024 / 4/27/2023 

Page 15 of 64 
 
 

will be considered a material breach of this Agreement.  Grantee's failure to comply with ARTICLE X, ARTICLE XI, or 
ARTICLE XVII will be considered prima facie evidence of a breach and may be admitted as such, without further 
proof, into evidence in an administrative proceeding before Grantor, or in any other legal proceeding.  Grantee 
should refer to the State Grantee Compliance Enforcement System for policy and consequences for failure to 
comply.  44 Ill. Admin. Code 7000.80. 

 
 

ARTICLE X 
PERFORMANCE REPORTING REQUIREMENTS 

 
10.1. Required Periodic Performance Reports. Grantee must submit performance reports as requested 

and in the format required by Grantor no later than the due date(s) specified in PART TWO or PART THREE. 44 Ill. 
Admin. Code 7000.410. Grantee must report to Grantor on the performance measures listed in Exhibit D, PART 
TWO or PART THREE at the intervals specified by Grantor, which must be no less frequent than annually and no 
more frequent than quarterly, unless otherwise specified in PART TWO, PART THREE, or Exhibit E pursuant to 
specific award conditions.  For certain construction-related Awards, such reports may be exempted as identified in 
PART TWO or PART THREE.  2 CFR 200.329.   

 
10.2. Performance Close-out Report. Grantee must submit a performance Close-out Report, in the format 

required by Grantor by the due date specified in PART TWO or PART THREE, which must be no later than 60 
calendar days following the end of the Period of Performance or Agreement termination.  2 CFR 200.344; 44 Ill. 
Admin. Code 7000.440(b). 

 
10.3. Content of Performance Reports. Pursuant to 2 CFR 200.329(b) and (c), all performance reports 

must relate the financial data and accomplishments to the performance goals and objectives of this Award and also 
include the following: a comparison of actual accomplishments to the objectives of the Award established for the 
period; where the accomplishments can be quantified, a computation of the cost and demonstration of cost 
effective practices (e.g., through unit cost data); performance trend data and analysis if required; and reasons why 
established goals were not met, if appropriate. Additional content and format guidelines for the performance 
reports will be determined by Grantor contingent on the Award’s statutory, regulatory and administrative 
requirements, and are included in PART TWO or PART THREE of this Agreement. 

 
 

ARTICLE XI 
AUDIT REQUIREMENTS 

 
11.1. Audits. Grantee is subject to the audit requirements contained in the Single Audit Act Amendments 

of 1996 (31 USC 7501-7507), Subpart F of 2 CFR Part 200, and the audit rules and policies set forth by the Governor’s 
Office of Management and Budget.  30 ILCS 708/65(c); 44 Ill. Admin. Code 7000.90.  

 
11.2. Consolidated Year-End Financial Reports (CYEFR). All grantees must complete and submit a CYEFR 

through the Grantee Portal, except those exempted by federal or State statute or regulation, as set forth in PART 
TWO or PART THREE.  The CYEFR is a required schedule in Grantee’s audit report if  Grantee is required to complete 
and submit an audit report as set forth herein. 

 
(a) Grantee’s  CYEFR must cover the same period as the audited financial statements, if 

required, and must be submitted in accordance with the audit schedule at 44 Ill. Admin. Code 7000.90.  If 
Grantee is not required to complete audited financial statements, the CYEFR must cover Grantee’s fiscal year 
and must be submitted within 6 months of the Grantee’s fiscal year-end.   



  Agreement No. 420060 
 
 

State of Illinois 
GRANT AGREEMENT FISCAL YEAR 2024 / 4/27/2023 

Page 16 of 64 
 
 

 
(b) The CYEFR must include an in relation to opinion from the auditor of the financial 

statements included in the audit.   
 

(c) The CYEFR must follow a format prescribed by Grantor. 
 

11.3. Entities That Are Not “For-Profit”.   
 

(a) This Paragraph applies to Grantees that are not “for-profit” entities.  
 

(b) Single and Program-Specific Audits. If, during its fiscal year, Grantee expends $750,000 or 
more in federal Awards (direct federal and federal pass-through awards combined), Grantee must have a 
single audit or program-specific audit conducted for that year as required by 2 CFR 200.501 and other 
applicable sections of Subpart F of 2 CFR Part 200.  The audit report packet must be completed as described 
in 2 CFR 200.512 (single audit) or 2 CFR 200.507 (program-specific audit), 44 Ill. Admin. Code 7000.90(h)(1) 
and the current GATA audit manual and submitted to the Federal Audit Clearinghouse, as required by 2 CFR 
200.512.  The results of peer and external quality control reviews, management letters issued by the 
auditors and their respective corrective action plans if significant deficiencies or material weaknesses are 
identified, and the CYEFR(s) must be submitted to the Grantee Portal.  The due date of all required 
submissions set forth in this Paragraph is the earlier of (i) thirty (30) calendar days after receipt of the 
auditor’s report(s) or (ii) nine (9) months after the end of Grantee’s audit period. 

 
(c) Financial Statement Audit. If, during its fiscal year, Grantee expends less than $750,000 in 

federal Awards, Grantee is subject to the following audit requirements: 
 

(i) If, during its fiscal year, Grantee expends $500,000 or more in State-issued 
Awards, Grantee must have a financial statement audit conducted in accordance with the Generally 
Accepted Government Auditing Standards (GAGAS).  Grantee may be subject to additional 
requirements in PART TWO, PART THREE or Exhibit E based on Grantee’s risk profile. 

(ii) If, during its fiscal year, Grantee expends less than $500,000 in State-issued 
Awards, but expends $300,000 or more in State-issued Awards, Grantee must have a financial 
statement audit conducted in accordance with the Generally Accepted Auditing Standards (GAAS). 

(iii) If Grantee is a Local Education Agency (as defined in 34 CFR 77.1), Grantee must 
have a financial statement audit conducted in accordance with GAGAS, as required by 23 Ill. Admin. 
Code 100.110, regardless of the dollar amount of expenditures of State-issued Awards. 

(iv) If Grantee does not meet the requirements in subsections 12.3(b) and 12.3(c)(i-iii) 
but is required to have a financial statement audit conducted based on other regulatory 
requirements, Grantee must submit those audits for review. 

(v) Grantee must submit its financial statement audit report packet, as set forth in 44 
Ill. Admin. Code 7000.90(h)(2) and the current GATA audit manual, to the Grantee Portal within the 
earlier of (i) thirty (30) calendar days after receipt of the auditor’s report(s) or (ii) six (6) months 
after the end of Grantee’s audit period. 

 
11.4. “For-Profit” Entities.  

 
(a) This Paragraph applies to Grantees that are “for-profit” entities.  

 
(b) Program-Specific Audit. If, during its fiscal year, Grantee expends $750,000 or more in 

federal pass-through funds from State-issued Awards, Grantee must have a program-specific audit 



  Agreement No. 420060 
 
 

State of Illinois 
GRANT AGREEMENT FISCAL YEAR 2024 / 4/27/2023 

Page 17 of 64 
 
 

conducted in accordance with 2 CFR 200.507. The auditor must audit federal pass-through programs with 
federal pass-through Awards expended that, in the aggregate, cover at least 50 percent (0.50) of total 
federal pass-through Awards expended.  The audit report packet must be completed as described in 2 CFR 
200.507 (program-specific audit), 44 Ill. Admin. Code 7000.90 and the current GATA audit manual, and must 
be submitted to the Grantee Portal.  The due date of all required submissions set forth in this Paragraph is 
the earlier of (i) thirty (30) calendar days after receipt of the auditor’s report(s) or (ii) nine (9) months after 
the end of Grantee’s audit period. 
 

(c) Financial Statement Audit. If, during its fiscal year, Grantee expends less than $750,000 in 
federal pass-through funds from State-issued Awards, Grantee must follow all of the audit requirements in 
Paragraphs 12.3(c)(i)-(v), above.   
 

(d) Publicly-Traded Entities. If Grantee is a publicly-traded company, Grantee is not subject to 
the single audit or program-specific audit requirements, but must submit its annual audit conducted in 
accordance with its regulatory requirements. 

 
11.5. Performance of Audits. For those organizations required to submit an independent audit report, the 

audit must be conducted by the Illinois Auditor General (as required for certain governmental entities only), or a 
Certified Public Accountant or Certified Public Accounting Firm licensed in the State of Illinois or in accordance with 
Section 5.2 of the Illinois Public Accounting Act (225 ILCS 450/5.2).  For all audits required to be performed subject 
to GAGAS or Generally Accepted Auditing Standards, Grantee must request and maintain on file a copy of the 
auditor’s most recent peer review report and acceptance letter.  Grantee must follow procedures prescribed by 
Grantor for the preparation and submission of audit reports and any related documents. 

 
11.6. Delinquent Reports. When audit reports or financial statements required under this ARTICLE are 

prepared by the Illinois Auditor General, if they are not available by the above-specified due date, they must be 
provided to Grantor within thirty (30) days of becoming available.  Grantee should refer to the State Grantee 
Compliance Enforcement System for the policy and consequences for late reporting. 44 Ill. Admin. Code 7000.80. 

 
ARTICLE XII 

TERMINATION; SUSPENSION; NON-COMPLIANCE 
 

12.1. Termination.  
 
(a) Either Party may terminate this Agreement, in whole or in part, upon thirty (30) calendar 

days’ prior written notice to the other Party.  
 
(b)  If terminated by the Grantee, Grantee must include the reasons for such termination, the 

effective date, and, in the case of a partial termination, the portion to be terminated.  If Grantor determines 
in the case of a partial termination that the reduced or modified portion of the Award will not accomplish 
the purposes for which the Award was made, Grantor may terminate the Agreement in its entirety.  2 CFR 
200.340(a)(4). 

 
(c) This Agreement may be terminated, in whole or in part, by Grantor: 
 

(i) Pursuant to a funding failure under Paragraph 4.1; 
(ii) If Grantee fails to comply with the terms and conditions of this or any Award, 

application or proposal, including any applicable rules or regulations, or has made a false 
representation in connection with the receipt of this or any Award; or 



  Agreement No. 420060 
 
 

State of Illinois 
GRANT AGREEMENT FISCAL YEAR 2024 / 4/27/2023 

Page 18 of 64 
 
 

 
(iii) If the Award no longer effectuates the Program goals or agency priorities as set 

forth in Exhibit A, PART TWO or PART THREE.  
 

12.2. Suspension. Grantor may suspend this Agreement, in whole or in part, pursuant to a funding failure 
under Paragraph 4.1 or if the Grantee fails to comply with terms and conditions of this or any Award.  If suspension 
is due to Grantee’s failure to comply, Grantor may withhold further payment and prohibit Grantee from incurring 
additional Obligations pending corrective action by Grantee or a decision to terminate this Agreement by Grantor.  
Grantor may allow necessary and proper costs that Grantee could not reasonably avoid during the period of 
suspension. 

 
12.3. Non-compliance.  If Grantee fails to comply with the U.S. Constitution, applicable statutes, 

regulations or the terms and conditions of this or any Award, Grantor may impose additional conditions on Grantee, 
as described in 2 CFR 200.208.  If Grantor determines that non-compliance cannot be remedied by imposing 
additional conditions, Grantor may take one or more of the actions described in 2 CFR 200.339.  The Parties must 
follow all Grantor policies and procedures regarding non-compliance, including, but not limited to, the procedures 
set forth in the State Grantee Compliance Enforcement System.  44 Ill. Admin. Code  7000.80 and 7000.260. 

 
12.4. Objection. If Grantor suspends or terminates this Agreement, in whole or in part, for cause, or takes 

any other action in response to Grantee’s non-compliance, Grantee may avail itself of any opportunities to object and 
challenge such suspension, termination or other action by Grantor in accordance with any applicable processes and 
procedures, including, but not limited to, the procedures set forth in the State Grantee Compliance Enforcement 
System.  2 CFR 200.342; 44 Ill. Admin. Code 7000.80 and 7000.260. 

 
12.5. Effects of Suspension and Termination.  

 
(a) Grantor may credit Grantee for allowable expenditures incurred in the performance of 

authorized services under this Agreement prior to the effective date of a suspension or termination. 
 
(b)  Except as set forth in subparagraph (c), below, Grantee must not incur any costs or 

Obligations that require the use of Grant Funds after the effective date of a suspension or termination, and 
must cancel as many outstanding Obligations as possible.  
 

(c) Costs to Grantee resulting from Obligations incurred by Grantee during a suspension or after 
termination of the Agreement are not allowable unless Grantor expressly authorizes them in the notice of 
suspension or termination or subsequently. However, Grantor may allow costs during a suspension or after 
termination if: 

 
(i) The costs result from Obligations properly incurred before the effective date of 

suspension or termination, are not in anticipation of the suspension or termination, and the costs 
would be allowable if the Agreement was not suspended or terminated prematurely.  2 CFR 
200.343.  

 
12.6. Close-out of Terminated Agreements. If this Agreement is terminated, in whole or in part, the Parties 

must comply with all close-out and post-termination requirements of this Agreement.  2 CFR 200.340(d). 
 

ARTICLE XIII 
SUBCONTRACTS/SUBAWARDS 

 



  Agreement No. 420060 
 
 

State of Illinois 
GRANT AGREEMENT FISCAL YEAR 2024 / 4/27/2023 

Page 19 of 64 
 
 

13.1. Subcontracting/Subrecipients/Delegation. Grantee must not subcontract nor issue a subaward for 
any portion of this Agreement nor delegate any duties hereunder without Prior Approval of Grantor. The 
requirement for Prior Approval is satisfied if the subcontractor or subrecipient has been identified in the uniform 
grant application, such as, without limitation, a Project description, and Grantor has approved. Grantee must notify 
any potential subrecipient that the subrecipient must obtain and provide to the Grantee a Unique Entity Identifier 
prior to receiving a subaward.  2 CFR 25.300. 

 
13.2. Application of Terms.  If Grantee enters into a subaward agreement with a subrecipient, Grantee 

must notify the subrecipient of the applicable laws and regulations and terms and conditions of this Award by 
attaching this Agreement to the subaward agreement. The terms of this Agreement apply to all subawards 
authorized in accordance with Paragraph 14.1.  2 CFR 200.101(b)(2). 

 
13.3. Liability as Guaranty. Grantee will be liable as guarantor for any Grant Funds it obligates to a 

subrecipient or subcontractor pursuant to this ARTICLE in the event Grantor determines the funds were either 
misspent or are being improperly held and the subrecipient or subcontractor is insolvent or otherwise fails to return 
the funds.  2 CFR 200.345; 30 ILCS 705/6; 44 Ill. Admin. Code 7000.450(a). 

 
 

ARTICLE XIV 
NOTICE OF CHANGE 

 
14.1. Notice of Change. Grantee must notify Grantor if there is a change in Grantee’s legal status, FEIN, 

UEI, SAM registration status, Related Parties, senior management (for non-governmental grantees only) or address.   
If the change is anticipated, Grantee must give thirty (30) days’ prior written notice to Grantor. If the change is 
unanticipated, Grantee must give notice as soon as practicable thereafter.  Grantor reserves the right to take any 
and all appropriate action as a result of such change(s).  

 
14.2. Failure to Provide Notification. To the extent permitted by Illinois law (see Paragraph 21.2), Grantee 

must hold harmless Grantor for any acts or omissions of Grantor resulting from Grantee’s failure to notify Grantor as 
required by Paragraph 15.1.    

 
14.3. Notice of Impact. Grantee must notify Grantor in writing of any event, including, by not limited to, 

becoming a party to litigation, an investigation, or transaction that may have a material impact on Grantee’s ability 
to perform under this Agreement. Grantee must provide notice to Grantor as soon as possible, but no later than five 
(5) days after Grantee becomes aware that the event may have a material impact. 

 
14.4. Effect of Failure to Provide Notice. Failure to provide the notice described in this ARTICLE is grounds 

for termination of this Agreement and any costs incurred after the date notice should have been given may be 
disallowed. 

 
 

ARTICLE XV 
STRUCTURAL REORGANIZATION AND RECONSTITUTION OF BOARD MEMBERSHIP 

 
15.1. Effect of Reorganization. This Agreement is made by and between Grantor and Grantee, as Grantee 

is currently organized and constituted. Grantor does not agree to continue this Agreement, or any license related 
thereto, should Grantee significantly reorganize or otherwise substantially change the character of its corporate 
structure, business structure or governance structure. Grantee must give Grantor prior notice of any such action or 
changes significantly affecting its overall structure or, for non-governmental grantees only, management makeup 



  Agreement No. 420060 
 
 

State of Illinois 
GRANT AGREEMENT FISCAL YEAR 2024 / 4/27/2023 

Page 20 of 64 
 
 

(for example, a merger or a corporate restructuring), and must provide all reasonable documentation necessary for 
Grantor to review the proposed transaction including financial records and corporate and shareholder minutes of 
any corporation which may be involved. Grantor reserves the right to terminate the Agreement based on whether 
the newly organized entity is able to carry out the requirements of the Award. This ARTICLE does not require 
Grantee to report on minor changes in the makeup of its board membership or governance structure, as applicable. 
Nevertheless, PART TWO or PART THREE may impose further restrictions.  Failure to comply with this ARTICLE 
constitutes a material breach of this Agreement. 

 
 

ARTICLE XVI 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

 
16.1. Required Disclosures. Grantee must immediately disclose in writing any potential or actual Conflict 

of Interest to Grantor.  2 CFR 200.113; 30 ILCS 708/35. 
 

16.2. Prohibited Payments. Payments made by Grantor under this Agreement must not be used by 
Grantee to compensate, directly or indirectly, any person currently holding an elective office in this State including, 
but not limited to, a seat in the General Assembly.  In addition, where  Grantee is not an instrumentality of the State 
of Illinois, as described in this Paragraph, Grantee must request permission from Grantor to compensate, directly or 
indirectly, any person employed by an office or agency of the State of Illinois.  An instrumentality of the State of 
Illinois includes, without limitation, State departments, agencies, boards, and State universities.  An instrumentality 
of the State of Illinois does not include, without limitation, units of Local Government and related entities.   

 
16.3. Request for Exemption. Grantee may request written approval from Grantor for an exemption from 

Paragraph 17.2. Grantee acknowledges that Grantor is under no obligation to provide such exemption and that 
Grantor may grant an such exemption subject to additional terms and conditions as Grantor may require. 

 
 

ARTICLE XVII 
EQUIPMENT OR PROPERTY 

 
17.1. Purchase of Equipment. For any equipment purchased in whole or in part with Grant Funds, if 

Grantor determines that Grantee has not met the conditions of 2 CFR 200.439, the costs for such equipment will be 
disallowed. Grantor must notify Grantee in writing that the purchase of equipment is disallowed.  

 
17.2. Prohibition against Disposition/Encumbrance. Any equipment, material, or real property that 

Grantee purchases or improves with Grant Funds must not be sold, transferred, encumbered (other than original 
financing) or otherwise disposed of during the Award Term without Prior Approval of Grantor unless a longer period 
is required in PART TWO or PART THREE and permitted by 2 CFR Part 200 Subpart D.   Use or disposition of  real 
property acquired or improved using Grant Funds must comply with the requirements of 2 CFR 200.311.  Real 
property, equipment, and intangible property that are acquired or improved in whole or in part using Grant Funds 
are subject to the provisions of 2 CFR 200.316.  Grantor may require the Grantee to record liens or other 
appropriate notices of record to indicate that personal or real property has been acquired or improved with this 
Award and that use and disposition conditions apply to the property. 

 
 

17.3. Equipment and Procurement. Grantee must comply with the uniform standards set forth in 2 CFR 
200.310–200.316 governing the management and disposition of property, the cost of which was supported by Grant 
Funds. Any waiver from such compliance must be granted by either the President’s Office of Management and 



  Agreement No. 420060 
 
 

State of Illinois 
GRANT AGREEMENT FISCAL YEAR 2024 / 4/27/2023 

Page 21 of 64 
 
 

Budget, the Governor’s Office of Management and Budget, or both, depending on the source of the Grant Funds 
used.  Additionally, Grantee must comply with the standards set forth in 2 CFR 200.317-200.326 to  establish 
procedures to use Grant Funds for the procurement of supplies and other expendable property, equipment, real 
property and other services.   

 
17.4. Equipment Instructions.  Grantee must obtain disposition instructions from Grantor when 

equipment, purchased in whole or in part with Grant Funds, is no longer needed for their original 
purpose.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Agreement, Grantor may require transfer of 
any equipment to Grantor or a third party for any reason, including, without limitation, if Grantor terminates the 
Award or Grantee no longer conducts Award activities. Grantee must properly maintain, track, use, store and insure 
the equipment according to applicable best practices, manufacturer’s guidelines, federal and state laws or rules, and 
Grantor requirements stated herein.   

 
17.5. Domestic Preferences for Procurements. In accordance with 2 CFR 200.322, as appropriate and to 

the extent consistent with law, Grantee must, to the greatest extent practicable under this Award, provide a 
preference for the purchase, acquisition, or use of goods, products, or materials produced in the United States 
(including but not limited to iron, aluminum, steel, cement, and other manufactured products). The requirements of 
this Paragraph must be included in all subawards and in all contracts and purchase orders for work or products 
under this Award.    

 
 

ARTICLE XVIII 
PROMOTIONAL MATERIALS; PRIOR NOTIFICATION 

 
18.1. Promotional and Written Materials. Use of Grant Funds for promotions is subject to the 

prohibitions for advertising or public relations costs in 2 CFR 200.421(e).  In the event that Grant Funds are used in 
whole or in part to produce any written publications, announcements, reports, flyers, brochures or other written 
materials, Grantee must obtain Prior Approval for the use of those funds (2 CFR 200.467) and must include in these 
publications, announcements, reports, flyers, brochures and all other such material, the phrase “Funding provided in 
whole or in part by the [Grantor].” 2 CFR 200.467. Exceptions to this requirement must be requested, in writing, 
from Grantor and will be considered authorized only upon written notice thereof to Grantee. 

 
18.2. Prior Notification/Release of Information. Grantee must notify Grantor ten (10) days prior to issuing 

public announcements or press releases concerning work performed pursuant to this Agreement, or funded in 
whole or in part by this Agreement, and must cooperate with Grantor in joint or coordinated releases of 
information. 

 
 

ARTICLE XIX 
INSURANCE 

 
19.1. Maintenance of Insurance. Grantee must maintain in full force and effect during the Term of this 

Agreement casualty and bodily injury insurance, as well as insurance sufficient to cover the replacement cost of any 
and all real or personal property, or both, purchased or, otherwise acquired, or improved in whole or in part, with 
funds disbursed pursuant to this Agreement.  2 CFR 200.310.  Additional insurance requirements may be detailed in 
PART TWO or PART THREE. 

19.2. Claims. If a claim is submitted for real or personal property, or both, purchased in whole with funds 
from this Agreement and such claim results in the recovery of money, such money recovered must be surrendered 
to Grantor. 



  Agreement No. 420060 
 
 

State of Illinois 
GRANT AGREEMENT FISCAL YEAR 2024 / 4/27/2023 

Page 22 of 64 
 
 

ARTICLE XX 
LAWSUITS AND INDEMNIFICATION 

 
20.1. Independent Contractor. Neither Grantee nor any employee or agent of Grantee acquires any 

employment rights with Grantor by virtue of this Agreement. Grantee must provide the agreed services and achieve 
the specified results free from the direction or control of Grantor as to the means and methods of performance. 
Grantee must provide its own equipment and supplies necessary to conduct its business; provided, however, that in 
the event, for its convenience or otherwise, Grantor makes any such equipment or supplies available to Grantee, 
Grantee’s use of such equipment or supplies provided by Grantor pursuant to this Agreement is strictly limited to 
official Grantor or State of Illinois business and not for any other purpose, including any personal benefit or gain. 

 
20.2. Indemnification and Liability.  
 

(a) Non-governmental entities. This subparagraph applies only if Grantee is a non-
governmental entity.   Grantee must hold harmless Grantor against any and all liability, loss, damage, cost 
or expenses, including attorneys’ fees, arising from the intentional torts, negligence or breach of contract of 
Grantee, with the exception of acts performed in conformance with an explicit, written directive of Grantor.  
Indemnification by Grantor is governed by the State Employee Indemnification Act (5 ILCS 350/.01 et seq.) 
as interpreted by the Illinois Attorney General. Grantor makes no representation that Grantee, an 
independent contractor, will qualify or be eligible for indemnification under said Act. 

 
 (b) Governmental entities. This subparagraph applies only if Grantee is a governmental unit as 
designated in Paragraph 3.2.  Neither Party shall be liable for actions chargeable to the other Party under 
this Agreement including, but not limited to, the negligent acts and omissions of the other Party’s agents, 
employees or subcontractors in the performance of their duties as described under this Agreement, unless 
such liability is imposed by law.  This Agreement is not construed as seeking to enlarge or diminish any 
obligation or duty owed by one Party against the other or against a third party. 

 
 

ARTICLE XXI 
MISCELLANEOUS 

 
21.1. Gift Ban. Grantee is prohibited from giving gifts to State employees pursuant to the State Officials 

and Employees Ethics Act (5 ILCS 430/10-10) and Illinois Executive Order 15-09.  
 

21.2. Assignment Prohibited. This Agreement must not be sold, assigned, or transferred in any manner by 
Grantee, to include an assignment of Grantee’s rights to receive payment hereunder, and any actual or attempted 
sale, assignment, or transfer by Grantee without the Prior Approval of Grantor in writing renders this Agreement 
null, void and of no further effect. 

 
21.3. Copies of Agreements upon Request. Grantee must, upon request by Grantor, provide Grantor with 

copies of contracts or other agreements to which Grantee is a party with any other State agency. 
 
 

21.4. Amendments. This Agreement may be modified or amended at any time during its Term by mutual 
consent of the Parties, expressed in writing and signed by the Parties.  

 
21.5. Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is declared invalid, its other provisions will remain in 

effect. 



  Agreement No. 420060 
 
 

State of Illinois 
GRANT AGREEMENT FISCAL YEAR 2024 / 4/27/2023 

Page 23 of 64 
 
 

 
21.6. No Waiver. The failure of either Party to assert any right or remedy pursuant to this Agreement will 

not be construed as a waiver of either Party's right to assert such right or remedy at a later time or constitute a 
course of business upon which either Party may rely for the purpose of denial of such a right or remedy.  

 
21.7. Applicable Law; Claims. This Agreement and all subsequent amendments thereto, if any, are 

governed and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Illinois.  Any claim against Grantor arising out of 
this Agreement must be filed exclusively with the Illinois Court of Claims.  705 ILCS 505/1 et seq.  Grantor does not 
waive sovereign immunity by entering into this Agreement.  

 
21.8. Compliance with Law. This Agreement and Grantee’s Obligations and services hereunder must be 

performed in compliance with all applicable federal and State laws, including, without limitation, federal regulations, 
State administrative rules, including but not limited to 44 Ill. Admin. Code Part 7000, laws and rules which govern 
disclosure of confidential records or other information obtained by Grantee concerning persons served under this 
Agreement, and any license requirements or professional certification provisions. 

 
21.9. Compliance with Freedom of Information Act. Upon request, Grantee must make available to 

Grantor all documents in its possession that Grantor deems necessary to comply with requests made under the 
Freedom of Information Act. 5 ILCS 140/7(2). 

 
21.10. Precedence.  

 
(a) Except as set forth in subparagraph (b), below, the following rules of precedence are 

controlling for this Agreement: In the event there is a conflict between this Agreement and any of the 
exhibits or attachments hereto, this Agreement controls. In the event there is a conflict between PART ONE 
and PART TWO or PART THREE of this Agreement, PART ONE controls. In the event there is a conflict 
between PART TWO and PART THREE of this Agreement, PART TWO controls. In the event there is a conflict 
between this Agreement and relevant statute(s) or rule(s), the relevant statute(s) or rule(s) controls.   

 
(b) Notwithstanding the provisions in subparagraph (a), above, if a relevant federal or state 

statute(s) or rule(s) requires an exception to this Agreement’s provisions, or an exception to a requirement 
in this Agreement is granted by GATU, such exceptions must be noted in PART TWO or PART THREE, and in 
such cases, those requirements control. 
 

21.11. Illinois Grant Funds Recovery Act.  In the event of a conflict between the Illinois Grant Funds 
Recovery Act and the Grant Accountability and Transparency Act, the provisions of the Grant Accountability and 
Transparency Act control. 30 ILCS 708/80. 

 
21.12. Headings. Articles and other headings contained in this Agreement are for reference purposes only 

and are not intended to define or limit the scope, extent or intent of this Agreement or any provision hereof. 
 

21.13. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which are 
considered to be one and the same agreement, binding on all Parties hereto, notwithstanding that all Parties are not 
signatories to the same counterpart. Duplicated signatures, signatures transmitted via facsimile, or signatures 
contained in a Portable Document Format (PDF) document are deemed original for all purposes. 

 
21.14. Attorney Fees and Costs.  Unless prohibited by law, if Grantor prevails in any proceeding to enforce 

the terms of this Agreement, including any administrative hearing pursuant to the Grant Funds Recovery Act or the 
Grant Accountability and Transparency Act, Grantor has the right to recover reasonable attorneys’ fees, costs and 



  Agreement No. 420060 
 
 

State of Illinois 
GRANT AGREEMENT FISCAL YEAR 2024 / 4/27/2023 

Page 24 of 64 
 
 

expenses associated with such proceedings. 
 

21.15. Continuing Responsibilities.  The termination or expiration of this Agreement does not affect: (a) 
the right of Grantor to disallow costs and recover funds based on a later audit or other review; (b) the obligation of 
the Grantee to return any funds due as a result of later refunds, corrections or other transactions, including, without 
limitation, final Indirect Cost Rate adjustments and those funds obligated pursuant to ARTICLE XIV; (c) the CYEFR(s); 
(d) audit requirements established in 44 Ill. Admin. Code 7000.90 and ARTICLE XII ; (e) property management and 
disposition requirements established in 2 CFR 200.310 through 2 CFR 200.316 and ARTICLE XVIII; or (f) records 
related requirements pursuant to ARTICLE IX.  44 Ill. Admin. Code 7000.440.  

 
THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  Agreement No. 420060 
 
 

State of Illinois 
GRANT AGREEMENT FISCAL YEAR 2024 / 4/27/2023 

Page 25 of 64 
 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
Statement of Problem  

Over a decade ago, Winnebago County Court Services successfully adopted the best practices described herein for 

probationers and those on pre-trial release through the establishment of the Resource Intervention Center. However, 

supervision agencies are separate entities in Illinois, and these same opportunities are not available to those not on 

probation, or those leaving the Illinois Department of Corrections. The population gap includes those released from 

the Winnebago County Jail (not on pre-trial release) and those released from the Illinois Department of Corrections. 

There were just over 1000 individuals released from the Winnebago County Jail without probation or pre-trial release 

orders in 2022, and there are 800 – 1000 Winnebago County residents on parole at any given time.  

 

As a result, individuals must navigate a labyrinth of criminal justice agencies, reentry services and community 

organizations, each with their own capacities, eligibility requirements and intake and referral processes, making reentry 

to Winnebago County from our correctional facilities especially challenging. Indeed, coordination among criminal 

justice agencies, reentry service organizations and community organizations can be challenging as they have different 

concerns (e.g. public safety vs. the provision of services), and are often unaware of each other’s capacities, policies and 

practices. 

 

Evidence shows those on parole and probation supervision in Winnebago County are likely to reoffend. Between SFY 

2011 to 2014, of those released from IDOC to Winnebago County, 56% were rearrested for any type of crime within 

three years of their release and 22% were arrested specifically for a violent crime. Between 2014 and 2017, 36% of 

those discharged from probation supervision experienced rearrest for any offense within three years of their discharge, 

and 12% were arrested specifically for a violent offense. Loyola University’s detailed analyses of the characteristics that 

influenced the likelihood of being arrested within three years of discharge from probation supervision revealed the 

likelihood of being rearrested was higher for young individuals with multiple prior arrests and higher probation 

supervision risk levels. Of people on probation in 2020, 29% were classified at the maximum supervision level and 48% 

were classified at the medium supervision level. 

 

Our solution, implemented through the first round of funding, was to provide feet-on-the-street Navigator services to 

high risk individuals released from the corrections system. The Navigator portion of the program is working as planned; 

however, ORAS assessment scores from corrections facilities has proven to be difficult, sometimes impossible, to 

obtain. In this funding cycle we are requesting a .5 FTE Assessor to provide Ohio Risk and Needs assessments to those 

who do not already have one.  The Assessment Specialist will play a dual role of assisting with technical assistance.   



  Agreement No. 420060 
 
 

State of Illinois 
GRANT AGREEMENT FISCAL YEAR 2024 / 4/27/2023 

Page 26 of 64 
 
 

 

Program Design 

While our community has a multitude of reentry services available during the day, until this program was implemented, none 

were available after 5:00 p.m. or on weekends. The proposed program is unique in that it seeks to support Winnebago County’s 

Focused Deterrence Reentry program participants, as well as other high-risk individuals returning to Winnebago County, by 

offering mentorship and connection to supportive services on rotating shifts during evening and weekend hours. The program 

will employ former offenders, those who understand the intimate needs and concerns of individuals returning to the 

community. We seek to go beyond provision of services, by encouraging, and providing introduction to, new social associations. 

By doing so, we will be addressing some of the most important components, often missed in other programs.  

 

PM and weekend Navigators will be available to provide hands-on guidance and support, assisting high-risk individuals define 

their long- and short-term goals, determine their eligibility and provide referrals for services and/or programs to meet those 

goals, gather any necessary documentation and fill out any relevant paperwork. When possible, Navigators will personally 

accompany individuals to help navigate application processes and advocate for them. The program follows the Risk, Needs, 

and Responsivity model to align with evidence-based practices followed by Winnebago County Adult Probation and the Illinois 

Department of Corrections. The Winnebago County Assessor will provide the assessments needed to implement a program 

using risk-needs-responsivity principles.  

 

Between January of 2018 and November of 2019, Winnebago County’s Criminal Justice Coordinating Council piloted the 

Focused Deterrence (FD) program, funded by ICJIA. Winnebago County and the City of Rockford were pleased with the results 

and signed an Intergovernmental Agreement to re-implement the Focused Deterrence Reentry program. The $800,000 cost 

of the four-year program will be split equally between Winnebago County and the City of Rockford. This will cover funding for 

one (1) full-time FD Navigator, an Assistant States Attorney, and funding for evaluation.  

 

This proposal is requesting JAG funds to enhance support to individuals in the Focused Deterrence program during 

evening/weekend hours, as well as services for other high-risk reentrants. Get Connected 815 will employ three (3) part-time 

Navigators to work on a rotating basis. The Program Coordinator will receive call/referral for individuals needing services; 

screen clients for services and input their information into the database; manage the Navigator rotation to ensure all Navigators 

maintain balanced caseloads in relation to each other and notify Navigators when they receive a new referral, providing them 

with client contact information to ensure that they connect and schedule the Intake appointment. The PC will also assist 

Navigators with documentation to ensure they stay in compliance with all grant requirements. The Get Connected 815 

Supervisor is unfunded but will be responsible for overseeing implementation and reporting. The Winnebago County 

Compliance Coordinator will be responsible for reporting, and mentoring Get Connected 815 to understand grant compliance 



  Agreement No. 420060 
 
 

State of Illinois 
GRANT AGREEMENT FISCAL YEAR 2024 / 4/27/2023 

Page 27 of 64 
 
 

and reporting requirements. 

 

The proposed work builds on Winnebago County’s ongoing investment in evidence-based supervision practices and a 

commitment to improving reentry processes via collaboration between criminal justice agencies, reentry services and 

community organizations. In 2019 Winnebago County established Partnerships and Strategies to Reentry (PSR), a multi-

disciplinary team (MDT) that convenes key stakeholders on a quarterly basis to provide an ongoing, collaborative forum to 

study Winnebago County reentry processes, identify deficiencies and best practices, and formulate policy, plans and programs 

for change when opportunities present themselves. Active stakeholders include the Illinois Department of Corrections (Parole), 

Winnebago County Court Services (Probation), Resource Intervention Center, GEO Reentry Services, Winnebago County 

Sherriff’s Office, Rockford Police Department, Winnebago County Housing Authority, Rockford Housing Authority, Treatment 

Alternatives for Safe Communities, Rock Valley College, Salvation Army, Prairie Street Legal Services, Goodwill, Rosecrance 

(addictions/mental health), Remedies (partner abuse), Illinois Department of Employment Services, YWCA, Rockford Rescue 

Mission, Get Connected 815, and individuals with lived experience. Each of these will partner through either by providing 

referrals, or by offering direct services.  

 

Refinements from the previous year include additional Winnebago County staff, eliminating one Navigator, and eliminating 

Getting Ahead While Getting Out programming.  

 

Program Staffing  

WINNEBAGO COUNTY DIRECTOR, CHAIRMAN’S OFFICE OF CRIMINAL JUSTICE INITIATIVES  

Roles and Responsibilities: The Winnebago County Director is a non-funded position to allow funding for direct services. 

This staff will oversee all VCRIC services, build and facilitate relationships with community partners, supervise and 

evaluate staff. This position will ensure the program and its staff hired draw from local knowledge and experience, 

using evidence-informed research.  

Required Experience/Qualifications: This position requires a bachelor’s degree in social work, criminal justice, or related 

field, as well as a minimum of five years’ experience overseeing services that address the impact of violence on 

individuals and communities.  

Reporting & Supervision Received:  The Winnebago County Director, reports to Joseph Chiarelli, Winnebago County 

Chairman. 

 

WINNEBAGO COUNTY PROGRAM COMPLIANCE COORDINATOR 

Roles and Responsibilities: The Program Compliance Coordinator will dedicate 30% of their time to overseeing program 

activity, growth, and collaborative partner monitoring. This role will provide technical assistance and guide the 



  Agreement No. 420060 
 
 

State of Illinois 
GRANT AGREEMENT FISCAL YEAR 2024 / 4/27/2023 

Page 28 of 64 
 
 

grassroots sub-recipient through compliance and reporting processes. This role will use an already established grant 

monitoring policy and increase the sub-recipient to understand financial and data reporting requirements, including 

the collection of comprehensive data to provide meaningful reports.  This role will perform site visits, documenting and 

reporting to ICJIA within thirty (30) days of the visit. This person will be responsible for Corrective Action Plans, 

maintaining records, and submitting quarterly program and fiscal reports to ICJIA. This person will be tasked with direct 

communication with the ICJIA grant monitor. 

Required Experience/Qualifications: This position requires a bachelor’s degree in Accounting, Criminal Justice, Social or 

Human Services, or a related field. Any satisfactory equivalent combination of experience and training that ensures the 

ability to perform the work may be substituted for the required experience. Must exhibit extensive knowledge of 

community and grants management. 

Reporting & Supervision Received: This position will report to the Director of the Winnebago County Chairman’s Office 

of Criminal Justice Initiatives. 

 

WINNEBAGO COUNTY REENTRY ASSESSOR / COMPLIANCE SPECIALIST 

Roles and Responsibilities: The Reentry Assessor/Compliance Specialist will dedicate 100% of their time to providing 

assessments to individuals requesting services from the funded partner, Get Connected. This role will use the Ohio Risk 

and Needs Assessment (ORAS). This staff will play a dual role of assisting with technical assistance, dependent on 

services needed. 

Required Experience/Qualifications: This position requires a bachelor’s degree in Psychology, Criminal Justice, Social or 

Human Services, or a related field. Any satisfactory equivalent combination of experience and training that ensures the 

ability to perform the work may be substituted for the required experience. 

Reporting & Supervision Received: This position will report to the Director of the Winnebago County Chairman’s Office 

of Criminal Justice Initiatives. 

 

GET CONNECTED PROGRAM COORDINATOR 

Roles and Responsibilities: The Get Connected Program Coordinator (PC) will be responsible for fielding all incoming 

calls and ensuring they are routed to the correct Get Connected staff member (Navigator). The PC will be the first point 

of contact for clients coming into contact with Get Connected. When they receive the initial call and/or referral for 

individuals needing services, the CCC will be responsible for screening clients for services and entering their information 

into the Get Connected client database. The PC will also manage the caseload rotation for Navigators, tasked with 

determining the next available navigator to connect with the client and managing the master Navigator calendar so 

that they can schedule clients for their initial intake appointment. The PC will also be responsible for providing 

appointment reminders to clients to increase likelihood of client attendance for appointments with Navigators. The PC 



  Agreement No. 420060 
 
 

State of Illinois 
GRANT AGREEMENT FISCAL YEAR 2024 / 4/27/2023 

Page 29 of 64 
 
 

will perform periodic check-ins with Navigators as an added measure of safety for staff working in the field. They will 

also assist with monitoring Navigator documentation compliance and will ensure that Navigators are fulfilling all 

documentation requirements describing client engagement, activities, and services rendered. They will assist the 

Executive Director with planning workshops, training, and other events by helping to coordinate these and assisting 

the Executive Director in making contact with any necessary outside agencies and event planning to ensure all activities 

are planned and implemented as described in the proposal. The CCC will finally be responsible for ensuring that all 

incoming clients provide the necessary information from their Risk-Needs-Responsivity assessment to the Navigator 

they are paired with. 

Required Experience/Qualifications: This position requires a minimum of an Associates or Technical Degree in Business, 

Social Work, Criminal Justice, Public Health, or a related field, as well as a minimum of one year of experience working 

in an administrative or coordinating capacity in a program that provides direct client services to marginalized 

populations. Lived experience (whether personal or through a family member or friend) preferred. 

Reporting & Supervision Received: This role reports to the Get Connected Executive Director. 

 

GET CONNECTED NAVIGATORS 

Roles and Responsibilities – Three (3) Navigators supplement the work of parole, probation, and other community 

programming (covered by non-VCRIC funding) by dedicating evening and weekend hours to the needs of high-risk 

individuals on pre-trial release, parole, or probation. They will assess the social service needs of clients by performing 

intake appointments and using the information provided by the risk assessment (ensuring the information from this 

assessment is provided by clients at the first appointment) and following the Risk-Needs-Responsivity (RNR) model, 

make an initial plan as to which pro-social networks, meetings, and events may be beneficial to the client. This planning 

process will be a collaborative process with the client, with the Navigator serving as an educator and facilitator, but 

with the client maintaining responsibility and control as to which services will be incorporated into the client’s service 

plan. These staff will be responsible for connecting clients to services and pro-social support using an intro-refer module 

(consisting of introducing those referred to case managers, social workers, treatment providers, etc. during the referral 

process to ensure a valued connection that will result in engagement). The Navigator will also assist clients in accessing 

the range of direct individual services identified in their risk assessment needed to complete their pre-trial, probation, 

and/or parole board orders and connect them with peer support and they will meet regularly with clients to support 

case plan progress. Navigators will follow up with clients after resource workshops/events/classes (Empower U, 

workforce/school events, etc.). They will also work as a trusted partner with probation/parole and other court services 

to ensure clients are fulfilling all requirements and remain in compliance with all requirements. 

Required Experience/Qualifications – Navigators will have lived experience and be trained by the Get Connected 

Executive Director on matters concerning Risk, Needs, and Responsivity. Requirements for the position are two (2) 



  Agreement No. 420060 
 
 

State of Illinois 
GRANT AGREEMENT FISCAL YEAR 2024 / 4/27/2023 

Page 30 of 64 
 
 

years out of incarceration with clean time consisting of, but not limited to, changed thinking. Navigators will have 

knowledge of community services and peer support services and where they lack knowledge of community services 

and peer support, they will research to learn of available opportunities.  

Reporting & Supervision Received – Navigators will be supervised by the Get Connected Executive Director.  



  Agreement No. 420060 
 
 

State of Illinois 
GRANT AGREEMENT FISCAL YEAR 2024 / 4/27/2023 

Page 31 of 64 
 
 

EXHIBIT B 
 

DELIVERABLES OR MILESTONES 
 

Task  Staff Position Responsible Date Due 

Submit draft subawards to ICJIA Director, Chairman’s Office 
of Criminal Justice Initiatives 09/01/23 

Execute subawards Director, Chairman’s Office 
of Criminal Justice Initiatives 10/01/23 

Hire Assessor Director, Chairman’s Office 
of Criminal Justice Initiatives 11/30/23 

Train Assessor on ORAS Director, Chairman’s Office 
of Criminal Justice Initiatives 12/30/23 

Hire and train remaining Navigators to include Risk, 
Needs, and Responsivity 

Get Connected Executive 
Director Ongoing 

Navigators participate in three (3) Call In Forums  02/28/2025 
One (1) VCRIC funded Navigator hosts Get Connected 
table at six (6) monthly Project Safe Neighborhoods 
Forums for referral purposes 

PT Navigators 02/28/2025 

Conduct 1 Site Visit, submit 1 Site Visit report to ICJIA Compliance Coordinator 02/28/2025 
Provide technical assistance to subrecipient Compliance Coordinator Ongoing 

Partnerships and Strategies to Reentry quarterly MDT 
meetings 

Director, Chairman’s Office 
of Criminal Justice Initiatives, 
Get Connected Executive 
Director, Compliance 
Coordinator, Navigators 

Ongoing 

Submit quarterly data report and quarterly timekeeping 
certifications to Passthrough Entity 

Get Connected / Compliance 
Coordinator 

January 10  
April 10 
July 10 
October 10 

Submit quarterly financial status reports to Passthrough 
Entity 

Get Connected / Compliance 
Coordinator 

January 10 
April 10,  
July 10 
October 10 

Submit closeout financial status report, property 
inventory, and closeout data report to Passthrough 
Entity 

Get Connected / Compliance 
Coordinator 

March 10, 2025 
 

Review subaward periodic fiscal reports Compliance Coordinator  Monthly/Quarterly 
Process payments to subrecipients Finance Manager Monthly 
Review subaward periodic data reports Compliance Coordinator Quarterly 
Provide technical assistance to subrecipient Compliance Coordinator Ongoing 
Conduct one (1) subaward site visit Compliance Coordinator 02/28/25 
Submit quarterly data report and timekeeping 
certifications to ICJIA Compliance Coordinator Quarterly 

Submit monthly financial status reports to ICJIA Compliance Coordinator Monthly 
Submit closeout financial status report, property 
inventory, and closeout data report to ICJIA Compliance Coordinator 03/15/25 

 



  Agreement No. 420060 
 
 

State of Illinois 
GRANT AGREEMENT FISCAL YEAR 2024 / 4/27/2023 

Page 32 of 64 
 
 

Passthrough Entity 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Task  Staff Position Responsible Date Completed 
Submit draft subawards to ICJIA Marlana Dokken 09/01/23 
Execute subawards Marlana Dokken 10/01/23 
Hire Assessor/Compliance Specialist Marlana Dokken 11/30/23 
Train Assessor/Compliance Specialist on ORAS Marlana Dokken 12/30/23 
Review subaward periodic fiscal reports  Christina Washington  Monthly/Quarterly 
Process payments to subrecipients Finance Manager Monthly 
Review subaward periodic data reports Christina Washington Quarterly 
Provide technical assistance to subrecipients Christina Washington Ongoing 
Conduct one (1) subaward site visit Christina Washington 02/28/25 
Submit quarterly data report and timekeeping 
certifications to ICJIA Christina Washington  Quarterly 

Submit quarterly Periodic Performance Report to ICJIA Christina Washington Quarterly 
Submit final fiscal and data reports to ICJIA Christina Washington 03/15/15 



  Agreement No. 420060 
 
 

State of Illinois 
GRANT AGREEMENT FISCAL YEAR 2024 / 4/27/2023 

Page 33 of 64 
 
 

EXHIBIT C 
 

CONTACT INFORMATION 
 
CONTACTS FOR NOTIFICATION AND GRANT ADMINISTRATION: 
 
Unless specified elsewhere, all notices required or desired to be sent by either Party must be sent to the persons listed 
below. Grantee must notify Grantor of any changes in its contact information listed below within five (5) business days 
from the effective date of the change, and Grantor must notify Grantee of any changes to its contact information as 
soon as practicable.  The Party making a change must send any changes in writing to the contact for the other Party.  
No amendment to this Agreement is required if information in this Exhibit is changed.   
 
FOR OFFICIAL GRANT NOTIFICATIONS 
 
GRANTOR CONTACT      GRANTEE CONTACT 
 
 
Name: Luisa Salazar     Name: Marlana Dokken 
 
Title: Grant Specialist Title: Director, Chairman’s Office of Criminal Justice 

Initiatives 
 
Address: 60 E Van Buren, STE 650, Chicago, IL 60605  Address: 404 Elm Street, Rockford, IL 61101 
 
 
  
   GRANTEE PAYMENT ADDRESS 
   (If different than the address above) 
 
  Address: ___________________________________ 
 
   ___________________________________ 
 
FOR GRANT ADMINISTRATION 
 
GRANTOR CONTACT      GRANTEE CONTACT 
 
Name: Luisa Salazar     Name: Marlana Dokken 
Title: Grant Specialist Title: Director, Chairman’s Office of Criminal Justice 

Initiatives 
Address: 60 E Van Buren, STE 650, Chicago, IL 60605  Address: 404 Elm Street, Rockford, IL 61101 
 
 
Phone: 312-814-0707     Phone: 815-319-4059 
 
TTY#:  __________________________________  TTY #: ________________________________ 
 
E-mail Address: Luisa.Salazar@Illinois.gov   E-mail Address: mdokken@admin.wincoil.gov 
   

mailto:Luisa.Salazar@Illinois.gov
mailto:mdokken@admin.wincoil.gov


  Agreement No. 420060 
 
 

State of Illinois 
GRANT AGREEMENT FISCAL YEAR 2024 / 4/27/2023 

Page 34 of 64 
 
 

 
EXHIBIT D 

 
PERFORMANCE MEASURES AND STANDARDS 

 
Overall Goal: To reduce violent crime in the community. 
Process Objectives Performance Measures 
Enroll 75 high risk probations/parolees/pre-trial 
releases via referrals by 02/28/2025 

 # Enrolled by 02/28/2025 

Engage 55 participants in employment-related 
goals (resume, job search, applications, interviews) 
by 02/28/2025 

 # Participants engaged in employment-related goals 
by 02/28/2025 

Engage 30 participants in education-related goals 
by 02/28/2025 

 # Participants engaged in education-related goals by 
02/28/2025 

Engage 50 participants in pro-social peer support 
groups 02/28/2025 

 # Participating in pro-social peer groups by 
02/28/2025 

Enroll 50 participants in Invest in Yourself 
workshops 

 # Participating in Invest in Yourself Workshops 

Enroll 60 high risk probations/parolees/pre-trial 
releases via referrals by 02/28/2025 

 # Enrolled by 02/28/2025 

Outcome Objectives Performance Measures 
80% enrolled, and will remain engaged for at least 
6 months 

 % Remaining engaged for at least 6 months 

40 Individuals will obtain Full Time Employment  # Individuals obtaining full time employment 
80% will maintain employment for a minimum of 6 
months 

 # Maintaining employment for a minimum of 6 
months 

30 individuals will create at least one education 
goal by 02/28/2025 

 # Individuals, # education goals set by 02/28/2025 

50% of education goals set will be completed by 
02/28/2025 

 % Completed by 02/28/2025 

90% engaged in pro-social peer support, will 
remain engaged for 6 months 

 # Individuals engaging in, # remaining engaged in 
pro-social peer support for 6 months 

80% Individuals will complete Invest in Yourself 
Workshops 

 # Registrants, # completing Invest in Yourself 
Workshops 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  Agreement No. 420060 
 
 

State of Illinois 
GRANT AGREEMENT FISCAL YEAR 2024 / 4/27/2023 

Page 35 of 64 
 
 

Passthrough Entity 
 

GOAL: Through the oversight of subaward, provide oversight and technical assistance to build knowledge and capacity of 
grassroots non-profit(s) serving our reentry population and provide Risk Assessments for program participants. 

Objectives Process Performance Measures 

Detail the plan for monitoring subrecipient 
performance, including submission of periodic data 
reports and periodic fiscal reports 
• 100% of subrecipients will submit periodic fiscal 

reports on time 

• Percentage of subrecipients submitting periodic fiscal 
reports on time 

Review accuracy of subrecipient data reports  
• 1 subaward data report received and reviewed 

quarterly 
• 100% of subrecipients will submit quarterly data 

reports on time 

• Number of subaward data reports received and reviewed 
• Percentage of subrecipients submitting quarterly data 

reports on time 

Review accuracy of subrecipient fiscal reports  
• 1 subaward fiscal reports received and reviewed 

quarterly 
• 100% of subrecipients will submit quarterly fiscal 

reports on time 

• Number of subaward fiscal reports received and reviewed 
• Percentage of subrecipients submitting quarterly fiscal 

reports on time 

Provide fiscal and programmatic technical assistance 
to all subrecipients as needed. 
• 1 subrecipients will receive technical assistance. 

• Number of subrecipients receiving technical assistance. 

Perform site visits with 100% of subrecipients during 
award period. 
• 1 subaward visit conducted (1 each year 

minimum) 

• Number of subaward visits conducted 

Submit site visit reports to ICJIA within 30 days of visit 
• 1 subaward site visit reports submitted to ICJIA 

within 30 days   

• Number of subaward site visit reports submitted to ICJIA 
within 30 days   

Provide a Corrective Action Plan for all subrecipients 
with identified as needing formal corrective action.\ 
• Up to 1 subrecipient will be identified as 

requiring corrective action. 
• Up to 1 will be notified and provided with a Plan 

of Corrective Action 
 

• Number of subrecipients identified as requiring corrective 
action. 

• Number notified and provided with a Plan of Corrective 
Action 



  Agreement No. 420060 
 
 

State of Illinois 
GRANT AGREEMENT FISCAL YEAR 2024 / 4/27/2023 

Page 36 of 64 
 
 

Verify subrecipient completion of Corrective Action 
Plan within specified timeframe. 
• 100%  subrecipients will need to complete 

Corrective Action Plan requirements within 
specified timeframe 

• Percentage of subrecipients completing Corrective Action 
Plan requirements within specified timeframe 

Provide fiscal and programmatic technical assistance 
to all subrecipients that request such assistance. 
• Up to 1 subrecipient will require fiscal and 

technical assistance 
Up to 1 subrecipient will receive such assistance 

• Number of subrecipients requiring fiscal and technical 
assistance 

• Number of subrecipients receiving such assistance 

Provide risk assessments for participants lacking 
assessment. 
• Up to 50% of individuals requesting services will 

require risk assessment. 
• Up to 50% of individuals requesting services will 

require risk assessment 
• Up to 40% will be deemed eligible for program. 

• Percentage of participants requiring assessments. 
• Percentage of participants receiving assessments. 
• Percentage of participants deemed eligible for program 

due to assessment.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  Agreement No. 420060 
 
 

State of Illinois 
GRANT AGREEMENT FISCAL YEAR 2024 / 4/27/2023 

Page 37 of 64 
 
 

 
 

EXHIBIT E 
 

SPECIFIC CONDITIONS 
 

1. Grantor may remove (or reduce) a Specific Condition included in this Exhibit by providing written notice to the 
Grantee, in accordance with established procedures for removing a Specific Condition. 
 
  



  Agreement No. 420060 
 
 

State of Illinois 
GRANT AGREEMENT FISCAL YEAR 2024 / 4/27/2023 

Page 38 of 64 
 
 

PART TWO –GRANTOR-SPECIFIC TERMS 
 

In addition to the uniform requirements in PART ONE, Grantor has the following additional requirements for its 
Grantee: 
 

23. Definitions 
 

“Youth” means an individual under 18 years of age.  
 

24. Mandatory Attendance. Grantee shall attend meetings as required by Grantor. 
 

25. Commencement of Performance.  
 
25.1. If performance has not commenced within 60 days of the execution date of this Agreement, 
Grantee agrees to report by letter to Grantor the steps taken to initiate the program, the reasons for the 
delay, and the expected starting date. 
 
25.2. If the program is not operational within 90 days of the execution date of this Agreement, Grantee 
agrees to submit a second letter to Grantor explaining the implementation delay. Grantor may at its 
discretion either cancel this Agreement or extend the implementation date of the program past the 90-day 
period. 

 
25.3. If the program is interrupted for more than 30 days after commencement, Grantee agrees to notify 
Grantor in writing explaining the reasons for the interruption and the steps being taken to resume operation 
of the program. Grantor may, at its discretion, reduce the amount of grant funds awarded and/or terminate 
this Agreement if the program is interrupted for more than 90 days. 

 
 

26. Budget Changes. Grantee may transfer funds among direct cost categories, however line-item transfers are 
capped at $50,000 and limited to 10% of the total award. Line-item transfers larger than this amount requires a 
budget revision approval from Grantor.   
 

27. Reporting and Evaluation Requirements.  
 
27.1. Grantee shall submit the following reports to the Grantor: 
  

• Performance reports for the preceding  quarter relevant to the performance indicators listed in the 
Agreement. The quarterly progress reports are due not more than 15 days after the end of the 
quarter, unless another reporting schedule has been required or approved by the Grantor. and 

• Fiscal reports detailing financial expenditures for the previous month. Fiscal reports shall be 
submitted by the 15th of every month following the first complete month of the grant period.  

 
27.2. Grantor may give the grantee permission, in writing, to report on a quarterly schedule.  Such 
permission can be revoked by the grantor at any time.  If such permission is given, the quarterly reports 
should be submitted based on the following schedule: 
 

  Quarter End Date  Due Date 
 September 30  October 15 
 December 31  January 15 



  Agreement No. 420060 
 
 

State of Illinois 
GRANT AGREEMENT FISCAL YEAR 2024 / 4/27/2023 

Page 39 of 64 
 
 

 March 31   April 15 
 June 30   July 15 
 

28. Timekeeping. 
 

28.1.    Grantee shall maintain the following time keeping records on-site for all grant-funded and match 
personnel: 

 
A. Personnel who spend less than 100% of their time on the funded program must maintain records 

that accurately reflect the time the employee spends performing the program and any other duties.  
These records must: 
1. reflect an after-the-fact distribution of the employee’s actual activity (not budgeted time);  
2. account for attendance and the daily total activity for which the employee is compensated (by 

all funding sources); 
3. be prepared at least monthly and coincide with one or more pay periods;  
4. be signed by the employee and approved by a supervisor having firsthand knowledge of the 

work performed; and 
5. be supplemented with daily attendance timesheets. 
 

B. Personnel who spend 100% of their time on the funded program must certify on a semi-annual 
basis.  This time certification form must: 
1. include an-after-the fact certification that 100% of the employee’s time was spent in support of 

activities associated with the program; 
2. be signed every six months by the employee and a supervisor having firsthand knowledge of 

the employee’s work; and  
3. be supplemented with daily attendance timesheets. 

 
28.2. Payroll records must reflect either the after-the-fact distribution of an employee’s actual activities 
or the certification of an employee’s actual work performed.  

 
28.3.      Volunteers whose time fulfills a match requirement must complete a daily attendance timesheet or 
log that includes dates and hours worked on the grant program. 

 
28.4 Grantee shall submit a Quarterly Time Keeping Certification to Grantor with each quarterly report, 
or every third monthly report.  The Quarterly Time Keeping Certification shall include a certification listing all 
employees who must maintain records as set forth in this Section, and match volunteers, including their 1) 
program working hours and 2) total working hours. 

 
29. Closeout requirements. Within 30 days of the expiration date of this Agreement or any approved extension 

thereof the following documents must be submitted by Grantee to Grantor: (a) final financial status report; 
(b) final progress reports; (c) property inventory report; and (d) other documents required by Grantor. 
 

30. Failure to File in a Timely Fashion.  
 
30.1. In order to preclude the possibility of lapsing of funding, Grantor requires the timely filing of all 
required reports. Reports shall include but are not limited to, monthly fiscal reports, quarterly progress 
reports and all reports included in the closeout materials. The final date for submission for all of the closeout 
material reports is 30 days after the end of the grant period.  
 



  Agreement No. 420060 
 
 

State of Illinois 
GRANT AGREEMENT FISCAL YEAR 2024 / 4/27/2023 

Page 40 of 64 
 
 

30.2. Failure to meet the reporting dates established for the particular reports shall result in the 
“freezing” of all funds, in addition to any other remedy stated in this Agreement. The frozen funds shall not 
be limited to a particular grant that is delinquent, but all grant funds that Grantee has with Grantor shall be 
frozen. Funds will be released following the completion of all the reporting requirements.  
 
30.3 Failure to meet the reporting dates may also result in Grantee being placed on the Illinois Stop 
Payment List. Grantee will be removed from the Illinois Stop Payment List once past due reports are 
submitted to Grantor.  

 
31. Procurement Requirements and Requests for Proposals. 

 
31.1. All procurement transactions shall be conducted by Grantee in a manner to provide, to the 
maximum extent practical, open and free competition. Procurement transactions include the purchasing of 
equipment, commodities, goods and services. Procurement transactions do not include the making of sub-
grants.  Grantee may use their own procurement regulations which reflect State and local law, rules, and 
regulations, provided that all procurements made with grant funds minimally adhere to standards 
established by the Illinois Procurement Code (30 ILCS 550) and 2 CFR 200.318 - 327. 

 
31.2. If the Grantee’s established procurement process is less competitive than the following 
requirements, the following more competitive requirements must be adhered to in lieu of the Grantor’s 
procurement process per 30 ILCS 500/20-20.  

 
• For procurements of $100,000 or less, the Grantee is encouraged to formally advertise the 

proposed procurement through an Invitation for Bids (IFB), or a Request for Proposals (RFP) 
process. If this is not possible, the Grantee must solicit quotes or bids from at least three 
sources.  

 
• For procurements over $100,000, the Grantee must utilize a competitive source selection such 

as formally advertise the proposed procurement through an Invitation for Bids (IFB), or a 
Request for Proposals (RFP) process.  

 
31.3. As required by Grantor, Grantee shall submit documentation regarding its procurement procedures 
and grant-funded purchases for Grantor review and approval to assure adherence to applicable guidelines. 
 
31.4. Grantee may use a non-competitive procurement process under some circumstances in accordance 
with 2 CFR 200.320(c). Grantee must request and receive approval, in writing, from Grantor before entering 
into an agreement through a non-competitive procurement process.  

 
32. Subcontracting. 

 
32.1. Grantee shall make reasonable efforts to assure that all subcontractors adhere to the terms and 
conditions of this agreement. Grantor shall not be responsible for the performance, acts or omissions of any 
subcontractor. 
 
32.2. Grantee is required to submit a copy of the subcontract, Addendum to the Agreement, Required 
Documentation for Contractor Payment with Compensation and Rate of Pay certifications form, and Sole 
Source Justification form, if applicable, to Grantor for approval prior to hiring the contractor. 
 



  Agreement No. 420060 
 
 

State of Illinois 
GRANT AGREEMENT FISCAL YEAR 2024 / 4/27/2023 

Page 41 of 64 
 
 

32.3. As required by Grantor, Grantee shall submit documentation regarding contracts to be funded with 
grant funds for Grantor review and approval, to assure adherence to applicable guidelines.  
 
32.4. Approval of the use of subcontractors by Grantor does not relieve Grantee of its obligation to 
assure performance under this agreement. Grantee shall be responsible for the recovery of any unspent 
and/or misspent grant funds paid to the subcontractor by Grantee. 
 

33. Subawards. 
 
33.1 Grantee will monitor subawards to ensure compliance with State and/or Federal statutes, regulations, 
and the terms and conditions of the subaward. Approval of a subaward does not relieve Grantee of its obligation 
to assure performance under this Agreement. 
 
33.2 Subawards are subject to site visits by both Grantee and Grantor, and must make available all fiscal, 
personnel, and programmatic data to Grantee and Grantor at either’s request. Grantor reserves the right to 
conduct site visits of all subawards. 
 
33.3 Grantee will require all subawards to submit, at a minimum, periodic performance reports and 
periodic financial reports to Grantee. 
 
33.4   As Grantee awards each subaward, Grantee will forward a site visit schedule to Grantor along with  
any increased monitoring provisions. Any site reports created by Grantee that require a corrective action by a 
subaward shall be submitted to Grantor along with verification of the corrective action. 

 
33.5   If the use of a subaward is approved by Grantor, the terms and conditions of this Agreement shall 
apply to and bind the party to whom such work is subawarded as fully and completely as Grantee is bound and 
obligated. Grantee is obligated to ensure that the terms of this Agreement are contained in any written 
subaward agreement. Grantee will ensure that all subawards comply with GATA prequalification requirements 
as identified in 44 Ill. Admin. Code 7000.70, including but not limited to Sam.gov registration. 
 
33.6   Prior to the execution of its grant agreement, Grantee will submit their subaward monitoring protocol 
to Grantor for approval. 

  
33.7   Grantee shall use a competitive bidding process for the selection of any subaward not specifically  
named in this Agreement. 
 
33.8   Grantee shall conduct a programmatic risk assessment of every subaward that receives a subaward  
through this Agreement. 
 
33.9   Grantee will evaluate each subaward’s risk of noncompliance with federal and state statutes;  
regulations; rules; laws; guidelines; and conditions of this award. Grantee will impose specific conditions upon 
a subaward, if appropriate. 
 
33.10        Grantee will make fiscal and programmatic technical assistance available to all subawards. 

 
33.11        All unspent subaward funds will be returned by Grantee to Grantor within 30 days after the end of  

  each subaward’s period of performance. 
 

 



  Agreement No. 420060 
 
 

State of Illinois 
GRANT AGREEMENT FISCAL YEAR 2024 / 4/27/2023 

Page 42 of 64 
 
 

33.12 Grantee will be responsible for the recovery of any unspent and/or misspent grant funds paid to   
the subaward by Grantee. 

 
33.13 Grantor is not responsible for the performance, acts, or omissions of any subaward. Grantor will  
not mediate disputes between Grantee and subawardees.  

 
34. Food Costs. Grantee agrees to act in accordance with Grantor’s food policy for any food costs paid in whole or 

in part by funds under this agreement. Grantees must maintain records of actual food costs and how the food 
supported its program. For events, grantees must maintain records of the event, including receipts for food 
and other costs and the number of program participants. For emergency food provisions, grantees must 
maintain records of both the cost of the food provided and the program participant who received it. 

35. Transportation Costs. Grantee must utilize a tracking system for any transportation costs funded by this 
agreement. At minimum, the tracking system must track the purpose of each trip and the cost per trip. 
Grantee shall submit a description of the tracking system to Grantor prior to incurring any transportation 
costs. 

 
36. Copyrights and Patents.  
 

36.1. If this Agreement results in a copyright, the Grantor reserves a royalty-free, nonexclusive and 
irrevocable license to reproduce, publish or otherwise use, and to authorize others to use, for government 
purposes, the work or the copyright to any work developed under this Agreement and any rights of 
copyright to which a grantee, subgrantee or a contractor purchases ownership with grant support. 

 
36.2. If this agreement results in the production of patentable items, patent rights, processes, or 
inventions, Grantee shall immediately notify Grantor. Grantor will provide Grantee with further 
instruction on whether protection on the item will be sought and how the rights in the item will be 
allocated and administered to protect the public interest, in accordance with guidelines. 
 

37. Management and Disposition of Equipment and Commodities.  
 
37.1. Equipment and supplies acquired by Grantor with Grantor funds shall be used for purposes of 
the program described in the exhibits only. Grantee may retain the equipment and supplies acquired with 
grant funds as long as they serve to accomplish program purposes, whether or not the program continues 
to be supported by Grantor grant funds, but such determinations as to retention are within the sole 
discretion of Grantor. If the equipment or supplies originally purchased for the program are no longer 
capable of fulfilling the needs of the program and must be traded in or replaced, or there is no longer a 
need for the equipment or supplies, Grantee shall request instructions from Grantor. 

 
37.2. Grantor may deny equipment and supply costs or require that Grantee relinquish already 
purchased equipment and supplies to Grantor if Grantee fails to employ an adequate property 
management system governing the use, protection, and management of such property. Grantee is 
responsible for replacing or repairing equipment and supplies that are willfully or negligently lost, stolen, 
damaged or destroyed. Grantee shall provide equivalent insurance coverage for grant funded equipment 
and supplies as provided for other equipment and supplies owned by Grantee. Any loss, damage or theft 
of equipment and supplies shall be investigated and fully documented, and immediately reported to 
Grantor. 

 



  Agreement No. 420060 
 
 

State of Illinois 
GRANT AGREEMENT FISCAL YEAR 2024 / 4/27/2023 

Page 43 of 64 
 
 

37.3. Equipment purchased using Grantor funds shall be made available for inspection during site 
visits, and upon request of Grantor as part of its grant monitoring and oversight responsibilities. 
 
37.4. If, for an item of equipment described in the Budget to be purchased with Grantor funds, 
Grantee does not have, at a minimum, a purchase order dated within 90 days after the start date of the 
agreement, Grantee shall submit a letter to Grantor explaining the delay in the purchase of equipment. 
Grantor may, in its discretion: 
 

A. Reduce the amount of funding; 
B. Cancel this agreement; 
C. Allow Grantee to reallocate the funds that were allocated for such equipment to other 
 allowable Grantor approved costs; or 
D. Extend the period to purchase this equipment past the 90-day period. 

 
38. Program Income. All income, including income resulting from asset seizures or forfeitures, generated as a 

direct result of the program shall be deemed program income. Program income must be used for the purposes 
and under the conditions applicable to the use of grant funds. Program income may be retained by Grantee 
for any purpose that furthers the objectives of the grant or deducted from the total allowable costs in 
accordance with Part I, 7.7. Grantee shall report and account for such program income as required by the 
Grantor. 

  
39. Separate Revenue and Expenditure Accounts. Grantee must have an accounting system that meets the 

following requirements:  
  

(a) Provides for the clear identification, in its accounts, of all Federal awards, State awards, and 
matching funds received or expended.  

(b) Enables the preparation of reports required by general and program-specific terms and 
conditions of Grantee’s awards. 

(c) Allows the tracing of funds to a level of expenditures adequate to establish that such funds have 
been used according to the Federal statutes; regulations; and the terms and conditions of the 
Federal or State award.  

(d) Requires each Federal award, State award, and matching fund revenues and expenditures to be 
accounted, recorded, and tracked separately by funding source.  

(e) Includes classification of expenditures (e.g., personnel, commodities, equipment). 
(f) Maintains a system coding or classification system that permits summarization and reporting of 

grant revenue and expenditures by specific accounts, programs, projects, etc. 
(g) Ensures that Federal and State awarded funds and matching funds are not commingled with 

funds from other Federal, State, or private sources. 2 CFR 200.302. 
(h) Maintain an accounting system that utilizes generally accepted standards of accounting. 

 
40. Publications.  

 
40.1. In addition to the requirements of Part I, Article XIX Grantee shall submit to Grantor for review, 
certain publications that will be issued by Grantee describing or resulting from programs or projects funded 
in whole or in part with grant funds, no later than 30 days prior to its printing.  
 
40.2         The publications subject to this review are:  journals and annual reports that describe how grantee 
has used the funding, any paid advertisement or public awareness campaign regardless of format, and any 
other publication that cumulatively costs more than $1000 to create or produce. These publication review 



  Agreement No. 420060 
 
 

State of Illinois 
GRANT AGREEMENT FISCAL YEAR 2024 / 4/27/2023 

Page 44 of 64 
 
 

requirements do not apply to press releases, flyers advertising approved program activities only, newsletters 
and issue analyses. 

 
40.3. Grantor reserves the right to require the resubmission of any publication for additional review and 
comment, prior to its printing. 

 
 40.4. All publications shall supplement the language required by Part I, Article XIX with the   
 following statement: 
 

"Funding provided in whole or in part by the Illinois Criminal Justice Information Authority. Points of 
view or opinions contained within this document are those of the author and do not necessarily 
represent the official position or policies of the State of Illinois, or the Illinois Criminal Justice 
Information Authority." 

 
40.5. When issuing statements, press releases, requests for proposals, bid solicitations, and other 
documents describing projects or programs funded in whole or in part with Federal grant funds, Grantee 
shall clearly state (1) the percentage of the total cost of the program or project which will be funded under 
this agreement, and (2) the dollar amount of funding for the project or program in addition to the statement 
required in 42.4. 

 
40.6 Exceptions to the above requirements shall only be allowed upon Grantor’s written prior approval. 
 

41. Reporting Grant Irregularities.  
 
41.1. Grantee shall promptly notify Grantor through their Grant Monitor when an allegation is made, 
or Grantee otherwise receives information, reasonably tending to show the possible existence of any 
irregularities or illegal acts in the administration of Grant Funds. Grantor, per its agency policy, shall 
determine the reasonableness of the allegation of the irregularities or illegal action and determine the 
appropriate course of action. Possible actions would include conducting an internal audit or other 
investigation or contacting the proper authorities.  Illegal acts and irregularities include such matters as 
conflicts of interest, falsification of records or reports both data, financial and programmatic, and the 
misappropriation of funds or other assets.  

 
41.2. Grantee shall inform any sub-recipient of Grantor’s Grant Funds that the sub-recipient is similarly 
obligated to report irregularities.  

 
41.3. Failure to report known irregularities can result in suspension of the Interagency Agreement or 
other remedial action. In addition, if Grantee’s auditor or other staff becomes aware of any possible illegal 
acts or other irregularities prompt notice shall be given to Grantee’s director. Grantee, in turn, shall 
promptly notify Grantor as described above of the possible illegal acts or irregularities. If the possible 
misconduct involves Grantee’s director, Grantee staff member shall provide prompt notice directly to 
Grantor.  

 
41.4. In addition, Grantor, if in its judgment there is a reasonable allegation of irregularity or illegal act, 
shall inform the Office of Justice Program’s Office of the Comptroller, the Department of Justice’s Office of 
Professional Responsibility and the Office of Inspector General, and state and local law enforcement 
agencies or prosecuting authorities, as appropriate, of any known violations of the law within their 
respective area of jurisdiction.  
 



  Agreement No. 420060 
 
 

State of Illinois 
GRANT AGREEMENT FISCAL YEAR 2024 / 4/27/2023 

Page 45 of 64 
 
 

41.5. Known or suspected violations of any law encountered during audits, including fraud, theft, 
embezzlement, forgery, or other serious irregularities, must be immediately communicated to Grantor 
and appropriate federal, State, and local law enforcement officials. 
 
41.5. Grantee agrees to develop and maintain a record-keeping system to document all Agreement 
related activities and expenditures. These records will act as the original source material for compilation 
of the data and all other program activity. 

 
41.6. The reporting of any irregularities, illegal acts and the proposed or actual corrective action shall 
be reported to Grantor at: 

 
Illinois Criminal Justice Information Authority 
Attn: Office of General Counsel 
60 E. Van Buren Street, Ste 650 
Chicago, IL 60605 
CJA.OGCreport@illinois.gov 

 
42. Reporting Potential Fraud, Waste, or Similar Misconduct.  

 
42.1. Grantee shall promptly refer to Grantor, via their assigned Grant Monitor, any credible evidence 
that a principal, employee, agent, contractor, subcontractor, or subaward has either submitted a false 
claim for grant funds in violation of the False Claims Act or committed a criminal or civil violation of laws 
pertaining to fraud, conflict of interest, bribery, gratuity or similar misconduct involving grant funds.  

 
42.2. Potential fraud, waste, abuse or misconduct shall be reported to Grantor at: 

 
Illinois Criminal Justice Information Authority 
Attn: Office of General Counsel 
60 E. Van Buren Street, Ste 650 
Chicago, IL 60605 
CJA.OGCreport@illinois.gov 

 
43. Crimes of Dishonesty. Grantee shall notify Grantor as soon as practical if any of its own or any of its 

subawards’ and/or its subcontractors’ board members, executive officers, directors, administrators, 
supervisors, managers, or financial officers or anyone holding such a position of authority is criminally 
charged with or convicted of theft, fraud, or any other crime involving dishonesty at any point during the 
period of performance of this grant. Grantor may terminate this agreement, at Grantor’s sole discretion, if 
Grantee’s or any of its subawards’ and/or its subcontractors’ board members, executive officers, 
directors, administrators, supervisors, managers, or financial officers or anyone holding such a position of 
authority become convicted of theft, fraud, or any crime involving dishonesty. 
 

44. Conflict of Interest in Hiring and Procurement. In addition to the requirements of Part I, Article XVII, no 
employee, officer, or agent of Grantee shall participate in the selection of a contractor, award of a 
contract, administration of a contract, or hiring of personnel supported by grant funds if a conflict of 
interest, real or apparent, would be involved. Grantee shall establish safeguards to prohibit employees 
from using their positions for a purpose that is or gives the appearance of being motivated by a desire for 
private gain for themselves or others. 
 
 

mailto:CJA.OGCreport@illinois.gov
mailto:CJA.OGCreport@illinois.gov


  Agreement No. 420060 
 
 

State of Illinois 
GRANT AGREEMENT FISCAL YEAR 2024 / 4/27/2023 

Page 46 of 64 
 
 

45. Safeguarding Constitutional Protections Related to Religion 
 

46.1  Grantee certifies that grant and match funded services must be offered without regard to 
religious affiliation. Grantee also certifies that the receipt of services through the grant funded program 
shall not be contingent upon participation in a religious event or activity. Grant or match funds may not 
be used for any explicitly religious activities such as worship, religious instruction, or proselytization. 
Grantee may engage in inherently religious activities, but such activities must be separate in time or place 
from the grant funded program, and beneficiaries cannot be compelled to participate in them. 
 
46.2  Faith-based organizations may consider religion when hiring staff if consistent with the Religious 
Freedom Restoration Act and other applicable laws. If the grant is funded with federal funds, Grantee 
must receive prior approval from the Department of Justice, Office for Civil Rights. 

 
46. Restrictions and Certifications Regarding Non-Disclosure Agreements and Related Matters. Grantee and 

any entity that receives a contract or subcontract with any funds under this award, may not require any 
employee or contractor to sign an internal confidentiality agreement or statement that prohibits or 
otherwise restricts, or purports to prohibit or restrict, the reporting (in accordance with law) of waste, 
fraud, or abuse to an investigative or law enforcement representative of a federal department or agency 
authorized to receive such information. 
 

a. In accepting this award, Grantee – 
 

i. represents that it neither requires nor has required internal confidentiality agreements 
or statements from employees or contractors that currently prohibit or otherwise 
currently restrict (or purport to prohibit or restrict) employees or contractors from 
reporting waste, fraud, or abuse as described above; and 

ii. certifies that, if it learns or is notified that it is or has been requiring its employees or 
contractors to execute agreements or statements that prohibit or otherwise restrict (or 
purport to prohibit or restrict), reporting of waste, fraud, or abuse as described above, it 
will immediately stop any further obligations of award funds, will provide prompt 
written notification to Grantor, and will resume (or permit resumption of) such 
obligations only if expressly authorized to do so by Grantor. 
 

b. If Grantee makes subawards or contracts under this award – 
i. it represents that – 

 
1. it has determined that no other entity that Grantee's application proposes may 

or will receive award funds (whether through a subaward, contract, or 
subcontract) either requires or has required internal confidentiality agreements 
or statements from employees or contractors that currently prohibit or 
otherwise currently restrict (or purport to prohibit or restrict) employees or 
contractors from reporting waste, fraud, or abuse as described above; and 

2. it has made appropriate inquiry, or otherwise has an adequate factual basis, to 
support this representation; and 
 

ii. it certifies that, if it learns or is notified that any subrecipient, contractor, or 
subcontractor entity that receives funds under this award is or has been requiring its 
employees or contractors to execute agreements or statements that prohibit or 
otherwise restrict (or purport to prohibit or restrict), reporting of waste, fraud, or abuse 



  Agreement No. 420060 
 
 

State of Illinois 
GRANT AGREEMENT FISCAL YEAR 2024 / 4/27/2023 

Page 47 of 64 
 
 

as described above, it will immediately stop any further obligations of award funds to or 
by that entity, will provide prompt written notification to the agency making this award, 
and will resume (or permit resumption of) such obligations only if expressly authorized 
to do so by that agency. 
 

47. Background Checks for youth programs. Background checks are required for all program staff, 
independent contractors, and volunteers, including   program staff, independent contractors, and 
volunteers for subawards and subcontractors, who have direct contact with youth before hiring or before 
working on the program.  Grantee must have a written protocol on file requiring fingerprint-based 
background checks through the Illinois State Police for all persons and maintain documentation of their 
completion and results. The written protocol must incorporate the factors and procedures mandated by 
775 ILCS 5/2-103.1. Any exception must be granted in writing by Grantor. Exceptions may include but are 
not guaranteed or limited to if the program model or service provision relies on staff access or credibility 
with at-risk populations.    
        

48. Project Monitoring and Evaluation. 
48.1. Project Monitoring: Grantee understands that Grantor may impose additional reporting 
requirements during the grant period by providing notice in writing to Grantee.  Grantee agrees to report 
any additional information required by Grantor. 
 
48.2. Grantor Evaluation: As required by Grantor, Grantee agrees to cooperate with Grantor’s evaluation 
of the grant project, conducted either by Grantor or external parties.   
 
48.3. Grantee Evaluation: Project evaluation is limited to evaluation of Grantee’s project, as described in 
this Agreement, to determine the project’s effectiveness. Grantee understands and agrees that grant and 
match funds cannot be used for research purposes, as defined under 45 CFR 46.102(d). Grantee will 
provide Grantor with aggregate project data and summary reports related to project performance, 
including process and outcome, and any other information, as requested by Grantor. 
 

49. Confidentiality of Records. Grantee agrees not to use or reveal any research or statistical information 
furnished under this program by any person and identifiable to any specific private person for any 
purpose other than the purpose for which such information was obtained in accordance with this 
program and all applicable federal guidelines and legislation without written consent from Grantor. 
Grantee shall notify Grantor within three (3) business days of any such request. 
 

50. Tax Liabilities; State Agency Delinquencies. Grantee is required to file of any and all applicable tax returns. 
In the event that a Grantee is delinquent in filing and/or paying any federal, state and/or local taxes, the 
Grantor shall disburse Grant Funds only if the Grantee enters into an installment payment agreement 
with said tax authority and remains in good standing therewith. Grantee is required to tender a copy of 
any such installment payment agreement to the Grantor. In no event may Grantee utilize Grant Funds to 
discharge outstanding tax liabilities or other debts owed to any governmental unit. The execution of this 
Agreement by the Grantee is its certification that (i) it is current as to the filing and payment of any 
federal, state and/or local taxes applicable to Grantee; and (ii) it is not delinquent in its payment of 
moneys owed to any federal, state, or local unit of government. 

 
51. Compliance. Grantee agrees to comply with all applicable laws, regulations, and guidelines of the State of 

Illinois, the Federal Government and Grantor in the performance of this Agreement. 
 

 



  Agreement No. 420060 
 
 

State of Illinois 
GRANT AGREEMENT FISCAL YEAR 2024 / 4/27/2023 

Page 48 of 64 
 
 

PART THREE –PROJECT-SPECIFIC TERMS 
 

In addition to the Uniform Requirements in PART ONE and Grantor-Specific Terms in PART TWO, Grantor has the 
following additional requirements for this Project: 
 

52. Employment eligibility verification for hiring under the award.  
 
52.1  Grantee (and any subrecipient at any tier) must-- 

 
A. Ensure that, as part of the hiring process for any position within the United States that is or 
will be funded (in whole or in part) with award funds, the grantee (or any subrecipient) properly 
verifies the employment eligibility of the individual who is being hired, consistent with the 
provisions of 8 U.S.C. 1324a(a)(1) and (2). 
 
B. Notify all persons associated with the grantee (or any subrecipient) who are or will be involved 
in activities under his award of both-- 
 

(1) this award requirement for verification of employment eligibility, and 
(2) the associated provisions in 8 U.S.C. 1324a(a)(1) and (2) that, generally speaking, 
make it unlawful, in the United States, to hire (or recruit for employment) certain aliens. 

 
C. Provide training (to the extent necessary) to those persons required by this condition to be 
notified of the award requirement for employment eligibility verification and of the associated 
provisions of 8 U.S.C. 1324a(a)(1) and (2). 
 
D. As part of the recordkeeping for the award (including pursuant to the Part 200 Uniform 
Requirements), maintain records of all employment eligibility verifications pertinent to 
compliance with this award condition in accordance 
 

52.2.  The grantee’s monitoring responsibilities include monitoring of subrecipient compliance with this 
condition. 

 
52.3.  To the extent that such costs are not reimbursed under any other federal program, award funds 
may be obligated for the reasonable, necessary, and allocable costs (if any) of actions designed to ensure 
compliance with this condition. 

 
52.4.  Rules of construction 

A. For purposes of this condition, persons "who are or will be involved in activities under 
this award" specifically includes (without limitation) any and all grantee (or any 
subrecipient) officials or other staff who are or will be involved in the hiring process with 
respect to a position that is or will be funded (in whole or in part) with award funds. 

 
B. Employment eligibility confirmation with E-Verify 
For purposes of satisfying the requirement of this condition regarding verification of 
employment eligibility, the grantee (or any subrecipient) may choose to participate in, 
and use, E-Verify (www.e-verify.gov), provided an appropriate person authorized to act 
on behalf of the grantee (or subrecipient) uses E-Verify (and follows the proper E-Verify 
procedures, including in the event of a "Tentative Nonconfirmation" or a "Final 
Nonconfirmation") to confirm employment eligibility for each hiring for a position in the 



  Agreement No. 420060 
 
 

State of Illinois 
GRANT AGREEMENT FISCAL YEAR 2024 / 4/27/2023 

Page 49 of 64 
 
 

United States that is or will be funded (in whole or in part) with award funds. 
 
C. "United States" specifically includes the District of Columbia, Puerto Rico, Guam, the 
Virgin Islands of the United 
States, and the Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana Islands. 
 
D. Nothing in this condition shall be understood to authorize or require any grantee, any 
subrecipient at any tier, or any person or other entity, to violate any federal law, 
including any applicable civil rights or nondiscrimination law. 
 
E. Nothing in this condition, including in paragraph 4.B., shall be understood to relieve 
any grantee, any subrecipient at any tier, or any person or other entity, of any obligation 
otherwise imposed by law, including 8 U.S.C. 1324a(a)(1) 
and (2). 
 
Questions about E-Verify should be directed to DHS. For more information about E-
Verify visit the E-Verify website (https://www.e-verify.gov/) or email E-Verify at E-
Verify@dhs.gov. E-Verify employer agents can email EVerify at E-
VerifyEmployerAgent@dhs.gov. 
 
Questions about the meaning or scope of this condition should be directed to OJP, 
before award acceptance. 
 

53. All subawards ("subgrants") must have specific federal authorization. The grantee, and any subrecipient 
("subrecipient") at any tier, must comply with all applicable requirements for authorization of any subaward. 
This condition applies to agreements that -- for purposes of federal grants administrative requirements -- OJP 
considers a "subaward" (and therefore does not consider a procurement "contract"). The details of the 
requirement for authorization of any subaward are posted on the OJP web site at 
https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/SubawardAuthorization.htm (Award condition: All subawards ("subgrants") 
must have specific federal authorization), and are incorporated by reference here. 
 
54. Specific post-award approval required to use a noncompetitive approach in any procurement contract 
that would exceed $250,000.  

 
The grantee, and any subrecipient at any tier, must comply with all applicable requirements to obtain specific 
advance approval to use a noncompetitive approach in any procurement contract that would exceed the 
Simplified Acquisition Threshold (currently, $250,000). This condition applies to agreements that -- for 
purposes of Federal grants administrative requirements -- OJP considers a procurement "contract" (and 
therefore does not consider a subaward). 

 
The details of the requirement for advance approval to use a noncompetitive approach in a procurement 
contract under an OJP award are posted on the OJP web site at 
https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/NoncompetitiveProcurement.htm (Award condition: Specific post-award 
approval required to use a noncompetitive approach in a procurement contract(if contract would exceed 
$250,000)), and are incorporated by reference here. 
 
55. Unreasonable restrictions on competition under the award; association with federal government 
 

mailto:E-VerifyEmployerAgent@dhs.gov
mailto:E-VerifyEmployerAgent@dhs.gov
https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/NoncompetitiveProcurement.htm


  Agreement No. 420060 
 
 

State of Illinois 
GRANT AGREEMENT FISCAL YEAR 2024 / 4/27/2023 

Page 50 of 64 
 
 

 
 

SCOPE. This condition applies with respect to any procurement of property or services that is funded (in 
whole or in part) by this award, whether by the grantee or by any subrecipient at any tier, and regardless 
of the dollar amount of the purchase or acquisition, the method of procurement, or the nature of any 
legal instrument used. The provisions of this condition must be among those included in any subaward (at 
any tier). 
 
55.1. No discrimination, in procurement transactions, against associates of the federal government 
Consistent with the (DOJ) Part 200 Uniform Requirements -- including as set out at 2 C.F.R. 200.300 
(requiring awards to be "manage[d] and administer[ed] in a manner so as to ensure that Federal funding 
is expended and associated programs are implemented in full accordance with U.S. statutory and public 
policy requirements") and 200.319(a) (generally requiring "[a]ll procurement transactions [to] be 
conducted in a manner providing full and open competition" and forbidding practices "restrictive of 
competition," such as "[p]lacing unreasonable requirements on firms in order for them to qualify to do 
business" and taking "[a]ny arbitrary action in the procurement process") – no grantee (or subrecipient, at 
any tier) may (in any procurement transaction) discriminate against any person or entity on the basis of 
such person or entity's status as an "associate of the federal government" (or on the basis of such person 
or entity's status as a parent, affiliate, or subsidiary of such an associate), except as expressly set out in 2 
C.F.R. 200.319(a) or as specifically authorized by USDOJ. 
 
55.2. The grantee’s monitoring responsibilities include monitoring of subrecipient compliance with this 
condition. 
 
55.3. To the extent that such costs are not reimbursed under any other federal program, award funds may 
be obligated for the reasonable, necessary, and allocable costs (if any) of actions designed to ensure 
compliance with this condition. 
 
55.4. Rules of construction 
 

A. The term "associate of the federal government" means any person or entity engaged or 
employed (in the past or at present) by or on behalf of the federal government -- as an 
employee, contractor or subcontractor (at any tier), grant grantee or -subrecipient (at any tier), 
agent, or otherwise -- in undertaking any work, project, or activity for or on behalf of (or in 
providing goods or services to or on behalf of) the federal government, and includes any 
applicant for such employment or engagement, and any person or entity committed by legal 
instrument to undertake any such work, project, or activity (or to provide such goods or services) 
in future. 
 
B. Nothing in this condition shall be understood to authorize or require any grantee, any 
subrecipient at any tier, or any person or other entity, to violate any federal law, including any 
applicable civil rights or nondiscrimination law. 
 

56. Requirements pertaining to prohibited conduct related to trafficking in persons  The grantee, and any 
subrecipient at any tier, must comply with all applicable requirements (including requirements to report 
allegations) pertaining to prohibited conduct related to the trafficking of persons, whether on the part of 
grantee, subrecipient, or individuals defined (for purposes of this condition) as "employees" of the grantee or 
of any subrecipient. 
 



  Agreement No. 420060 
 
 

State of Illinois 
GRANT AGREEMENT FISCAL YEAR 2024 / 4/27/2023 

Page 51 of 64 
 
 

The details of the grantee’s obligations related to prohibited conduct related to trafficking in persons are 
posted on the OJP web site at https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/ProhibitedConduct-Trafficking.htm (Award 
condition: Prohibited conduct by grantee and subrecipient related to trafficking in persons (including reporting 
requirements and OJP authority to terminate award)), and are incorporated by reference here. 
 
57. Determination of suitability to interact with participating minors This condition applies to this award if it is 
indicated that a purpose of some or all of the activities to be carried out under the award (whether by the 
grantee, or a subrecipient at any tier) is to benefit a set of individuals under 18 years of age. 
 
The grantee, and any subrecipient at any tier, must make determinations of suitability before certain 
individuals may interact with participating minors. This requirement applies regardless of an individual's 
employment status. The details of this requirement are posted on the OJP web site at 
https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/Interact-Minors.htm (Award condition: Determination of suitability required, 
in advance, for certain individuals who may interact with participating minors), and are incorporated by 
reference here. 
 
58. Conferences, Meetings, Trainings, and other events. Grantee, and any subrecipient at any tier, must 
comply with all applicable laws, regulations, policies, and official DOJ guidance (including specific cost limits, 
prior approval and reporting requirements, where applicable) governing the use of federal funds for expenses 
related to conferences (as that term is defined by DOJ), including the provision of food and/or beverages at 
such conferences, and costs of attendance at such conferences. Information on the pertinent DOJ definition of 
conferences and the rules applicable to this award appears in the DOJ Grants Financial Guide (currently, as 
section 3.10 of "Postaward Requirements" in the "DOJ Grants Financial Guide"). 
 
59. OJP Training Guiding Principles. Any training or training materials that Grantee develops or delivers with 
grant funds must adhere to the OJP Training Guiding Principles for Grantees and Subrecipients, available at 
https://ojp.gov/funding/Implement/TrainingPrinciplesForGrantees-Subgrantees.htm. 

 
60. Compliance with DOJ regulations pertaining to civil rights and nondiscrimination - 28 C.F.R. Part 42 
The grantee, and any subrecipient at any tier, must comply with all applicable requirements of 28 C.F.R. Part 
42, specifically including any applicable requirements in Subpart E of 28 C.F.R. Part 42 that relate to an equal 
employment opportunity program. 
 
61. Compliance with DOJ regulations pertaining to civil rights and nondiscrimination - 28 C.F.R. Part 54 
The grantee, and any subrecipient at any tier, must comply with all applicable requirements of 28 C.F.R. Part 
54, which relates to nondiscrimination on the basis of sex in certain "education programs." 
 
62. Compliance with DOJ regulations pertaining to civil rights and nondiscrimination - 28 C.F.R. Part 38 
The grantee, and any subrecipient at any tier, must comply with all applicable requirements of 28 C.F.R. Part 
38 (as may be applicable from time to time), specifically including any applicable requirements regarding 
written notice to program beneficiaries and prospective program beneficiaries. 
Currently, among other things, 28 C.F.R. Part 38 includes rules that prohibit specific forms of discrimination on 
the basis of religion, a religious belief, a refusal to hold a religious belief, or refusal to attend or participate in a 
religious practice. Part 38, currently, also sets out rules and requirements that pertain to grantee and 
subrecipient organizations that engage in or conduct explicitly religious activities, as well as rules and 
requirements that pertain to grantees and subrecipients that are faith-based or religious organizations. 
 
The text of 28 C.F.R. Part 38 is available via the Electronic Code of Federal Regulations (currently accessible at 
https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/ECFR?page=browse), by browsing to Title 28-Judicial Administration, Chapter 1, 

https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/Interact-Minors.htm
https://ojp.gov/funding/Implement/TrainingPrinciplesForGrantees-Subgrantees.htm


  Agreement No. 420060 
 
 

State of Illinois 
GRANT AGREEMENT FISCAL YEAR 2024 / 4/27/2023 

Page 52 of 64 
 
 

Part 38, under e-CFR "current" data. 
 
63. Restrictions on "lobbying" In general, as a matter of federal law, federal funds awarded by OJP may not be 
used by the grantee, or any subrecipient at any tier, either directly or indirectly, to support or oppose the 
enactment, repeal, modification, or adoption of any law, regulation, or policy, at any level of government. See 
18 U.S.C. 1913. (There may be exceptions if an applicable federal statute specifically authorizes certain 
activities that otherwise would be barred by law.) 
 
Another federal law generally prohibits federal funds awarded by OJP from being used by the grantee, or any 
subrecipient at any tier, to pay any person to influence (or attempt to influence) a federal agency, a Member 
of Congress, or Congress (or an official or employee of any of them) with respect to the awarding of a federal 
grant or cooperative agreement, subgrant, contract, subcontract, or loan, or with respect to actions such as 
renewing, extending, or modifying any such award. See 31 U.S.C. 1352. Certain exceptions to this law apply, 
including an exception that applies to Indian tribes and tribal organizations. 
 
If receiving more than $100,000 pursuant to this agreement, Grantee agrees to provide a Certification 
Regarding Lobbying to Grantor and, if applicable, a Disclosure of Lobbying Activities form. If a sub-contractor 
will receive more than $100,000 in federal funds pursuant to this agreement, Grantee will provide to Grantor a 
Certification Regarding Lobbying and, if applicable, a Disclosure of Lobbying Activities form signed by the sub-
contractor. Grantee must provide these certifications and disclosures as required by Grantor. 
 
Should any question arise as to whether a particular use of federal funds by grantee (or subrecipient) would or 
might fall within the scope of these prohibitions, grantee is to contact ICJIA for guidance, and may not proceed 
without the express prior written approval of ICJIA and OJP. 
 
64. Appropriations-law Restrictions. Compliance with general appropriations-law restrictions on the use of 
federal funds (FY 2020) The grantee, and any subrecipient at any tier, must comply with all applicable 
restrictions on the use of federal funds set out in federal appropriations statutes. Pertinent restrictions that 
may be set out in applicable appropriations acts are indicated at 
https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/FY20AppropriationsRestrictions.htm, and are incorporated by reference here. 
Should a question arise as to whether a particular use of federal funds by a grantee (or a subrecipient) would 
or might fall within the scope of an appropriations-law restriction, the grantee is to contact OJP for guidance, 
and may not proceed without the express prior written approval of OJP. 
 
65. Reporting Potential Fraud, waste and abuse In addition to the requirements of paragraph 45, The grantee, 
and any subrecipients ("subrecipients") at any tier, must promptly refer to the DOJ Office of the Inspector 
General (OIG) any credible evidence that a principal, employee, agent, subrecipient, contractor, subcontractor, 
or other person has, in connection with funds under this award-- (1) submitted a claim that violates the False 
Claims Act; or (2) committed a criminal or civil violation of laws pertaining to fraud, conflict of interest, 
bribery, gratuity, or similar misconduct. Potential fraud, waste, abuse, or misconduct involving or relating to 
funds under this award should be reported to the OIG by--(1) online submission accessible via the OIG 
webpage at https://oig.justice.gov/hotline/contact-grants.htm (select "Submit Report Online"); (2) mail 
directed to: U.S. Department of Justice, Office of the Inspector General, Investigations Division, ATTN: Grantee 
Reporting, 950 Pennsylvania Ave., NW, Washington, DC 20530; and/or (3) by facsimile directed to the DOJ OIG 
Investigations Division (Attn: Grantee Reporting) at (202) 616-9881 (fax). Additional information is available 
from the DOJ OIG website at https://oig.justice.gov/hotline. 
 
66. Restrictions and Certifications Regarding Non-Disclosure Agreements and Related Matters. Grantee and 
any entity that receives a contract or subcontract with any funds under this award, may not require any 

https://oig.justice.gov/hotline/contact-grants.htm


  Agreement No. 420060 
 
 

State of Illinois 
GRANT AGREEMENT FISCAL YEAR 2024 / 4/27/2023 

Page 53 of 64 
 
 

employee or contractor to sign an internal confidentiality agreement or statement that prohibits or otherwise 
restricts, or purports to prohibit or restrict, the reporting (in accordance with law) of waste, fraud, or abuse to 
an investigative or law enforcement representative of a federal department or agency authorized to receive 
such information. 

 
a. In accepting this award, Grantee – 
 

i. represents that it neither requires nor has required internal confidentiality agreements or 
statements from employees or contractors that currently prohibit or otherwise currently 
restrict (or purport to prohibit or restrict) employees or contractors from reporting waste, 
fraud, or abuse as described above; and 

ii. certifies that, if it learns or is notified that it is or has been requiring its employees or 
contractors to execute agreements or statements that prohibit or otherwise restrict (or 
purport to prohibit or restrict), reporting of waste, fraud, or abuse as described above, it will 
immediately stop any further obligations of award funds, will provide prompt written 
notification to Grantor, and will resume (or permit resumption of) such obligations only if 
expressly authorized to do so by Grantor. 

 
b. If Grantee makes sub-awards or contracts under this award – 

i. it represents that – 
 

1. it has determined that no other entity that Grantee 's application proposes may or 
will receive award funds (whether through a subaward, contract, or subcontract) 
either requires or has required internal confidentiality agreements or statements 
from employees or contractors that currently prohibit or otherwise currently 
restrict (or purport to prohibit or restrict) employees or contractors from reporting 
waste, fraud, or abuse as described above; and 

2. it has made appropriate inquiry, or otherwise has an adequate factual basis, to 
support this representation; and 

 
ii. it certifies that, if it learns or is notified that any subrecipient, contractor, or subcontractor 

entity that receives funds under this award is or has been requiring its employees or 
contractors to execute agreements or statements that prohibit or otherwise restrict (or 
purport to prohibit or restrict), reporting of waste, fraud, or abuse as described above, it will 
immediately stop any further obligations of award funds to or by that entity, will provide 
prompt written notification to the agency making this award, and will resume (or permit 
resumption of) such obligations only if expressly authorized to do so by that agency. 

 
67. Prohibition on Reprisals. The grantee and any sub-grantee, must comply with, and is subject to, all 
applicable provisions of 41 U.S.C. 4712, including all applicable provisions that prohibit, under specified 
circumstances, discrimination against an employee as reprisal for the employee's disclosure of information 
related to gross mismanagement of a federal grant, a gross waste of federal funds, an abuse of authority 
relating to a federal grant, a substantial and specific danger to public health or safety, or a violation of law, 
rule, or regulation related to a federal grant. The grantee and any sub-grantee also must inform its employees, 
in writing (and in the predominant native language of the workforce), of employee rights and remedies under 
41 U.S.C. 4712. Should a question arise as to the applicability of the provisions of 41 U.S.C. 4712 to this award, 
the grantee is to contact the DOJ awarding agency (OJP or OVW, as appropriate) for guidance. 
 



  Agreement No. 420060 
 
 

State of Illinois 
GRANT AGREEMENT FISCAL YEAR 2024 / 4/27/2023 

Page 54 of 64 
 
 

68. Text Messaging While Driving. Pursuant to Executive Order 13513, "Federal Leadership on Reducing Text 
Messaging While Driving," 74 Fed. Reg. 51225 (October 1, 2009), DOJ encourages grantees and subrecipients 
to adopt and enforce policies banning employees from text messaging while driving any vehicle during the 
course of performing work funded by this award, and to establish workplace safety policies and conduct 
awareness, and other outreach to decrease crashes caused by distracted drivers. 
 
69. Justice Information Sharing. Information sharing projects funded under this award must comply with 
DOJ's Global Justice Information Sharing Initiative (Global) guidelines. The grantee (and any subrecipient at 
any tier) must conform to the Global Standards Package (GSP) and all constituent elements, where applicable, 
as described at: https:/ / it.ojp.gov/ gsp_grantcondition. The grantee (and any subrecipient at any tier) must 
document planned approaches to information sharing and describe compliance with the GSP and appropriate 
privacy policy that protects shared information or provide detailed justification for why an alternative 
approach is recommended. 

 
70. Compliance with 28 C.F.R. Part 23. With respect to any information technology system funded or 
supported by funds under this award, Grantee (and any subrecipient at any tier) must comply with 28 C.F.R. 
Part 23, Criminal Intelligence Systems Operating Policies, if OJP determines this regulation to be applicable. 
Should OJP determine 28 C.F.R. Part 23 to be applicable, OJP may, at its discretion, perform audits of the 
system, as per the regulation. Should any violation of 28 C.F.R. Part 23 occur, Grantee may be fined as per 42 
U.S.C. 3789g(c)-(d). Grantee may not satisfy such a fine with federal funds. 
 
71. Protection of human research subjects. The grantee (and any subrecipient at any tier) must comply with 
the requirements of 28 C.F.R. Part 46 and all OJP policies and procedures regarding the protection of human 
research subjects, including obtainment of Institutional Review Board approval, if appropriate, and subject 
informed consent. 
 
72. Confidentiality of Records.  

 
The grantee (and any subrecipient at any tier) must comply with all confidentiality requirements of 34 U.S.C. 
10231 and 28 C.F.R. Part 22 that are applicable to collection, use, and revelation of data or information. The 
grantee further agrees, as a condition of award approval, to submit a Privacy Certificate that is in accord with 
requirements of 28 C.F.R. Part 22 and, in particular, 28 C.F.R. 22.23. 
 
73. Submission of eligible records relevant to the National Instant Background Check System Consonant with 
federal statutes that pertain to firearms and background checks -- including 18 U.S.C. 922 and 34 U.S.C. ch. 
409 -- if Grantee (or any subrecipient) uses this award to fund (in whole or in part) a specific project or 
program (such as a law enforcement, prosecution, or court program) that results in any court dispositions, 
information, or other records that are "eligible records" (under federal or State law) relevant to the National 
Instant Background Check System (NICS), or that has as one of its purposes the establishment or improvement 
of records systems that contain any court dispositions, information, or other records that are "eligible records" 
(under federal or State law) relevant to the NICS, the Grantee (or subrecipient, if applicable) must ensure that 
all such court dispositions, information, or other records that are "eligible records" (under federal or State law) 
relevant to the NICS are promptly made available to the NICS or to the "State" repository/database that is 
electronically available to (and accessed by) the NICS, and -- when appropriate -- promptly must update, 
correct, modify, or remove such NICS relevant "eligible records". 
 
74. Required attendance at BJA-sponsored events Grantee and any subrecipient must participate in BJA-
sponsored training events, technical assistance events, or conferences held by BJA or its designees, upon BJA's 
request. 



  Agreement No. 420060 
 
 

State of Illinois 
GRANT AGREEMENT FISCAL YEAR 2024 / 4/27/2023 

Page 55 of 64 
 
 

 
75. Compliance with National Environmental Policy Act and Related Statutes.  

 
Upon request, the grantee (and any subrecipient at any tier) must assist BJA in complying with the 
National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA), the National Historic Preservation Act, and other related 
federal environmental impact analyses requirements in the use of these award funds, either directly by 
the grantee or by a subrecipient. Accordingly, the grantee agrees to first determine if any of the following 
activities will be funded by the grant, prior to obligating funds for any of these purposes. If it is 
determined that any of the following activities will be funded by the award, the grantee agrees to contact 
BJA.  

 
The grantee understands that this condition applies to new activities as set out below, whether or not 
they are being specifically funded with these award funds. That is, as long as the activity is being 
conducted by the grantee, a subrecipient, or any third party, and the activity needs to be undertaken in 
order to use these award funds, this condition must first be met. The activities covered by this condition 
are:  
 
a. New construction;  

 
b. Minor renovation or remodeling of a property located in an environmentally or historically sensitive 
area, including properties located within a 100-year flood plain, a wetland, or habitat for endangered 
species, or a property listed on or eligible for listing on the National Register of Historic Places;  

 
c. A renovation, lease, or any proposed use of a building or facility that will either (a) result in a change in 
its basic prior use or (b) significantly change its size;  

 
d. Implementation of a new program involving the use of chemicals other than chemicals that are (a) 
purchased as an incidental component of a funded activity and (b) traditionally used, for example, in 
office, household, recreational, or education environments; and  

 
e. Implementation of a program relating to clandestine methamphetamine laboratory operations, 
including the identification, seizure, or closure of clandestine methamphetamine laboratories.  

 
The grantee understands and agrees that complying with NEPA may require the preparation of an 
Environmental Assessment and/or an Environmental Impact Statement, as directed by BJA. The grantee 
further understands and agrees to the requirements for implementation of a Mitigation Plan, as detailed 
at https://bja.gov/Funding/nepa.html, for programs relating to methamphetamine laboratory operations.  

 
Application of This Condition to Grantee's Existing Programs or Activities: For any of the grantee's or its 
subrecipients' existing programs or activities that will be funded by these award funds, the grantee, upon 
specific request from BJA, agrees to cooperate with BJA in any preparation by BJA of a national or 
program environmental assessment of that funded program or activity. 
 

76. Establishment of trust. If award funds are being drawn down in advance, the grantee (or a subrecipient, 
with respect to a subaward) is required to establish a trust fund account. Grantees (and subrecipients) must 
maintain advance payments of federal awards in interest-bearing accounts, unless regulatory exclusions apply 
(2 C.F.R. 200.305(b)(8)). The trust fund, including any interest, may not be used to pay debts or expenses 
incurred by other activities beyond the scope of the Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program 
(JAG). The grantee also agrees to obligate the award funds in the trust fund (including any interest earned) 



  Agreement No. 420060 
 
 

State of Illinois 
GRANT AGREEMENT FISCAL YEAR 2024 / 4/27/2023 

Page 56 of 64 
 
 

during the period of performance for the award and expend within 90 days thereafter. Any unobligated or 
unexpended funds, including interest earned, must be returned to OJP at the time of closeout. 
 
77. Required Data on Law Enforcement Agency Training. Grantee agrees, that if it is a law enforcement 
agency, it will submit quarterly accountability metrics data related to training that officers have received on 
the use of force, racial and ethnic bias, de-escalation of conflict, and constructive engagement with the public. 

 
78. Controlled expenditures. 
 

78.1. Prior Written Approval Required. Award funds may not be used for items that are listed on the 
Controlled Expenditure List at the time of purchase or acquisition, including as the list may be amended 
from time to time, without explicit written prior approval from BJA. The Controlled Expenditure List, and 
instructions on how to request approval for purchase or acquisitions are set out at 
https://www.bja.gov/funding/JAGControlledPurchaseList.pdf 
 
78.2. Incident Reporting. If Grantee uses award funds to purchase or acquire any item on the 
Controlled Expenditure List at the time of purchase or acquisition, including as the list may be amended 
from time to time, the agency must collect and retain (for at least 3 years) certain information about the 
use of-- (1) any federally-acquired Controlled Equipment in the agency's inventory, and (2) any other 
controlled equipment in the same category as the federally-acquired controlled equipment in the 
agency's inventory, regardless of source; and Grantee must make that information available to BJA upon 
request. Details about what information must be collected and retained are set out at 
https://ojp.gov/docs/LEEquipment-WG-Final-Report.pdf. 
 
78.3. Sale of items on Controlled Expenditure List. Grantee understands and agrees that, 
notwithstanding 2 CFR § 200.313, no equipment listed on the Controlled Expenditure List that is 
purchased under this award may be transferred or sold to a third party, except as described below: 
 

a. Agencies may transfer or sell any controlled equipment, except riot helmets and riot shields, to 
a Law Enforcement Agency (LEA) after obtaining prior written approval from BJA. As a condition 
of that approval, the acquiring LEA will be required to submit information and certifications to 
BJA as if it was requesting approval to use award fund for the initial purchase of items on the 
Controlled Expenditure List. 
 
b. Agencies may not transfer or sell any riot helmets or riot shields purchased under this award. 
 
c. Agencies may not transfer or sell any Controlled Equipment purchased under this award to 
non-LEAs, with the exception of fixed wing aircraft, rotary wing aircraft, and command and 
control vehicles. Before any such transfer or sale is finalized, the agency must obtain prior 
written approval from BJA. All law enforcement-related and other sensitive or potentially 
dangerous components, and all law enforcement insignias and identifying markings must be 
removed prior to transfer or sale. 
 
d. Grantee must notify BJA prior to the disposal of any items on the Controlled Expenditure List 
purchased with award funds, and must abide by any applicable laws (including regulations) in 
such disposal. 

 
78.4. Prohibited or Controlled Expenditures - Effect of Failure to Comply. Failure to comply with an 
award condition related to prohibited or controlled expenditures may result in denial of any further 

https://ojp.gov/docs/LEEquipment-WG-Final-Report.pdf


  Agreement No. 420060 
 
 

State of Illinois 
GRANT AGREEMENT FISCAL YEAR 2024 / 4/27/2023 

Page 57 of 64 
 
 

approvals of controlled expenditures under this or other federal awards. 
 
78.5. Controlled expenditures – Standards. Grantee understands that, pursuant to recommendation 
2.1 of Executive Order 13688, law enforcement agencies that acquire controlled equipment through 
Federal programs must adopt robust and specific written policies and protocols governing General 
Policing Standards and Specific Controlled Equipment Standards. General Policing Standards includes 
policies on (a) Community Policing; (b) Constitutional Policing; and (c) Community Input and Impact 
Considerations. Specific Controlled Equipment Standards includes policies specifically related to (a) 
Appropriate Use of Controlled Equipment; (b) Supervision of Use; (c) Effectiveness Evaluation; (d) Auditing 
and Accountability; and (e) Transparency and Notice Considerations. Upon Grantor’s or OJP’s request, 
Grantee agrees to provide a copy of the General Policing Standards and Specific Controlled Equipment 
Standards, and any related policies and protocols. 

 
79. Nondiscrimination.  

 
79.1          Grantee certifies that it will not engage in any prohibited discrimination based on any race, 
color, religion, sex, national origin, ancestry, age, order of protection status, marital status, pregnancy, 
physical or mental disability, military status, sexual orientation, gender identity, or unfavorable discharge 
from military service. Grantee understands that federal and state statutes and regulations applicable to 
awards made by Grantor include civil rights and nondiscrimination requirements and Grantee certifies 
that it will abide by those requirements. Specifically, those requirements as found in: 
   

a. The applicable statutes pertaining to civil rights contained in section 601 of the Civil Rights Act of 
1964 (42 U.S.C. § 2000d); section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. § 794); section 
901 of the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. § 1681); and section 303 of the Age 
Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. § 6102);  

 
b. The applicable statutes pertaining to nondiscrimination contained in section 809(c) of Title I of 

the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (34 U.S.C. § 10228(c)); section 1407(e) 
of the Victims of Crime Act of 1984 (34 U.S.C. § 20110(e)); section 299A(b) of Juvenile Justice and 
delinquency Prevention Act of 1974, as amended; Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 
1990, 42 U.S.C. § 12132; and that the grant condition set out at section 40002(b)(13) of the 
Violence Against Women Act (34 U.S.C. § 12291(b)(13)), which will apply to all awards made by 
the Office on Violence Against Women, also may apply to an award made otherwise;  

 
c. The DOJ regulations on the Partnerships with Faith-Based and Other Neighborhood 

Organizations (Executive Order 13,559 and 28 C.F.R. pt. 38), DOJ Implementing Regulations as 
found in 28 C.F.R. pt. 42, 28 C.F.R. pt 31, 28 C.F.R. pt 35, 28 C.F.R. pt 38 and 28 C.F.R. pt 94;  

 
d. The Illinois Human Rights Act (775 ILCS 5), The Public Works Employment Discrimination Act (775 

ILCS 10), The Illinois Environmental Barriers Act (410 ILCS 25); and 
 
e. Any other applicable Federal, State, or local civil rights or nondiscrimination laws. 
 

79.2          Grantee certifies it shall comply with such guidance regarding civil rights matters as may be 
issued by Grantor and the United States Department of Justice, Office of Justice Programs, Office for Civil 
Rights. Grantee agrees to have written sexual harassment policies which satisfy the requirements set 
forth in the Illinois Human Rights Act. (775 ILCS 5) 
 



  Agreement No. 420060 
 
 

State of Illinois 
GRANT AGREEMENT FISCAL YEAR 2024 / 4/27/2023 

Page 58 of 64 
 
 

79.3          National origin discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency 
(LEP). To ensure compliance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and the Safe Streets Act, Grantee 
is required to take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have meaningful access to programs. 
Meaningful access may entail providing language assistance services, including oral and written 
translation when necessary. 
 
79.4          Faith-Based and Community Organizations that statutorily qualify as eligible applicants under 
OJP programs are invited and encouraged to apply for assistance awards and will be considered for 
awards on the same basis as any other eligible applicants and, if they receive assistance awards, will be 
treated on an equal basis with all other grantees in the administration of such awards. No eligible 
applicant will be discriminated against on the basis of its religious character or affiliation, religious name, 
or the religious composition of its board of directors or persons working in the organization. 
 
79.5          In the event that a Federal or State court or a Federal, State, or local administrative agency 
makes a finding of discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, age, religion, 
national origin, disability, or sex against Grantee, or any sub-grantee or contractor of Grantee, Grantee 
will forward a copy of the finding to Grantor within five (5) business days of said finding. If applicable, 
Grantor will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs. 
 
79.6          Grantee shall designate a Civil Rights Coordinator to serve as a liaison for all civil rights related 
matters. The Civil Rights Coordinator need not be grant funded. Grantee shall promptly notify Grantor of 
any change regarding the designated Civil Rights Coordinator.  
 
79.7          Grantee’s Civil Rights Coordinator and any program staff and match volunteers who have direct 
contact with program beneficiaries shall complete annual civil rights training as required and approved by 
Grantor. 
 
79.8          Grantee shall provide notice to employees and beneficiaries regarding applicable civil rights 
laws and the procedure for filing a complaint with Grantor and appropriate federal and state agencies. 
Grantee shall promptly notify Grantor, via its assigned Grant Monitor, of any complaints of prohibited 
discrimination or harassment filed with Grantee regarding grant employees, beneficiaries, or potential 
beneficiaries.  Grantee shall fully cooperate in any investigation regarding an allegation of prohibited 
discrimination. 
 
79.9          Grantee shall complete a Civil Rights Compliance Questionnaire as required by Grantor. 
 
79.10        Grantee will require subrecipients and subcontractors to comply with all applicable civil rights 
and nondiscrimination statutes and regulations. 

 
80.  Authority to obligate award funds contingent on noninterference (within the funded “program or 

activity”) with federal law enforcement: information-communication restrictions; unallowable costs; 
notification. 

 
1. If the grantee is a "State," a local government, or a "public" institution of higher education: 
 
A. The grantee may not obligate award funds if, at the time of the obligation, the "program or activity" of 
the grantee (or of any subrecipient at any tier that is a State, a local government, or a public institution of 
higher education) that is funded wholly or partly with award funds is subject to any "information-
communication restriction." 



  Agreement No. 420060 
 
 

State of Illinois 
GRANT AGREEMENT FISCAL YEAR 2024 / 4/27/2023 

Page 59 of 64 
 
 

 
B. Also, with respect to any project costs it incurs "at risk," the grantee may not obligate award funds to 
reimburse itself if -- at the time it incurs such costs -- the program or activity of the grantee (or of any 
subrecipient, at any tier, described in par. 1.A of this condition) that would be reimbursed wholly or partly 
with award funds was subject to any information-communication restriction. 

 
C. Any drawdown of award funds by the grantee shall be considered, for all purposes, to be a material 
representation by the grantee to OJP that, as of the date the grantee requests the drawdown, the grantee 
and each subrecipient (regardless of tier) described in par. 1.A of this condition, is in compliance with the 
award condition entitled "Noninterference (within the funded 'program or activity') with federal law 
enforcement: information-communication restrictions; ongoing compliance." 

 
D. The grantee must promptly notify OJP (in writing) if the grantee, from its requisite monitoring of 
compliance with award conditions or otherwise, has credible evidence that indicates that the funded 
program or activity of the grantee, or of any subrecipient (at any tier) described in par. 1.A of this 
condition, may be subject to any information-communication restriction. Also, any subaward (at any tier) 
to a subrecipient described in paragraph 1.A of this condition must require prompt notification to the 
entity that made the subaward, should the subrecipient have such credible evidence regarding an 
information-communication restriction. 
 
2. Any subaward (at any tier) to a subrecipient described in par. 1.A of this condition must provide that 
the subrecipient may not obligate award funds if, at the time of the obligation, the program or activity of 
the subrecipient (or of any further such subrecipient at any tier) that is funded in whole or in part with 
award funds is subject to any information-communication restriction. 

 
3. Absent an express written determination by DOJ to the contrary, based upon a finding by DOJ of 
compelling circumstances (e.g., a small amount of award funds obligated by the grantee at the time of a 
subrecipient’s minor and transitory non-compliance, which was unknown to the grantee despite diligent 
monitoring), any obligations of award funds that, under this condition, may not be made shall be 
unallowable costs for purposes of this award. In making any such determination, DOJ will give great 
weight to evidence submitted by the grantee that demonstrates diligent monitoring of subrecipient 
compliance with the requirements set out in the "Noninterference ... information-communication 
restrictions; ongoing compliance" award condition. 
 
4. Rules of Construction 
A. For purposes of this condition "information-communication restriction" has the meaning set out in the 
"Noninterference ... information-communication restrictions; ongoing compliance" condition. 
 
B. Both the "Rules of Construction" and the "Important Note" set out in the "Noninterference ... 
information-communication restrictions; ongoing compliance" condition are incorporated by reference as 
though set forth here in full. 

 
81. Noninterference (within the funded “program or activity”) with federal law enforcement: information-

communication restrictions: ongoing compliance. 
 

1. With respect to the "program or activity" funded in whole or part under this award (including any such 
program or activity of any subrecipient at any tier), throughout the period of performance, no State or 
local government entity, -agency, or -official may prohibit or in any way restrict-- (1) any government 
entity or -official from sending or receiving information regarding citizenship or immigration status 



  Agreement No. 420060 
 
 

State of Illinois 
GRANT AGREEMENT FISCAL YEAR 2024 / 4/27/2023 

Page 60 of 64 
 
 

to/from DHS; or (2) a government entity or -agency from sending, requesting or receiving, or exchanging 
information regarding immigration status to/from/with DHS, or from maintaining such information. Any 
prohibition (or restriction) that violates this condition is an "information-communication restriction" 
under this award. 

 
2. The grantee’s monitoring responsibilities include monitoring of subrecipient compliance with the 
requirements of this condition. 

 
3. Allowable costs. Compliance with these requirements is an authorized and priority purpose of this 
award. To the extent that such costs are not reimbursed under any other federal program, award funds 
may be obligated for the reasonable, necessary, and allocable costs (if any) that the grantee, or any 
subrecipient at any tier that is a State, a local government, or a public institution of higher education, 
incurs to implement this condition. 

 
4. Rules of Construction 
 
A. For purposes of this condition: 
 
(1) "State" and "local government" include any agency or other entity thereof (including any public 
institution of higher education), but not any Indian tribe. 
 
(2) A "public" institution of higher education is defined as one that is owned, controlled, or directly 
funded (in whole or in substantial part) by a State or local government. (Such a public institution is 
considered to be a "government entity," and its officials to be "government officials.") 
 
(3) "Program or activity" means what it means under title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (see 42 U.S.C. 
2000d-4a). 

 
(4) "Immigration status" means what it means under 8 U.S.C. 1373 and 8 U.S.C. 1644; and terms that are 
defined in 8 U.S.C. 1101 mean what they mean under that section 1101, except that "State" also includes 
American Samoa. 
 
(5) “DHS” means the U.S. Department of Homeland Security. 

 
B. Nothing in this condition shall be understood to authorize or require any grantee, any subrecipient at 
any tier, any State or local government, any public institution of higher education, or any other entity (or 
individual) to violate any federal law, including any applicable civil rights or nondiscrimination law. 
 
IMPORTANT NOTE: Any questions about the meaning or scope of this condition should be directed to the 
OJP, before award acceptance. 

 
82. Nonintereference (within the funded “program activity”) with federal law enforcement: No public 

disclosure of certain law-enforcement-sensitive information 
 

SCOPE. This condition applies with respect to the "program or activity" that is funded (in whole or in part) 
by the award, as of the date the grantee accepts this award, and throughout the remainder of the period 
of performance. Its provisions must be among those included in any subaward (at any tier). 

 



  Agreement No. 420060 
 
 

State of Illinois 
GRANT AGREEMENT FISCAL YEAR 2024 / 4/27/2023 

Page 61 of 64 
 
 

1. Noninterference: No public disclosure of federal law-enforcement information in order to conceal, 
harbor, or shield Consistent with the purposes and objectives of federal law enforcement statutes and 
federal criminal law (including 8 U.S.C. 1324 and 18 U.S.C. chs. 1, 49, 227), no public disclosure may be 
made of any federal law-enforcement information in a direct or indirect attempt to conceal, harbor, or 
shield from detection any fugitive from justice under 18 U.S.C. ch. 49, or any alien who has come to, 
entered, or remains in the United States in violation of 8 U.S.C. ch. 12 --without regard to whether such 
disclosure would constitute (or could form a predicate for) a violation of 18 U.S.C. 1071 or 1072 or of 8 
U.S.C. 1324(a). 

 
2. Monitoring 

 
The grantee’s monitoring responsibilities include monitoring of subrecipient compliance with this 
condition. 

 
3. Allowable costs 
To the extent that such costs are not reimbursed under any other federal program, award funds may be 
obligated for the reasonable, necessary, and allocable costs (if any) of actions (e.g., training) designed to 
ensure compliance with this condition. 

 
4. Rules of construction 

 
A. For purposes of this condition-- 

 
(1) the term "alien" means what it means under section 101 of the Immigration and Nationality Act (see 8 
U.S.C. 1101(a)(3)); 

 
(2) the term "federal law-enforcement information" means law-enforcement-sensitive information 
communicated or made available, by the federal government, to a State or local government entity, -
agency, or -official, through any means, including, without limitation-- (1) through any database, (2) in 
connection with any law enforcement partnership or -task-force, (3) in connection with any request for 
law enforcement assistance or -cooperation, or (4) through any deconfliction (or courtesy) notice of 
planned, imminent, commencing, continuing, or impending federal law enforcement activity; 

 
(3) the term "law-enforcement-sensitive information" means records or information compiled for any law 
enforcement purpose; and 

 
(4) the term "public disclosure" means any communication or release other than one-- (a) within the 
grantee, or (b) to any subrecipient (at any tier) that is a government entity. 

 
B. Both the "Rules of Construction" and the "Important Note" set out in the "Noninterference (within the 
funded "program or activity") with federal law enforcement: information-communication restrictions; 
ongoing compliance" award condition are incorporated by reference as though set forth here in full. 

 
83. No use of funds to interfere with federal law enforcement: No disclosure of certain law-enforcement 

sensitive information 
 

SCOPE. This condition applies as of the date the grantee accepts this award, and throughout the 
remainder of the period of performance. Its provisions must be among those included in any subaward (at 
any tier). 



  Agreement No. 420060 
 
 

State of Illinois 
GRANT AGREEMENT FISCAL YEAR 2024 / 4/27/2023 

Page 62 of 64 
 
 

 
1. No use of funds to interfere: No public disclosure of federal law-enforcement information in order to 
conceal, harbor, or shield Consistent with the purposes and objectives of federal law enforcement 
statutes and federal criminal law (including 8 U.S.C. 1324 and 18 U.S.C. chs. 1, 49, 227), no funds under 
this award may be used to make any public disclosure of any federal law-enforcement information in a 
direct or indirect attempt to conceal, harbor, or shield from detection any fugitive from justice under 18 
U.S.C. ch. 49, or any alien who has come to, entered, or remains in the United States in violation of 8 
U.S.C. ch. 12 -- without regard to whether such disclosure would constitute (or could form a predicate for) 
a violation of 18 U.S.C. 1071 or 1072 or of 8 U.S.C. 1324(a). 

 
2. Monitoring 

 
The grantee’s monitoring responsibilities include monitoring of subrecipient compliance with this 
condition. 

 
3. Allowable costs 
 
To the extent that such costs are not reimbursed under any other federal program, award funds may be 
obligated for the reasonable, necessary, and allocable costs (if any) of actions (e.g., training) designed to 
ensure compliance with this condition. 

 
4. Rules of construction 

 
A. For purposes of this condition-- 
 
(1) the term "alien" means what it means under section 101 of the Immigration and Nationality Act (see 8 
U.S.C. 1101(a)(3)); 

 
(2) the term "federal law-enforcement information" means law-enforcement-sensitive information 
communicated or made available, by the federal government, to a State or local government entity, -
agency, or -official, through any means, including, without limitation-- (1) through any database, (2) in 
connection with any law enforcement partnership or -task-force, (3) in connection with any request for 
law enforcement assistance or -cooperation, or (4) through any deconfliction (or courtesy) notice of 
planned, imminent, commencing, continuing, or impending federal law enforcement activity; 

 
(3) the term "law-enforcement-sensitive information" means records or information compiled for any law 
enforcement purpose; and 
 
(4) the term "public disclosure" means any communication or release other than one-- (a) within the 
grantee, or (b) to any subrecipient (at any tier) that is a government entity. 

 
B. Both the "Rules of Construction" and the "Important Note" set out in the "No use of funds to interfere 
with federal law enforcement: information-communication restrictions; ongoing compliance" award 
condition are incorporated by reference as though set forth here in full. 

 
84. Noninterference (within the funded "program or activity") with federal law enforcement: Interrogation of 

certain aliens 
 



  Agreement No. 420060 
 
 

State of Illinois 
GRANT AGREEMENT FISCAL YEAR 2024 / 4/27/2023 

Page 63 of 64 
 
 

SCOPE. This condition applies with respect to the "program or activity" funded (wholly or partly) by this 
award, as of the date the grantee accepts the award, and throughout the rest of the award period of 
performance. Its provisions must be among those included in any subaward (at any tier). 

 
1. Noninterference with statutory law enforcement access to correctional facilities 
 
Consonant with federal law enforcement statutes and regulations--including 8 USC 1357(a), under which 
certain federal officers and employees "have power without warrant ... to interrogate any alien or person 
believed to be an alien as to his right to be or to remain” in the U.S., and 8 CFR 287.5(a), under which that 
power may be exercised "anywhere in or outside” the U.S.--within the funded program or activity, no 
State or local government entity, -agency, or - official may interfere with the exercise of that power to 
interrogate "without warrant" (by agents of the United States acting under color of federal law) by 
impeding access to any State or local government (or government-contracted) correctional facility by such 
agents for the purpose of "interrogat[ing] any alien or person believed to be an alien as to his [or her] 
right to be or to remain in the United States." 
 
2. Monitoring 

 
The grantee’s monitoring responsibilities include monitoring of subrecipient compliance with this 
condition. 
 
3. Allowable costs 
 
To the extent that such costs are not reimbursed under any other federal program, award funds may be 
obligated for the reasonable, necessary, and allocable costs (if any) of actions (e.g., training) designed to 
ensure compliance with this condition. 

 
4. Rules of construction 

 
A. For purposes of this condition: 

 
(1) The term "alien" means what it means under sec. 101 of the Immigration and Nationality Act (INA) (8 
USC 1101(a)(3)), except that, with respect to a juvenile offender, it means “criminal alien.” 

 
(2) The term “juvenile offender” means what it means under 28 CFR 31.304(f) (as in effect on Jan. 1, 
2020). 

 
(3) The term "criminal alien" means, with respect to a juvenile offender, an alien who is deportable on the 
basis of- 
 
(a) conviction described in 8 USC 1227(a)(2), or 
 
(b) conduct described in 8 USC 1227(a)(4). 

 
(4) The term "conviction" means what it means under 8 USC 1101(a)(48). (Adjudication of a juvenile as 
having committed an offense does not constitute "conviction" for purposes of this condition.) 

 
(5) The term "correctional facility" means what it means under 34 USC 10251(a)(7)) as of January 1, 2020. 
 



  Agreement No. 420060 
 
 

State of Illinois 
GRANT AGREEMENT FISCAL YEAR 2024 / 4/27/2023 

Page 64 of 64 
 
 

(6) The term "impede" includes taking or continuing any action, or implementing or maintaining any law, 
policy, rule, or practice, that- 

 
(a) is designed to prevent or to significantly delay or complicate, or 
 
(b) has the effect of preventing or of significantly delaying or complicating. 
 
(7) "State" and "local government" include any agency or other entity thereof (including any public 
institution of higher education), but not any Indian tribe. 

 
(8) A "public" institution of higher education is one that is owned, controlled, or directly funded (in whole 
or in substantial part) by a State or local government. (Such a public institution is considered to be a 
"government entity," and its officials to be "government officials.") 

 
(9) "Program or activity" means what it means under 42 USC 2000d-4a. 
 
B. Nothing in this condition shall be understood to authorize or require any grantee, any subrecipient at 
any tier, any State or local government, any public institution of higher education, or any other entity (or 
individual) to violate any federal law, including any applicable civil rights or nondiscrimination law. 

 
IMPORTANT NOTE: Any questions about the meaning or scope of this condition should be directed to OJP, 
before award acceptance. 

 
85. Pre-Award Costs. Pre-award costs are authorized in accordance with 2 CFR 200.209. Pre-award costs are 

those incurred from the beginning of the period of performance of the grant until the execution of the 
grant agreement and must be in accordance with the final approved program budget. ICJIA has the right 
to review supporting documentation for all pre-award costs that are submitted for reimbursement on a 
financial report from grantees. Costs that are not in accordance with the final approved budget 
(necessary, reasonable, allowable, and allocable) shall be disallowed. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK. 
 



Resolution Executive Summary 
Prepared By:   Marlana Dokken 

Committee:   Public Safety and Judiciary Committee 

Committee Date:   October 18, 2023 

Resolution Title: Resolution Awarding Service Agreements Using Public Safety Sales Tax 
Alternative Funding to Tommy Meeks, Rosecrance and Remedies 

County Code: Not Applicable 

Board Meeting Date: October 26, 2023 

Budget Information: 
Was item budgeted?    Yes   Amount:   $ 299,349 

If not, explain funding source:   n/a 

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:   n/a, multiple  Budget Impact:   n/a 

Background Information:  The County proposes to provide funding to support preventative and 
rehabilitative services at the Winnebago County Resource Intervention Center (RIC) and the Winnebago 
County Jail.  TOMMY MEEKS will offer mentoring and job counseling to individuals involved in the justice 
system in Winnebago County through 13-week groups; ROSECRANCE will offer court-ordered assessments 
in the jail; and REMEDIES will provide licensed substance use disorder treatment and partner abuse 
intervention programming services in the RIC. 

Recommendation:    I recommend the following annual service agreements: 

1) Agreement with Tommy Meeks for Mentoring services @ RIC  $  12,000 
2) Agreement with Rosecrance for assessments and substance abuse groups @ Jail  $  64,078  
3) Agreement with Remedies for Substance Abuse and Partner Abuse Intervention @ RIC  $212,349 

Contract/Agreement: County will execute TOMMY MEEKS, ROSECRANCE, AND REMEDIES agreements 
(Resolution Exhibit A) all of which contain a 30-day out clause.  

Legal Review:  Legal review of agreements was completed. 

Follow-Up:   Chairman’s Office of Criminal Justice Initiatives will proceed with execution of agreements. 



County Board:  October 26, 2023 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

Sponsored by:  Brad Lindmark, Committee Chairman 
Submitted by:  Public Safety & Judiciary Committee 
 

2023 CR 
 

RESOLUTION AWARDING SERVICE AGREEMENTS USING PUBLIC SAFETY SALES TAX 
ALTERNATIVE FUNDING TO TOMMY MEEKS, ROSECRANCE, AND REMEDIES  

 
WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago, Illinois recognizes the need for continued funding 

to support alternatives to incarceration and rehabilitation programs; and 
 
WHEREAS, Tommy Meeks, Rosecrance, Inc., and Remedies Renewing Lives have 

provided such services to individuals involved in our criminal justice system for a number of 
years; and 
 
       WHEREAS, the County desires to have Tommy Meeks, Rosecrance, and Remedies 
continue to provide services for fiscal year 2024, pursuant to the terms of the Agreements 
attached hereto as Resolution Exhibit A; and 
 
       WHEREAS, the Public Safety and Judiciary Committee of the County Board for the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois, has reviewed the proposed terms of the Agreements attached 
hereto as Resolution Exhibit A, and recommends executing contracts under the terms set forth 
in the Agreements.   
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois, that the Winnebago County Board Chairman is authorized to execute the Agreements, 
in substantially the same form as contained in Resolution Exhibit A. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby directed to 
prepare and deliver copies of this resolution to the Chairman’s Office of Criminal Justice 
Initiatives, Director of Purchasing, Finance Director, County Board Office, and County 
Auditor.                  

 
                  
 
 
 
 
 



County Board:  October 26, 2023 

Respectfully submitted, 
 

PUBLIC SAFETY AND JUDICIARY COMMITTEE 
                

 
AGREE  DISAGREE 

 
 

  

BRAD LINDMARK, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 BRAD LINDMARK, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

AARON BOOKER 
 
 

 AARON BOOKER 
 

KEVIN MCCARTHY  KEVIN MCCARTHY 
 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

                                                                          JEAN CROSBY 
 

 
CHRIS SCROL 
 
 

 CHRIS SCROL 
 

ANGIE GORAL 
 
 

 

ANGIE GORAL 
 

TIM NABORS 
 
 

 TIM NABORS 
 

The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2023. 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH V. CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 

 



 

 Page 1 of 6 

 
 

INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT  
FOR SERVICES AS WINNEBAGO COUNTY COMMUNITY LIAISON 

 
This Independent Contractor Agreement (“Agreement”) is made this 1st day of October, 2023,  
between the County of Winnebago, Illinois, a unit of local government (hereinafter referred to 
as “County”), whose principal address is 404 Elm Street, Rockford, Illinois, 61101, and Tommy 
Meeks, whose principal address is 438 Gershwin Lane, Machesney Park, Illinois, 61115,  
(hereinafter referred to as “Contractor”). County and Contractor may be referred to herein 
individually as a “Party” and collectively as the “Parties.” 

 
RECITALS 

 
WHEREAS, the County has determined it is beneficial to the community to provide 

mentoring and job counseling to individuals involved in the justice system in Winnebago County, 
Illinois; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County desires to have Contractor provide these services and act as a 

liaison between the County and various groups within the community on related matters; and 
 
WHEREAS, the County desires Contractor to provide services described in Section One 

and reporting of accurate and timely data defined in Exhibit A; and 
 
WHEREAS, Contractor agrees to provide these services for the County under the terms 

and conditions as set forth in this Agreement. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises set forth herein, the 
sufficiency of which both Parties hereby acknowledge, it is agreed by and between the County and 
Contractor as follows: 
 

SECTION ONE 
 

DESCRIPTION OF WORK 
 

Utilizing a curriculum as approved by the RIC staff, the services to be performed by the Contractor 
under this Agreement shall be the following: 

 
1. Facilitating four (4), 13-week Wake Up groups for individuals engaged in the justice 

system in Winnebago County at the request of the Probation Department; and 
 

2. Assisting individuals with locating and pursuing employment opportunities; and 
 

3. Representing Winnebago County on various committees and at local functions as requested 
by the County Administrator.  

 



 

 Page 2 of 6 

 
SECTION TWO 

 
PAYMENT 

 
The County shall pay Contractor on a monthly basis for the work to be performed under this 
Agreement as follows:  $1,000.00 per month for eight (8) to ten (10) hours per week.  Contractor 
shall provide the County with a monthly invoice listing all dates and hours worked.  Contractor’s 
invoice shall be paid according to the Illinois Local Government Prompt Payment Act (50 ILCS 
505/1 et. seq).  The County will not reimburse for mileage or expenses.   
 
 

SECTION THREE 
 

RELATIONSHIP OF PARTIES 
 

It is understood and agreed between the Parties that this Agreement is not intended to nor does it 
create an employment contract between the County, on the one hand, and the Contractor and any 
of Contractor’s employees, on the other hand, not does it create a joint relationship or partnership 
between the Parties hereto.  Neither Contractor nor any of Contractor’s employees are entitled to 
benefits that the County provides for County employees.  Contractor’s relationship to the County 
is solely and exclusively that of an independent contractor.  County may, during the term of this 
Agreement, engage other independent contractors or employees to perform the same work that 
Contractor performs hereunder. 
 

SECTION FOUR 
 

TAX AND UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE LIABILITY 
 

Any payments to Contractor under this Agreement are subject to any and all applicable 
withholdings.  To the extent permitted by Illinois law, Contractor covenants to save the County 
harmless from any and all liability for withholding state or federal income tax, unemployment 
compensation contributions and any other employer’s tax liability now or subsequently imposed 
on County based upon payments made by County to Contractor. 
 

SECTION FIVE 
 

INDEMNIFICATION 
 

The Parties agree to indemnify each other and their officers, directors, employees and agents, from 
and against all claims, liabilities, losses, damages, judgments, penalties, and fines, including 
reasonable attorney’s fees and costs, arising out of or relating to, directly or indirectly: 1) any 
negligent or intentional act or omission of the indemnifying Party associated with its performance  
under this Agreement, or 2) the indemnifying Party’s failure to perform any of its obligations under 
this Agreement. 

 



 

 Page 3 of 6 

 
SECTION SIX 

 
DURATION 

 
The term of this Agreement shall be from October 1, 2023 to September 30, 2024.  Either Party 
may cancel this Agreement for any reason upon thirty (30) days written notice to the other Party.  
This Agreement will not be automatically renewed.     

 
SECTION SEVEN 

 
CONSULTATION AND REPORTING 

 
Each PARTY to this Agreement has the duty to consult and cooperate with the other in the 
performance, development of programming, and the curriculum utilized. The PARTIES agree to 
hold meetings as needed to review the services provided to the 17th Judicial Circuit Court’s 
Resource Intervention Center Program (RIC). 

 
CONTRACTOR agrees to provide relevant data by submitting performance metrics as well as 
narrative on a quarterly basis as outlined in Exhibit A. CONTRACTOR agrees to comply with all 
reporting, data collection, as prescribed by the 17th Judicial Circuit Court and COUNTY following 
the deadlines identified below. 
 

REPORTING SCHEDULE 
Reporting Period Date Required Due Date 

October - December Performance Measures, Fiscal Reports January 10th 
January - March Performance Measures, Fiscal Reports April 10th 
April - June Performance Measures, Fiscal Reports July 10th 
July - September  Performance Measures, Fiscal Reports October 10th 

    Note: If a due date falls on a weekend, report is due on the preceding Friday 
 
 

SECTION EIGHT 
 

WAIVER 
 

The failure of either Party hereto at any time or times to enforce any provision of this Agreement shall 
in no way be construed to be a waiver of such provisions or to affect the validity of this Agreement 
or any part hereof, or the right of either Party thereafter to enforce each and every provision in 
accordance with the terms of this Agreement. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 Page 4 of 6 

 
SECTION NINE 

 
VALIDITY AND INTERPRETATION 

 
If any term, provision or condition contained in this Agreement is held to be invalid or 
unenforceable, to any extent, the remainder of this Agreement (or the application of the term, 
provision or condition to persons or circumstances other than those in respect of which it is invalid 
or unenforceable) shall not be affected thereby, and each and every other term, provision and 
condition of this Agreement shall be valid and enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by law.  
The validity and interpretation of this contract shall be governed by and construed and enforced in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Illinois. Venue for the resolution of any disputes or the 
enforcement of any rights pursuant to this Agreement shall be in the 17th Judicial Circuit Court of 
Winnebago County, Illinois. 
 
 

SECTION TEN 
 

NOTICES 
 

All notices regarding this agreement shall be delivered to the other Party at the address set forth 
above or at such other address as may be designated by a Party in writing.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Signature Page Follows 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 Page 5 of 6 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this contract on the day and year first 
above written. 
 
County of Winnebago, Illinois  Contractor 
a unit of local government 
 
 
By:  _____________________________  _____________________________ 
        Joseph V. Chiarelli                          Tommy Meeks 
        Chairman of the County Board of the     
        County of Winnebago, Illinois 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Lori Gummow 
Clerk of the County Board of the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 Page 6 of 6 

 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

GOALS/PERFORMANCE MEASURES/STANDARDS 
Instructions: Complete the blanks in table below using projected objectives for the funded year. Your data report 
will reflect these numbers. Please note that any change to objectives will need to be approved by Winnebago County 
Administration. Must include number served for each service. 
 

Objectives/Standards Performance Measures Projected  

Accept referrals for Wake Up Group to change 
thinking patterns # of referrals to group   40 

Increased understanding of history and race relations. # (13-week) groups held  4 

Increased engagement # completing 13-week program 20 

Increase job opportunities through employer 
relationships # of new partnering companies   4 

Increase job opportunities through community 
partnerships 

# of Job Fairs / community events 
attended  4 

Accept Employment-Only Referrals # Employment-Only Referrals 
Received  12 

Increase New Jobs Obtained Through Employment-
Only Referrals 

# New Employment-Only Jobs 
Obtained  10 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



1 

Chairman’s Office of Criminal Justice Initiatives | 404 Elm Street, Suite 533, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.us 

Phone: (815) 319- 4059 | Email: mdokken@admin.wincoil.gov 

Public Safety Sales Tax Alternative Funding 
Budget Detail Worksheet and Narrative 

A. Personnel / Salary– List each position by title and name of employee, if available. Show the annual
salary rate and the percentage of time to be devoted to the project. Compensation paid for
employees engaged in grant activities must be consistent with that paid for similar work within the
applicant organization.

Name/Position Computation Cost 

  TOTAL SALARY 

SALARY NARRATIVE: 

http://www.wincoil.us/
mailto:mdokken@wincoil.us


5 

Chairman’s Office of Criminal Justice Initiatives | 404 Elm Street, Suite 533, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.us 

Phone: (815) 319- 4059 | Email: mdokken@admin.wincoil.gov 

Budget Category Amount 

A. Personnel

B. Fringe Benefits

C. Travel

D. Supplies

E. Other Costs

 TOTAL PROJECT COSTS 

http://www.wincoil.us/
mailto:mdokken@wincoil.us


AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS AND ROSECRANCE, INC. 

COURT-ORDERED ASSESSMENTS PROGRAM 

This Agreement (“Agreement”) is effective as of October 1, 2023, by and between 
ROSECRANCE, INC., an Illinois-not-for profit corporation (“Rosecrance”), and the COUNTY OF 
WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS (“County”). Rosecrance and County may be referred to herein 
individually as a “Party” and collectively as the “Parties.” 

WHEREAS, the County recognizes the need for professional assistance in providing 
quality, licensed, Court-ordered substance use disorder assessments and in the Winnebago 
County Jail for men and women who are in need of such services; and 

WHEREAS, Rosecrance is a professional, licensed organization that provides substance 
use disorder assessments and treatment services to such persons; and 

WHEREAS, the Parties have agreed that the services provided to the County pursuant 
to this Agreement will be beneficial to the parties, the community, and the men and women in 
need of such services. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the terms, conditions and covenants 
contained herein, the Parties agree as follows: 

Article I. GENERAL TERMS 

Section 1.01 Term of Agreement 

The Agreement shall commence and be binding on the Parties hereto for the period 
of October 1, 2023 through September 30, 2024. 

Section 1.02 Termination 

Either Party may terminate this Agreement upon thirty (30) days’ written notice to the 
other. In the event of termination, County will provide payment to Rosecrance for all services 
rendered up to the termination date. 

Section 1.03 Confidentiality 

Each Party agrees to comply with all State and Federal laws, rules, and regulations, 
including but not limited to the Illinois Mental Health and Developmental Disabilities 
Confidentiality Act, 42 CFR Part 2, and the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act 

Page 1 of 16



(HIPAA), concerning the confidentiality of client information. 

Section 1.04 Access to Records 

Rosecrance agrees to allow the employees of the County access to the records of any 
client assessed for participation in the Court-ordered Assessments Program upon receipt of 
an appropriate consent and release of information that complies with 42 CFR Part 2, the 
Illinois Mental Health and Developmental Disabilities Confidentiality Act, HIPAA, and any 
other applicable state and federal confidentiality laws. 

Section 1.05 Warrant of Authority 

Each Party warrants to the other that each has full authority to enter into this 
Agreement and perform under its terms. 

Section 1.06 Indemnity 

Rosecrance agrees to indemnify the County and its officers, directors, and employees 
from and against any and all claims, costs, and liabilities (including the fees and expenses of 
counsel) as a result of a breach of this Agreement by Rosecrance or the negligent or willful 
misconduct of Rosecrance or Rosecrance’s employees, agents, and representatives. In no 
manner shall employees of Rosecrance be construed to be employees of the County. This 
section shall survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement for any reason. 

Section 1.07 Cooperation 

Each Party to this Agreement has the duty to consult and cooperate with the other in 
the performance, development, and implementation of the Court-ordered Assessments 
Program. Rosecrance agrees to name a person to represent it in discussions and development 
of the program and to whom the County can forward suggestions and recommendations 
concerning the program as well as any notices under this Agreement. 

Article II. SCOPE OF SERVICES 

Subject to the agreed upon funding levels set forth in Exhibit B, Rosecrance agrees to provide 
the following services in this Article II. The Parties’ agree and understand that all services 
provided by Rosecrance under this Agreement shall be in compliance with all federal and state 
standards applicable to substance use disorder treatment. The services to be performed by 
Rosecrance under this Agreement shall include the following in this Article II and that of 
Exhibit A. 

Page 2 of 16



Section 2.01 Assessments 

Rosecrance agrees to provide assessments in the Winnebago County Jail for men and 
women who are referred by the County or the Court to the Court-ordered Assessments Program. 
Rosecrance will be available to provide up to twenty (20) hours of assessment services per week 
in the jail for those people referred for an assessment by Court or County staff. If the Rosecrance 
employee assigned to provide assessments in the Jail is absent from work for more than three 
business days, Rosecrance will assign another employee to provide assessments in the Jail. 

Every person who is referred for an assessment by the Court will receive a clinical 
assessment to evaluate the individual’s treatment and case management needs and to determine 
their eligibility for further treatment services. Rosecrance will provide written assessment reports 
to County employees upon request in compliance with Sections 1.03 and 1.04. The written 
assessment will contain diagnostic impression, the recommended level of substance use disorder 
treatment, and identification of any medical and psychological concerns. 

Section 2.02 Program Oversight 

Rosecrance will provide program oversight by a Program Director to oversee services and 
employees and to provide monthly supervision, weekly case staffing, scheduling and assessment 
management, and utilization reporting. 

Section 2.03 Modification upon Agreement 

Services, personnel, treatment hours, and locations are subject to change as agreed upon 
between the County and Rosecrance. 

Article III. PAYMENT FOR SERVICES PROVIDED 

Section 3.01 Budget Incorporation 

A budget agreed to by Rosecrance and the County detailing the fee schedule and 
anticipated funding amounts is hereby incorporated into this Agreement and attached hereto as 
Exhibit B. Rosecrance agrees that the total reimbursement for all services performed pursuant to 
this Agreement will not exceed the total amount reflected on the annual budget submitted and 
approved by the County. Rosecrance will invoice for actual costs not to exceed the annual 
budgeted amount. All rates set forth in Article III are subject to renegotiation between the Parties 
at any point during the Term of this Agreement, but no change in rates will take effect during the 
Term of this Agreement unless a written amendment to this Agreement reflecting this change is 
approved by the Parties. 

Page 3 of 16



 

 
Section 3.02 Compensation for Assessment Services 

 
Corresponding with those services set forth in Section 2.01, County agrees to pay fifty 

percent (50%) of the salary for a licensed or certified clinical assessor employed by Rosecrance 
as shown on the budget incorporated as Exhibit B. The County also agrees to pay fringe benefits 
at the percentage and rate as shown on the budget incorporated as Exhibit B. This amount is 
intended to pay for non-billable services provided by the assessor. 

 

 
Section 3.03 Compensation for Program Oversight 

 
Corresponding with those services set forth in Section 2.03, County agrees to pay ten 

percent (10%) of the salary for the Program Director employed by Rosecrance as shown on the 
budget incorporated as Exhibit B. The County also agrees to pay fringe benefits at the percentage 
and rate shown on the budget incorporated as Exhibit B. 

 
Section 3.05 Indirect Costs 

 
County agrees to pay Rosecrance for indirect costs in addition to payment for all services 

listed above that will compensate Rosecrance for all other direct and indirect expenses associated 
with the provision of services under this Agreement. County agrees to pay Rosecrance for its 
indirect costs at Rosecrance’s current federally approved indirect cost rate, calculated as a 
percentage of the actual monthly subtotal for services rendered during the term of this 
Agreement. Should Rosecrance’s federally approved indirect cost rate change during the Term of 
this Agreement, the parties will cooperate to seek a budget amendment. Should the budget 
amendment not be approved, Rosecrance agrees to reimbursement for its indirect costs at the 
federally approved rate in effect on the first day of the Term of this Agreement. 

 
Section 3.06 Reporting and Invoices 

 
Rosecrance will submit monthly invoices to the County in accordance with Section 3 of 

this Agreement no later than the 10th day of each month. Invoices shall be submitted in a format 
requested by the County and include supporting service documentation as requested by the 
County. Subject to Section 1.03 and 1.04, supporting documentation to be included with invoices 
includes timesheets, documentation of personnel costs, itemized lists of completed assessments 
to include at a minimum 1) name of Judge and/or Court staff person requesting the assessment, 
2) assessment date, 3) name of inmate, name of assessor, and time spent. Invoices shall be 
payable by County in accordance with the Illinois Local Government Prompt Payment Act (50 ILCS 
505/1 et. seq). Any amounts not timely paid will accrue interest as set forth in the Illinois Local 
Government Prompt Payment Act. 

 
 
 
 

 
Additionally, Rosecrance agrees to provide relevant data by submitting a monthly jail 

services report as well as performance metrics as outlined in Exhibit A to include summary 
Page 4 of 16



 

narrative on a quarterly basis. Rosecrance agrees to comply with all reporting, data collection 
and evaluation requirements, as prescribed by the County following the deadlines identified 
below. 

 
 

REPORTING SCHEDULE 
Reporting Period Date Required Due Date 

October - December Data and Fiscal Reports January 10th 
January - March Data and Fiscal Reports April 10th 
April - June Data and Fiscal Reports July 10th 
July - September Data and Fiscal Reports October 10th 
Final Close Out Data and Fiscal Reports, Closeout Questions 15 days after grant end date 

Note: If a due date falls on a weekend, report is due on the preceding Friday 
 

Article IV. MISCELLANEOUS 
 

Section 4.01 No Third-Party Beneficiaries 
 

This Agreement shall not confer any rights or remedies upon any Person or other third 
party other than the Parties and their respective successors and permitted assigns. 

 
Section 4.02 Non-Solicitation 

 
During the Term of this Agreement and for a period of twelve (12) months thereafter, 

neither Party shall directly solicit for employment any person who performed any work under 
this Agreement who is then in the employment of the other party. A general notice of a job 
opening or other similar general publication to fill employment openings, including on the 
internet, shall not be construed as a solicitation for the purposes of this Section, and the hiring 
of any such employees who freely responds thereto shall not be a breach of this Section. 

 
Section 4.03 Governing Law; Consent to Jurisdiction 

 
This Agreement shall be governed by and construed and enforced in accordance with the 

laws of the State of Illinois. The Parties agree that all actions or proceedings arising in connection 
with this Agreement shall be tried and litigated in the 17th Judicial Circuit Court of Winnebago, 
Illinois. 

 
Section 4.04 Counterparts; Signatures 

 
The Parties agree that this Agreement may be executed in multiple originals, each of 

which shall be considered an original for all purposes and, collectively, shall be considered to 
constitute this Agreement. The Parties further agree that signatures transmitted by facsimile or 
in Portable Document Format (pdf) may be considered an original for all purposes, including, 
without limitation, the execution of this Agreement and enforcement of this Agreement. 

 
Section 4.05 Entire Agreement; Amendment 

 Page 5 of 16



 

This Agreement supersedes all previous agreements, oral or written, and constitutes the 
entire agreement between the Parties respecting the subject matter of this Agreement, and 
neither Party shall be entitled to benefits other than those specified herein. As between the 
Parties, oral statements or prior written materials which are not specifically incorporated herein 
shall not be of any force and effect. The Parties specifically acknowledge that in entering into and 
executing this Agreement, the Parties rely solely upon the representations and agreements 
contained in this Agreement and no others.  

 
Any amendments shall be by written instrument executed by the parties hereto, acting 

therein by their duly authorized representatives. The Winnebago County Board Chairman is 
authorized, on behalf of the County Board to execute the renewal, continuation, or modification 
of this grant award, without further County Board action. 
 
Section 4.06 Notices 

 
All notices, requests and communications which are required or may be given under this 

Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given if delivered personally 
or sent by nationally recognized overnight carrier or mailed by certified mail, postage prepaid, 
return receipt requested. 

 
Notices to the County shall be sent to the following address: 

 
Winnebago County 
Attn: County Administrator 
404 Elm Street 
Suite 500 
Rockford, IL 61101 

 
Notices to Rosecrance shall be sent to the following address: 

 
Rosecrance, Inc. 
Attn: David Gomel, President 
1021 North Mulford Road 
Rockford, IL 61107 
 

 
Receipt of any notice shall be deemed effective upon receipt, if delivered personally, or one (1) 
day after mailing if sent by overnight carrier, or three (3) days after deposit in the U.S. mail, with 
proper postage and properly addressed. 
 
Section 4.07 Assignment 

 
This Agreement may not be assigned or transferred, without the prior, express, written 

consent of the Parties. 
 

This Agreement between Rosecrance and the County shall be effective as of the date indicated 
in the first sentence of this Agreement. 

Page 6 of 16



 

 
COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS ROSECRANCE, INC., an Illinois not for profit 

corporation 

 
By:    

 
By:    

Name: Joseph V. Chiarelli Name: David Gomel 
Title:   Chairman of the County Board of the
    County of Winnebago, Illinois 

Title: President 

 

Page 7 of 16



                                                                                   

EXHIBIT A 

SCOPE OF WORK   
 

I. ORGANIZATION BACKGROUND 

a. Brief description of organization history and purpose 
Rosecrance has served as an industry leader in behavioral health, and has provided quality service to northern 
and central Illinois communities for over 100 years. Our standard of excellence for treatment involves a 
multidisciplinary approach to addiction treatment that draws on the expertise and experience of our medical 
and psychiatric staff, as well as licensed and certified masters prepared clinicians. Rosecrance offers a 
comprehensive spectrum of behavioral health services that include residential, outpatient and detox services 
for the treatment of substance abuse disorders as well as community based mental health services for Men, 
Women Youth and adults. Rosecrance has specialized in the treatment those involved in the criminal justice 
system since 1994, and are currently partnered with Winnebago, Boone, McHenry and Champagne counties to 
provide services to those involved with their probation departments including Drug Court, Mental Health Court, 
Youth Recovery Court, and family Recovery court. Rosecrance has also been contracted to provide residential 
and outpatient services to the Illinois Department of corrections parolees since 1999. 

 

b. Describe history managing grants and/or other funding 
Rosecrance has managed multiple local, state, and federal grants over our 100-year history. Currently we 
receive grants through Illinois SUPR and the State Opioid Response initiative, as well as grants through 
Winnebago, and Boone Counties for in-jail services and specialty court programs. We also receive grant 
funding through the Illinois Department of Human Services and are paneled with multiple insurance 
companies. 
 

 

c. If this program related to behavioral health, will you be applying to the Winnebago County Mental 
Health Board in 2024? 

                   Yes             No    Not Applicable 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 8 of 16



II. SERVICE, PROGRAM, or PROJECT OVERVIEW  
 

a. Provide summary of proposed service, program, project to be supported or delivered by requested funds. 
Include eligibility requirements, demographics served, and how it will lead to a reduction in violent crime. 

Rosecrance proposes a continuation of the funding from the Winnebago County 1% safety tax fund for a ½ time 
substance use disorder assessor to provide assessment and treatment recommendations for those housed in 
the Winnebago County jail. The continuation of this funding will allow Rosecrance to complete a multi-
dimensional assessment tool and treatment recommendations on inmates who are court ordered for a 
substance use disorder assessment as well as those who need to be assessed upon advice of their probation 
officer, attorney or are self-referred. All diagnoses and treatment recommendations will be made in  
accordance with the criteria and standards set forth by the DSM5 and the American Society of Addiction 
Medicine (ASAM) patient placement criteria. Once assessed, treatment recommendations are provided to the 
court or to whomever referred them and are case managed upon their release to assist them in beginning 
treatment with Rosecrance or other recommended service providers. 
 
The benefit of this program is the ability to connect with those incarcerated individuals at a point where they 
are vulnerable and are most motivated for change in their lives. By initiating treatment services while they are 
incarcerated, we are able to more easily engage them at a time where they are most receptive to the idea of a 
recovery lifestyle. Upon release from jail the clients are already enrolled in Rosecrance services and can 
seamlessly transition to our wide spectrum community-based services with no delay. 
 

 
b. Describe current and projected project/program partnerships. 
This program has worked closely with the Winnebago County Specialty Courts as well as the Winnebago  
County probation and pretrial, The States attorneys and public defender’s office to help their client’s gain  
strong footing in a recovery lifestyle prior to their return to the community. Rosecrance also works with the  
Illinois State Opiate Response initiative to engage those clients in jail who have an opiate or stimulant use  
disorder to inform and enroll those interested in our Medication Assisted Treatment program that allows  
them to initiate needed medication while in the jail. 
 

 

III. PROGRAM PROCESSES 

 
a. Describe referral, intake and assessment process; include description of evidence-based practices used. 
Referrals are made to the program through court orders from the 17th judicial circuit, from Winnebago  
probation officers, attorneys, Freedom Group, and through detainees submitting a request ticket to the jail.  
Once the referral is received a 1/2-time assessor, funded through the 1% contract, goes into the jail, and  
complete a multidisciplinary substance use disorder assessment according to requirements of Illinois  
SUPR 2060 licensure requirements, DSM5 and the American Society of Addiction Medicine (ASAM) patient  
placement criteria. We also complete a Rosecrance Suicide Risk assessment, using the Columbia Suicide  
Severity Rating Scale, at the time of assessment. The diagnosis and recommendations are subsequently  
reviewed by our medical director for appropriateness and approval, and shared with the courts or other  
referral sources, and are ready to begin treatment with us upon their return to the community. 

 

Page 9 of 16



 
b. Describe treatment, counseling, and case management. Be specific. 
This program will work with the inmate prior to treatment to assess, diagnose and make treatment 
recommendations for when they are released. This position will provide case management services that include 
placement on the residential treatment waiting list if needed, obtaining collateral information to assist in 
making the appropriate diagnosis, resolution of biomedical obstacles, and connecting with other behavioral 
health needs.  
 
This program will also be able to connect inmates with our State Opiate Response (SOR) grant to provide 
education and medication assisted therapies to those inmates with a history of opiate and stimulant abuse. We 
are able work with the courts to furlough inmates to come to Rosecrance and start an appropriate medication 
prior to their release from jail where they are at most risk of overdose. 

 
c. Describe staff roles; include education, training, and licensure requirements. 
These assessments are completed at the request of court order, probation, or attorney referral or through 
inmate self-referral. This position is staffed by an Illinois CADC licensed clinician, with 35 years’ experience in 
the field.  The CADC licensed clinician is required by IAODAPCA to complete 40 hours of training every 2 years 
in dimensions related to the treatment of substance use disorders. This position is funded at 1/2 their salary 
through the County 1% tax. The staff roles include the completion of a substance use disorder assessment, a 
suicide risk assessment, communication of recommendations and case management. 

 
d. Describe program oversight and accountability. 
The key performance indicators (KPI) for this program are tracked weekly, monthly, and annually through 
supervision, annual evaluations, and client satisfaction surveys. Client records are regularly reviewed to ensure 
quality of service and adherence to regulatory standards. Program KPI’s include the number of assessments 
completed monthly and reported to Winnebago County quarterly. 

 
IV. GOALS/PERFORMANCE MEASURES/STANDARDS 

Instructions: Complete the blanks in table below using projected objectives for the funded year. Your data report 
will reflect these numbers. Please note that any change to objectives will need to be approved by Winnebago 
County Administration. Must include number served for each service. 

Objectives/Standards Performance Measures Projected  

Assess 100% of all in custody referrals 
for Substance Abuse Treatment 

Number of assessments completed in the jail 
monthly 

400 assessments 
annually 

Connection to Medication Assisted 
Therapies 

The monthly number of those diagnosed 
with opiate and stimulant use disorder 
linked to Medication Assisted Therapies 
prior to leaving the jail. 

80% of those 
assessed with the 

appropriate 
diagnosis 

 
 

Page 10 of 16



V. CONTACT INFORMATION  

 
CONTACTS 

 
Person Completing this Document 
Name:  Jim Noe 
Title: Director of Court Services 
Address: 2704 N. Main Street, Rockford Il. 
61103              
Telephone: 815-985-7161 
Email: jnoe@rosecrance.org 
Notices Contact (for Agreement) 
Name:  Carlene Cardosi 
Title: Regional President, Rosecrance inc. 
Address: 2704 N. Main Street, Rockford Il. 61103 
               
Telephone: 888-928-0212 
Email: ccardosi@rosecrance.org 
Administrative Contact (Reports) 
Name:  Carlene Cardosi 
Title: Regional President, Rosecrance inc. 
Address: 2704 N. Main Street, Rockford Il. 61103 
 
Telephone: 888-928-0212 
Email: ccardosi@rosecrance.org 
Program Contact 
Name: Jim Noe 
Title: Director of Court Services 
Address: 2704 N. Main St. Rockford IL,. 
61103               
 
Telephone: 815-985-7167 
Email: jnoe@rosecrance.org 
Payments Sent to: 
Name: Teresa Baumgartner 
Title: VP of Finance 
Address: 1021 N. Mulford 
Rockford, IL. 61107              
 
Telephone: 815-387-5626 
Email: tbaumgartner@rosecrance.org 

 

Page 11 of 16



Chairman’s Office of Criminal Justice Initiatives | 404 Elm Street, Suite 533, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.us 

Phone: (815) 319- 4059 | Email: mdokken@admin.wincoil.gov

Public Safety Sales Tax Alternative Funding 
Budget Detail Worksheet and Narrative 

A. Personnel / Salary– List each position by title and name of employee, if available. Show the annual
salary rate and the percentage of time to be devoted to the project. Compensation paid for
employees engaged in grant activities must be consistent with that paid for similar work within the
applicant organization.

Name/Position Computation Cost 

  TOTAL SALARY 

SALARY NARRATIVE: 

EXHIBIT B

Page 12 of 16

http://www.wincoil.us/
mailto:mdokken@wincoil.us


 

Chairman’s Office of Criminal Justice Initiatives | 404 Elm Street, Suite 533, Rockford, IL 61101 |  www.wincoil.gov
Phone: (815) 319- 4059 | Email: mdokken@admin.wincoil.gov

B. Fringe Benefits—Fringe benefits should be based on actual known costs or an established
formula. Fringe benefits are for the personnel listed in budget category (A) and for 100% time
devoted to the project.

Name/Position Computation Cost 

 TOTAL FRINGE 

 FRINGE NARRATIVE: 

Page 13 of 16

http://www.wincoil.us/
mailto:mdokken@wincoil.us


 

Chairman’s Office of Criminal Justice Initiatives | 404 Elm Street, Suite 533, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.us 

Phone: (815) 319- 4059 | Email: mdokken@admin.wincoil.gov.

C. Travel -- Itemize travel expenses of project personnel by purpose (e.g., staff to training, field
interviews, advisory group meeting, etc.). Indicate source of Travel Policies applied, Applicant or
Federal Travel Regulations.

Purpose of Travel Location Item Computation Cost 

 TOTAL TRAVEL 

TRAVEL NARATIVE: 

D. Supplies

Supply Item Computation Cost 

 TOTAL SUPPLIES 

Page 14 of 16

http://www.wincoil.us/
mailto:mdokken@wincoil.us


 

Chairman’s Office of Criminal Justice Initiatives | 404 Elm Street, Suite 533, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.us 

Phone: (815) 319- 4059 | Email: mdokken@admin.wincoil.gov

  SUPPLY NARRATIVE: 

E. Other Costs

Item Computation Cost 

  OTHER COSTS NARRATIVE: 

           TOTAL OTHER

Page 15 of 16

http://www.wincoil.us/
mailto:mdokken@wincoil.us


 

Chairman’s Office of Criminal Justice Initiatives | 404 Elm Street, Suite 533, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.us 

Phone: (815) 319- 4059 | Email: mdokken@admin.wincoil.gov

Budget Category Amount 

A. Personnel

B. Fringe Benefits

C. Travel

D. Supplies

E. Other Costs

 TOTAL PROJECT COSTS 

Page 16 of 16

http://www.wincoil.us/
mailto:mdokken@wincoil.us


AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS, THE 17th JUDICIAL CIRCUIT COURT, AND 

REMEDIES RENEWING LIVES, INC. 

The Parties to this Agreement are County of Winnebago, Illinois (hereinafter “COUNTY”), the 17th 

Judicial Circuit Court (hereinafter “COURT”) and Remedies Renewing Lives, Inc., an Illinois not- 
for-profit corporation (hereinafter “REMEDIES”). COUNTY, COURT and REMEDIES may be 
referred to herein individually as a “Party” and collectively as the “Parties”. 

WHEREAS, the COURT and COUNTY recognized the need for professional assistance in 
providing quality, licensed substance use disorder treatment, partner abuse intervention 
programming services, and other related services for criminal court cases involving 
defendants/clients in need of such services; and 

WHEREAS, REMEDIES is a professional, licensed organization that provides substance use 
disorder treatment services to chemically dependent persons and is a state of Illinois Partner 
Abuse Intervention Program (PAIP) Protocol approved site to provide PAIP services; and 

WHEREAS, the Parties believe that this Agreement will be beneficial to the Court system, 
the community and the defendants/clients. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows: 

I. General Terms

A. Term of Agreement
REMEDIES shall provide services to the COURT and COUNTY pursuant to this Agreement
for a term commencing on October 1, 2023 and ending on September 30, 2024.

B. Termination Upon Notice
COURT may terminate this Agreement without notice, for cause or no cause, by giving
written notice to REMEDIES. REMEDIES may terminate this Agreement at will by giving
thirty (30) days written notice to COURT and COUNTY. COUNTY may terminate this
Agreement at will by giving thirty (30) days written notice to REMEDIES and COURT.

C. Confidentiality
Each PARTY agrees to comply with all State and Federal laws, rules and regulations
regarding the confidentiality of defendants/clients identifying information. Should a
victim of domestic violence be identified through PAIP services, each PARTY agrees to
comply with all State and Federal laws, rules and regulations regarding the confidentiality
of victim/client identification including but not limited to the Illinois Domestic Violence
Act (IDVA) and the United States Family Violence Prevention and Services, Violence
Against Women and Victims of Crime Acts (FVPSA, VAWA and VOCA).

Page 1 of 25



D. Warrant of Authority
Each PARTY warrants to the other that each has full authority to enter into this Agreement
and to perform under its terms.

E. Indemnification
REMEDIES agrees to save and keep the COURT and COUNTY free and harmless from all
liability including but not limited to losses, damage, costs, attorney fees, expenses, causes
of action, claims or judgments resulting from claimed injury, death, damage to property
or loss of use of property of any person or legal entity arising out of or in any way
connected with the performance of work or work to be performed under this agreement.
REMEDIES shall indemnify the COURT and COUNTY for any costs, expenses, judgments,
and attorney fees paid or incurred, by or on behalf of the COURT or COUNTY, their
respective officials, agents or employees or paid for on behalf of the COURT or COUNTY,
their respective officials, agents or employees.

REMEDIES shall further save and hold harmless the COURT and COUNTY, their officials, 
agents and employees from liability or claims for any injuries to or death of REMEDIES’ 
Employees, arising out of or in any way connected with the work or work to be performed 
under this Agreement, including protection against any claim by REMEDIES for any 
payments under any workers compensation law or any expenses for any payments made 
by any workers compensation carrier on behalf REMEDIES, and REMEDIES shall indemnify 
the COURT and COUNTY for any costs, expenses, judgments and attorney fees with 
respect to the above referenced worker compensation claims incurred or paid by the 
COURT or COUNTY or paid on their behalf or on behalf of their respective officers, agents 
or employees. 

F. Consultation and Reporting
Each PARTY to this Agreement has the duty to consult and cooperate with the other in
the performance, development of programming, and the curriculum utilized. The PARTIES
agree to name persons to represent each in discussions and to hold regular monthly
meetings to review the services provided to the COURT’s Resource Intervention Center
Program (RIC).

REMEDIES agrees to provide relevant data by submitting performance metrics as well as 
narrative on a quarterly basis as outlined in Exhibits A and B. REMEDIES agrees to comply 
with all reporting, data collection and evaluation requirements, as prescribed by the 
COURT and COUNTY following the deadlines identified below. 

REPORTING SCHEDULE 
Reporting Period Date Required Due Date 

January - March Performance Measures, Fiscal Reports April 10th 
April - June Performance Measures, Fiscal Reports July 10th 
July - September Performance Measures, Fiscal Reports October 10th 
October - December Performance Measures, Fiscal Reports January 10th 

Note: If a due date falls on a weekend, report is due on the preceding Friday 

Page 2 of 25



II. Scope of Services

Pursuant to this agreement REMEDIES agrees to provide evidence-based assessment and
treatment services for defendants/clients engaged in COURT’s RIC, as appropriate for
client service needs pertaining to substance use disorders and domestic violence partner
abuse intervention programming. REMEDIES agrees to coordinate with the COURT
regarding any programmatic changes. The services to be performed by REMEDIES under
this Agreement shall include the following and that of Exhibits A and B.

A. Intake Process and Assessments
REMEDIES agrees to complete a substance use disorder treatment services intake and
assessment which includes but is not limited to diagnostic criteria and impression, past
and current mental health concerns as well as physical health, nutrition and gambling
disorder screenings.

As part of the intake process for any domestic violence PAIP referral, REMEDIES will 
incorporate the Ontario Domestic Assault Risk Assessment (ODARA), a validated intimate 
partner risk assessment that is in addition to the intake and assessment described in the 
Illinois PAIP Protocol and standards of the state of Illinois Administrative Rules- 
Administrative Code Title 89: Social Services; Chapter IV: Department of Human Services; 
Subchapter a: General Program Provision; Part 501: Partner Abuse Intervention; Section 
501.90: Educational Component (b) outlined at:  
http://www.ilga.gov/commission/jcar/admincode/089/089005010B00900R.html. 

Substance use disorder staff complete a thorough intake with each individual that 
addresses each component of the American Society of Addiction (ASAM) Patient 
Placement Criteria. REMEDIES also utilizes the evidence-based Matrix Model of 
Outpatient Alcohol and Drug Program (Matrix Model). 

Upon assessment for both substance use disorder treatment and PAIP services, 
completion of the results will be scanned and attached to the file in the FCE case 
management system within seventy-two (72) hours. 

B. Treatment - Substance Abuse
REMEDIES agrees to administer and staff a program of substance use disorder treatment
services for defendants/clients referred by the COURT. The program of substance use
disorder treatment services will include outpatient services consisting of six (6) sessions
per week for three (3) hours each with morning and afternoon sessions for up to six (6) months or
as clinically justified utilizing the ASAM Patient Placement Criteria. Individual counseling
sessions will be provided as part of outpatient substance use disorder treatment services.

Page 3 of 25

http://www.ilga.gov/commission/jcar/admincode/089/089005010B00900R.html


C. PAIP - Domestic Violence
REMEDIES agrees to provide up to three (3) PAIP groups per week. PAIP services will be
facilitated to participants for a minimum of twenty-six (26) weeks, meeting once per week
for two (2) hour sessions. The following schedule shall initially apply. The same may be
modified from time to time with reasonable notice provided.

Tuesdays 9:00 am-11:00 am 
Thursdays 1:15 pm-3:15 pm 
Fridays 2:00 pm-4:00 pm 

The number of participants in each group will not exceed fifteen (15) persons. The PAIP 
will incorporate an education based curriculum within PAIP services that adheres to the 
standards of the Illinois PAIP Protocol and Administrative Code cited in Section II (A). 
REMEDIES will utilize the Change Curriculum for Men, a cognitive behavior curriculum 
that is allowable for Illinois Department of Human Services approved PAIP providers. 

D. General Staffing
REMEDIES agrees to provide personnel for court appearances, client staffing, and
consulting with case managers and/or probations officers relative to defendants/clients
referred as a result of this Agreement, if requested.

REMEDIES employs one (1) FTE PAIP Coordinator and a PAIP Co-facilitator (.15 FTE) for 
each group. Two (2) substance use disorder treatment counselors are co-located at the 
RIC will be available during the hours of RIC operation. 

REMEDIES agrees to perform all services in the manner of an Illinois licensed substance 
use disorder treatment agency. REMEDIES will provide experienced professional staff 
with the training required by the Illinois Department of Human Service (IDHS), Division of 
Substance Use Prevention & Recovery (SUPR). 

REMEDIES will provide experienced professional staff with the training required by the 
Illinois Department of Human Services (IDHS), Division of Family & Community Services- 
Domestic and Sexual Violence Prevention to facilitate the PAIP. REMEDIES agrees to 
follow the guidelines of the state of Illinois PAIP Protocol which dictates that direct service 
PAIP staff and supervisors must have completed the forty (40) hours domestic violence 
training outlined in the Illinois Domestic Violence Act (IDVA) and have completed an 
additional twenty (20) hours of training in abuser services. The twenty (20) hours should 
consist of formal training or conference attendance in abuser intervention and/or 
experience in facilitating partner abuse intervention groups. 

All REMEDIES supplied staff and personnel will be employees or contractual employees of 
REMEDIES. REMEDIES supplied staff will have passed a background clearance conducted 
by COURT. All REMEDIES supplied staff are preferred to minimally have a bachelor’s 
degree. The REMEDIES substance abuse staff must minimally hold a CADC. A bachelor’s 
degree is required for the REMEDIES facilitator of the PAIP group. The REMEDIES PAIP co-
facilitator is preferred to have a bachelor’s degree. 

Page 4 of 25



III. Costs and Billing for Services

REMEDIES shall be compensated in the amount not to exceed $17,695.73 per month for
those services performed by pursuant to this Agreement. The total amount payable to
REMEDIES for any and all services performed pursuant to this Agreement within a twelve
(12) month period shall not exceed $212,348.72.

REMEDIES will submit an invoice on a monthly basis. Invoices must detail services 
rendered and applicable rates as well as receipts. A budget agreed to by the COUNTY, 
COURT and REMEDIES detailing approved, allowable expenses and the cost structure of 
the same is hereby incorporated into this Agreement and is attached hereto as Exhibit C. 

IV. Office Support and Payment for Services

COUNTY agrees to pay REMEDIES for services provided in accordance with the Illinois
Local Government Prompt Payment Act (50 ILCS 505/1 et. seq). Payments will be made
on the basis of monthly invoices submitted by REMEDIES.

COUNTY agrees to provide REMEDIES with suitable space within the RIC, telephone and
internet connectivity, and general technology support.

V. Amendments

Any amendments shall be by written instrument executed by the parties hereto, acting
therein by their duly authorized representatives. The Winnebago County Board Chairman
is authorized, on behalf of the County Board to execute the renewal, continuation or
modification of this grant award, without further County Board action.

VI. Entire Agreement

This Agreement is the entire Agreement between the Parties and any prior discussions,
oral representations and other understanding are merged herein and made a part of
hereof including any addendums to the agreement. This Agreement shall replace and
supersede any previously signed Agreement between the Parties relative to the specific
services recited herein.

VII. Governing Law

The laws of the State of Illinois shall govern the performance and interpretation of this
Agreement. Venue for the resolution of any disputes or the enforcement of any rights
pursuant to this Agreement shall be in the 17th Judicial Circuit Court of Winnebago
County, Illinois.

Page 5 of 25



Dated: , 2023 County of Winnebago, Illinois 

By:   
Joseph V. Chiarelli, in his capacity as 
Chairman of the County Board of the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois 

Dated: , 2023 The 17th Judicial Circuit Court 

By: 
John Lowry, in his capacity as 
Chief Judge of the 17th Judicial Circuit Court 

Dated: , 2023 Remedies Renewing Lives, Inc. 
An Illinois not-for-profit corporation 

By: 
Gary Halbach, in his capacity as President 
and CEO 

Page 6 of 25



EXHIBIT A 

SCOPE OF WORK - SUDS 
I. ORGANIZATION BACKGROUND

a. Brief description of organization history and purpose
Remedies Renewing Lives (formerly PHASE/WAVE) has been in existence since 1955, incorporated in 1959, 
initially providing substance use disorder treatment services on an outpatient basis and in 1978 integrating 
domestic violence programming into the organization.  In 1982, Remedies Renewing Lives began providing 
partner abuse intervention programming (PAIP) and in 2008 mental health services were added as another 
component of the agency.  Remedies Renewing Lives mission is renewing lives of individuals affected by 
addiction, mental health issues, and domestic violence.   

b. Describe history managing grants and/or other funding
Remedies Renewing Lives has a long history in grants management and has been a recipient to numerous grants 
and contracts related to substance use disorder services.  For decades, Remedies Renewing Lives receives 
funding from the Illinois Department of Human Services (IDHS) Division of Substance Use Prevention and 
Recovery (SUPR) to provide services at our core location.  The IDHS/SUPR contracts include Substance Abuse 
Block Grants known as Global and Global-DCFS, Opioid Maintenance Therapy (OMT) and Problem Gambling. 
Remedies Renewing Lives substance use disorder program is licensed in the State of Illinois, Medicaid certified, 
accepts most insurances and the program is Behavioral Healthcare Accredited from The Joint Commission. 
Although not supporting services held at the RIC, Remedies Renewing Lives is a recent grant recipient of funding 
from the Winnebago County Community Mental Health Board.  Additionally, Remedies Renewing Lives has held 
contracts for many years with the U.S. Probation and Pre-Trial Offices, Illinois Department of Corrections 
Southwestern Illinois and Sheridan Correctional Centers and was a partner agency with a local Illinois 
Collaboration on Youth (ICOY) grant project. 

Remedies Renewing Lives has been providing substance use disorder services at the RIC since 2008. These 
services have been generously funded by the 1% Safety Tax.  The services are delivered by individual 
appointment and/or on-going group counseling and include case management and community intervention, 
urinalysis, relapse prevention along with linkage to our agency's Medication Assisted Treatment (MAT) 
whenever necessary. 

c. If this program related to behavioral health, will you be applying to the Winnebago County Mental
Health Board in 2024?

  Yes  No  Not Applicable 

Page 7 of 25



II. SERVICE, PROGRAM, or PROJECT OVERVIEW

a. Provide summary of proposed service, program, project to be supported or delivered by requested funds.
Include eligibility requirements, demographics served, and how it will lead to a reduction in violent crime.

As a state of Illinois licensed outpatient substance use disorder treatment provider, Remedies Renewing Lives 
offers comprehensive services that include individual and group counseling, case management, community 
intervention and recovery support.  All substance use disorder services provided at the RIC are with persons 
who are justice-involved and referred by the 17th Judicial Circuit Court of Winnebago County, Illinois.  Through 
the 1% Safety Tax, our agency employs two (2) FTE substance use disorder counselors at the RIC.  In general, 
outpatient services consist of one (1) to three (3) sessions per week for three (3) hours each for up to six (6) 
months or as clinically justified utilizing the American Society of Addiction (ASAM) Patient Placement Criteria.  
The ASAM Patient Criteria, which will be addressed again later, has six (6) core components which include 
addressing a patient's history of using substances and their experiences with withdrawal; the patient's medical 
history and current physical health; a patient's current mental well-being and health; where a patient is at in 
terms of stopping substance use; a patient's history of on-going use and/or relapse and the consequences 
thereof; and the patient's current living situation and any challenges that relate to that setting and/or their 
recovery.  It is not uncommon for persons who use or mis-use substances to have their own history of abuse 
stemming from child abuse, domestic violence, community violence and at times our community's historic 
response to those issues.  Although not an excuse for harm to others, substance use is often a coping 
mechanism and the stigma surrounding it often compounds the difficulty in obtaining and maintaining recovery. 
Moreover, when a person living with a substance use disorder is not provided options, there is risk for long-
term consequences for not only them but their children like incarceration and/or child-welfare involvement. 

To that end, Remedies Renewing Lives utilizes the ASAM Patient Placement Criteria to address the association 
between substance use and crime.  As indicated in the Illinois State Police Crime in Illinois 2020 Annual Uniform 
Crime Report, Winnebago County, Illinois had just over 600 drug related arrests in 2020 with over 1,200 drug 
related arrests in 2019 (p. 237).  While only a snapshot into the dynamics of substance use and its impact upon 
our local community, the criminal justice system is an opportunity for intervention as justice involvement can 
be an indicator of increased risk of safety for those that use, their families and the community at-large.  For 
instance, the National Institute on Drug Abuse (NIDA) has developed principles for treatment of justice-involved 
populations.  The NIDA principles acknowledge that recovery of substance use requires effective treatment 
with continued care, treatment focusing on factors that are associated with criminal behavior and treatment 
for as long as needed to help establish behavioral change (JAMA, 2009, January 14; 301(2)).  Therefore, 
intervention opportunities that occur during the stages of the criminal justice process should not be ignored. 
Opportunities for intervention include screening or referring for substance use disorder services at the time of 
arrest; utilizing diversion programs, drug court and/or community-based treatment as part of the prosecution 
process; during the sentencing phase with terms of incarceration or release conditions based on treatment; 
part of the jail or probation process through screening and substance use disorder treatment; and in the course 
of community re-entry either through probation or release ( JAMA, 2009, January 14; 301(2)).   

In terms of demographics, during the last complete fiscal year, 10/1/2021-09/30/22, patients/clients served by 
Remedies Renewing Lives identified as the following: 

Black or African American: 93 
Caucasian or White: 44 
Hispanic: 8 
Asian: 1 

Page 8 of 25



Males: 121 
Females: 25 

Number of assessments completed during the same time frame: 146 

b. Describe current and projected project/program partnerships.
Remedies Renewing Lives has a long history of working in tandem with our local criminal justice system.  Our 
agency routinely communicates with the 17th Judicial Circuit Court and the Winnebago County Resource 
Intervention Center to address needs and strategies to ensure we are adhering to the highest level of services. 
We also collaborate with area medical, social service and faith community providers as part of the on-going 
case management and community intervention services we provide with patients/clients receiving substance 
use disorder services through the RIC. 

III. PROGRAM PROCESSES

a. Describe referral, intake and assessment process; include description of evidence-based practices used.
As indicated earlier all referrals to substance use disorder services to the Resource Intervention Center (RIC) 
are made through the 17th Judicial Circuit Court.  Remedies Renewing Lives has two (2) substance use disorder 
treatment counselor's co-located at the RIC and are available during the hours of RIC operation.  Substance 
use disorder staff complete a thorough intake with each individual that addresses each component of the 
ASAM Patient Placement Criteria.  Our agency utilizes the evidence-based Matrix Model of Outpatient Alcohol 
and Drug Program (Matrix Model) by Obert, et al, and published by Hazelden, which concentrates on six (6) 
crucial areas: individual support, early recovery, relapse prevention, family education, social support and urine 
testing.  The Matrix Model incorporates cognitive behavioral therapy, motivational enhancement, 12-step 
facilitation and group support and is a federally recognized model by the Center for Substance Abuse 
Treatment, National Institute on Drug Abuse, Office of National Drug Control Policy and is currently being 
reviewed by the National Registry of Effective Programs and Practices. As noted earlier, Remedies Renewing 
Lives is Behavioral Healthcare Accredited from The Joint Commission, who also supports our use of the Matrix 
Model. 

b. Describe treatment, counseling, and case management. Be specific.
The substance use disorder treatment, counseling and case management provided by Remedies Renewing Lives 
is delivered by collaborative approach that addresses not only substance use but mental health, medical 
treatment and connection to social service programs as needed.  The ASAM Patient Placement Criteria is 
designed to be all-inclusive in that it guides staff to work collaboratively with the patient/client throughout the 
treatment process, assists in determining goals, and supports efforts to identify intensity of treatment along 
with frequency of need.  Since services are individualized, case management is based on treatment plans and 
reported needs.  Examples include assistance with health, transportation, child care, medical benefits along 
with educational, dental and vocational challenges.  Community intervention includes a focus on situational 

Page 9 of 25



crisis in addition to engagement or re-engagement with community resources like churches and schools.  As all 
participants at the RIC are justice-involved, there is a strong emphasis in programming in how to reduce 
recidivism to not only protect the community at-large but increase the well-being and safety of the individual 
patient/client and their family.  Lastly, although substance use is not the cause of using violence against an 
intimate partner, it does increase the danger for those being abused and has the potential of increasing the 
lethality risk of violence.  Therefore, cross referrals between Remedies Renewing Lives substance use disorder 
and partner abuse intervention programming staff at the RIC are not uncommon and is encouraged by the 
agency. 

Each counselor will facilitate substance use disorder treatment groups three (3) days a week, twice daily for 
three (3) hours each. Remedies Renewing Lives will select which days to provide the groups. Remedies staff 
offices are located on site at Adult Probation as 2 counselors assigned to this location maintain duties at Adult 
Probation site only. Groups will take place 8:45 AM – 11:45 AM and 1:15 PM – 4:15 PM. 

c. Describe staff roles; include education, training, and licensure requirements.
Remedies Renewing Lives substance use disorder programming at the RIC is overseen by our Vice President of 
Clinical Services who is experienced in substance use disorder treatment. Our Vice President of Clinical 
Services holds a Master’s in Human Services, Bachelor’s in Criminal Justice and is a Certified Alcohol and Drug 
Counselor/Co-Occurring Substance Use and Mental Health Disorder Professional (CADC/CODP).  Training of 
substance use disorder staff is on-going and has included topics related to under-served populations, recovery 
support, mental health needs, amongst many others. 

Position Requirements are as follows: 
Addictions Counselors 
EDUCATION AND CERTIFICATION: 

• Must either hold a Bachelor’s Degree and working towards a Certified Alcohol and Drug Counselor
(CADC) certification or have a CADC certification and working toward a bachelor’s degree.

EXPERIENCE: 
• One-year full time experience providing substance abuse treatment

In addition, Addiction Counselor’s placement at the RIC is subject to passing a background clearance 
conducted by COURT. 

d. Describe program oversight and accountability.
To assist with program oversight and accountability, Remedies Renewing Lives substance use disorder staff 
meet monthly with Winnebago County Resource Intervention Center staff of the RIC to help address 
emerging needs and patient/client support.  Our Vice President of Clinical Services has weekly if not daily 
contact with substance use disorder treatment staff and visits the RIC on a monthly basis to conduct chart 
reviews to ensure patients’/clients’ needs are being met.   Groups should be open for review by Resource 
Intervention Center Management (Karen Mohr, RIC Supervisor or Jodi Gerue) to ensure RIC standards, 
policies and procedures are adhered to and to ensure fidelity of curriculum facilitation. Remedies substance 
abuse staff will meet monthly with RIC staff for provider updates. 

Page 10 of 25



IV. GOALS/PERFORMANCE MEASURES/STANDARDS

Instructions: Complete the blanks in table below using projected objectives for the funded year. Your data report 
will reflect these numbers. Please note that any change to objectives will need to be approved by Winnebago 
County Administration. Must include number served for each service. 

Objectives/Standards Performance Measures Projected 

Maintain 2 employees as FTE # of employees maintained as FTE 2 

Conduct intake/assessment and provide 
substance use disorder services.  # of clients referred for assessment 200 

Conduct intake/assessment and provide 
substance use disorder services. # of persons enrolled in SUD services 150 

Facilitate SUD groups. # of SUD groups facilitated 294 

Communication with Winnebago County 
Resource Intervention Center   

# of Provider Meetings attended with 
Resource Intervention Staff 12 

Provide substance use disorder program 
oversight at the RIC. (Average 15 per 
month)  

# patient/client chart reviews complete 180 

Provide on-going supervision with 
Remedies Renewing Lives substance use 
disorder treatment staff. # of coaching with staff completed 24 

Page 11 of 25



V. CONTACT INFORMATION

CONTACTS 

Person Completing this Document 
Name:  Alberto Carrion 
Title: Vice President of Contracts  
Address: 215 Easton Pkwy.  
Rockford, IL 61108          
Telephone: (815) 966-1287 ext 241 
Email: acarrion@remediesrenewinglives.org 
Notices Contact (for Agreement) 
Name:  Gary Halbach 
Title: President/CEO 
Address: 215 Easton Pkwy. 
Rockford, IL 61108 
Telephone: (815) 966-1285 
Email: ghalbach@remediesrenewinglives.org 
Administrative Contact (Reports) 
Name:  Alberto Carrion 
Title: Vice President of Contracts  
Address: 215 Easton Pkwy.  
Rockford, IL 61108          
Telephone: (815) 966-1287 ext 241 
Email: acarrion@remediesrenewinglives.org 
Program Contact 
Name: Laurie Graciana 
Title: Vice President of Clinical Services 
Address: 215 Easton Pkwy. 
Rockford, IL 61108          
Telephone: 815-962-0871 
Email: lgraciana@remediesrenewinglives.org 
Payments Sent to: 
Name: Meg Jagielski 
Title: Vice President of Finance 
Address: 215 Easton Pkwy. 
Rockford, IL 61108 
Telephone: 815-966-1287 ext. 425 
Email: mjagielski@remediesrenewinglives.org 

Page 12 of 25



SCOPE OF WORK – PAIP 

I. ORGANIZATION BACKGROUND

a. Brief description of organization history and purpose

Remedies Renewing Lives (formerly PHASE/WAVE) has been in existence since 1955, incorporated in 1959, 
initially providing substance use disorder treatment services on an outpatient basis and in 1978 integrating 
domestic violence programming into the organization.  In 1982, Remedies Renewing Lives began providing 
partner abuse intervention programming (PAIP) and in 2008 mental health services were added as another 
component of the agency.  Remedies Renewing Lives mission is renewing lives of individuals affected by 
addiction, mental health issues, and domestic violence.   

b. Describe history managing grants and/or other funding

Remedies Renewing Lives has a long history of grants management and has been a recipient to numerous grants 
related to victim/survivor services.  Our awards include the Illinois Department of Human Services (IDHS) 
Domestic Violence Prevention and Intervention (DVP&I) grant which we have received for decades, IDHS State 
Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG) funding which we have received for over a decade, Illinois Coalition Against 
Domestic Violence (ICADV) Victims of Crime Act (VOCA) and Violence Against Women Act (VAWA) funding 
which we have also received for several decades, Illinois Criminal Justice Information Authority (ICJIA) VOCA 
Transitional Housing funding since 2018, ICJIA VOCA Multi-Victimization since 2020, Federal Emergency 
Management Agency (FEMA) grant for over a decade and have been sub-recipients to Winnebago County, 
Illinois grants from the U.S. Department of Justice, Office on Violence Against Women (OVW) Domestic Violence 
Homicide Prevention Initiative, Improving Criminal Justice Response as well as Justice for Families projects.  
Most recently, we became a sub-recipient to Prairie State Legal Services OVW Legal Assistance for Victims grant 
and we OVW for additional transitional housing services. Additionally, the agency has a history in receiving local 
foundation grants from organizations such as the Community Foundation of Northern Illinois, The Kjellstrom 
Foundation and The Mill Foundation. We are also a receipient of Winnebago County Community Mental Health 
Board funding to support therapy and advocacy services for survivors of domestic violence.  Specific to our PAIP 
services, we have been awarded a grant from IDHS to increase our PAIP services beyond the RIC so that we can 
serve a greater number of persons in the community with an emphasis on serving those parents who are both 
justice and child-welfare involved as well as expand community based services into Boone County.  Our DHS 
PAIP programming is facilitated at 215 Easton Parkway, Rockford, IL 61108 and utilizes the curriculum outlined 
in this proposal. We hope to continue expansion by adding a group in Boone County with location yet to be 
determined when feasible. DHS PAIP funding does not support services at the RIC. 

c. If this program related to behavioral health, will you be applying to the Winnebago County Mental

Health Board in 2024?

  Yes  No  Not Applicable 

EXHIBIT B

Page 13 of 25



II. SERVICE, PROGRAM, or PROJECT OVERVIEW

a. Provide summary of proposed service, program, project to be supported or delivered by requested funds.

Include eligibility requirements, demographics served, and how it will lead to a reduction in violent crime.

Remedies Renewing Lives partner abuse intervention program services are specific to serving men who use 
violence against their intimate partner in heterosexual relationships.  Participants are ordered by the 17th 
Judicial Circuit Court as part of their sentencing for domestic violence related crimes.  Program participants 
must attend at least 26 weeks of group programming and actively participate and acknowledge their abusive 
behavior against their intimate partner.  Remedies Renewing Lives PAIP services are grounded in the concepts 
of the Duluth Model which emphasize that intimate partner violence is a pattern of coercive control and a belief 
of entitlement by the person who uses violence, offers change opportunities through educational groups for 
those who are justice involved and/or seeking change on their own, and supports a community-wide response 
to increasing victim/survivor safety (www.theduluthmodel.org/).  Although explained further below, our 
agency utilizes a curriculum known as the Change Curriculum for Men (Change), which was developed by 
Cognition Works, a multi-service organization located in Champaign, Illinois.  The Change curriculum is 
specifically designed to focus on “prevention, intervention and change of irresponsible behavior” with persons 
who use violence against their intimate partner (Cognition Works, Change Curriculum for Men, Introduction, p. 
1).  The curriculum utilizes the process of opposition and solutions during group format by facilitators that 
includes role playing and homework.   

While the Change curriculum has many more components than what can be provided for space in this 
application, the most important point is how we connect the curriculum in our quest to improve safety in the 
lives of victims/survivors thereby helping to reduce crimes related to domestic violence in our community.  It 
should not be forgotten the context of which survivors are living is a state of fear and trepidation based on 
threats and/or use of violence to maintain continuous control.  Survivors often put themselves in harm’s way 
to deflect violence against their children, work multiple jobs to avoid eviction or the shut off of utilities, relocate 
their families to unknown places so that they no longer have to live in fear, participate in the civil and criminal 
justice processes which can range anywhere from being a petitioner to an emergency order of protection or as 
a parent involved in abuse and neglect court. To that end, the Change curriculum speaks to these needs by 
demonstrating that patterns of abusive behavior are on a continuum which can increase in severity or impact 
over time.  It allows co-facilitators to address power and control tactics by people who use violence that address 
all the pieces of the Power and Control Wheel that is so often identified by the victims/survivors Remedies 
Renewing Lives serves.  For instance, when thinking about the MTP Control Through Power, co-facilitators can 
address circumstances in which the offender may use coercion and threats like making or carrying out threats 
to control their partner, using intimidation through looks or gestures and/or controlling what the survivor does 
or whom they seek or talk to.  Likewise, the MTP of Specialness speaks to the entitlement piece by people who 
use violence.  Treating the survivor like a servant, making all the big decisions, not allowing the survivor to work, 
or giving the survivor an allowance are all examples of male privilege and a maladaptive thinking pattern.  Using 
the Choice curriculum over the span of 26 weeks offers many opportunities for PAIP staff to address the change 
process, accountability, past patterns, irresponsible excitement, expectations, highlighting the moral and legal 
consequences of intimate partner violence. 

With the 1% Safety Tax funding, Remedies Renewing Lives employs one (1) FTE PAIP Coordinator who 
completes an intake and assessment of need with each offender referred by the courts, co-facilitates three (3) 
weekly groups, checks-in with each offender at the 10-to-12-week group-mark and completes a final interview 
with each offender prior to the formal conclusion of PAIP services.  The funding from the 1% Safety Tax also 
supports a PAIP Manager (.1875 FTE). PAIP groups are facilitated at the RIC on the following schedule: 

Page 14 of 25



Tuesdays from 9AM to 11:00 AM 
Thursdays from 1:30 PM to 3:30 PM 
Fridays from 2:00 PM to 4:00 PM. 

PAIP intakes and assessments completed by the PAIP Coordinator are conducted during business hours with 
information uploaded into FCE accordingly and on-going contact with the Winnebago County Adult Probation 
Department.   

Demographics for FY22 (7/1/21-6/30/22) 

Caucasian or White: 54 
Black or African American: 93 
Hispanic: 6 
Bi-Racial: 3 
Unknown: 4 
Ages 18-29: 50 
Ages 30-39: 51 
Ages 40-49: 27 
Ages 50-59 14 
Ages 60-69: 12 
Ages 70+: 0 

Demographics for FY23  (7/1/22 – 6/30/23) 

• Caucasian or White: 33

• Black or African American: 75

• Hispanic: 2

• Bi-Racial: 4

• Unknown: 6

• Ages 18-29: 40

• Ages 30-39: 49

• Ages 40-49: 15

• Ages 50-59:  9

• Ages 60-69: 7

• Ages 70+:    0

b. Describe current and projected project/program partnerships.

Remedies Renewing Lives has a long history of working in partnerships.  We meet bi-monthly with the 17th 
Judicial Circuit Court of Winnebago County, Illinois, Winnebago County Adult Probation Department Domestic 
Violence Unit and other PAIP providers to ensure all agencies are adhering to court and Protocol standards.  
Remedies Renewing Lives also meets separately with the Winnebago County Adult Probation Department 
Domestic Violence Unit to talk about specific needs and strategies to ensure we are adhering to the highest 
level of services 

Page 15 of 25



III. PROGRAM PROCESSES

a. Describe referral, intake and assessment process; include description of evidence-based practices used.

Upon receipt of a referral from Winnebago County Adult Probation, Remedies Renewing Lives PAIP 
Coordinator schedules a screening/assessment appointment with the offender which is held in-person, on-site 
at the RIC and in the PAIP Coordinator’s office.  As part of the overall assessment, a Remedies Renewing Lives 
PAIP intake is conducted. The intake form includes contact information, demographics, employment, income 
or benefits; highest education level and military status or experience; current marital status, current intimate 
relationship status and if the intimate partner is aware of the order to PAIP; contact information for the victim 
of intimate partner violence, status of relationship with the victim, whether or not the parties were living 
together at the time of arrest or conviction; specifics of the probation order regarding contact with the victim; 
order of protection history; arrest and conviction history for domestic violence related crimes and non-
domestic violence related crimes; number of times the offender has used violence without any law 
enforcement contact; information specific to children between the offender and victim and if the offender has 
children with other intimate partners; substance use and alcohol use history including if it was a component 
to the conviction or previous acts of violence; history of threats of death by suicide, access to weapons, history 
of counseling including any mental health concerns or prescription use; previous use of PAIP services at 
Remedies Renewing Lives or other provider; current and historical child welfare involvement; and use of 
violence against animals or pets.  The intake form also includes questions specific to if the offender is afraid of 
their victim themselves and if they think the victim is afraid of them.  It is not very often that an offender is not 
screened in for PAIP services.  Exceptions to that may be if the offender is in a non-heterosexual relationship 
with their victim or if the offender has been identified as a victim of domestic violence themselves.  Since the 
use of intimate partner violence is a gender-based issue and because Remedies Renewing Lives PAIP services 
are specific to men, it is rare to encounter a victim of domestic violence program however when it does occur 
the PAIP Coordinator refers the victim to our agency’s survivor services.  It should be noted that our domestic 
violence victim services never deny someone solely based on gender nor sexual orientation, race, national 
origin, and familial status, disability, and legal status, number of children, age or religion.   

In addition to completing the intake form, Remedies Renewing Lives PAIP Coordinator also completes the 
Ontario Domestic Assault Risk Assessment (ODARA).   Although not intended to measure an individual victim’s 
safety, the ODARA can assist in identifying risks of future violence against an intimate partner, risk of re-arrest 
and likelihood to re-appear in court.  To complete the ODARA, our PAIP Coordinator gathers information from 
the offender during the intake process, the offender’s identified probation officer and what has been uploaded 
into Winnebago County’s court record data base system known as Full Court Enterprise (FCE).  Depending upon 
time of inquiry, the PAIP Coordinator can locate the offender’s criminal history along with the most recent 
arresting incident probable cause statement and sometimes the victim’s statement to law enforcement.  Upon 
gathering as much information as possible, the PAIP Coordinator scores the ODARA responses and uploads the 
document into FCE that includes a specific dropdown menu for ODARA score.  The score then helps guide the 
probation officer and the PAIP Coordinator in determining future risk of harm by the offender to their intimate 
partner relationships and likelihood of appearing in court.   
Besides completing the intake and ODARA, the Remedies Renewing Lives PAIP Coordinator also addresses 
confidentiality with the offender.  The obligation by providers to protect confidential information of PAIP 
participants is under the Illinois Administrative Code for Mental Health and Mental Health and Developmental 
Disabilities Confidentiality Act.  As part of the Illinois Protocol Partner Abuse Intervention Program services, at 
the time of program initiation PAIP participants are required to complete a written release of information to: 
relative criminal justice and court authorities; mental health agencies; victims/survivors of abuse; any persons 
or agencies that would need to receive compliance or threats of violence by the offender; and/or any agencies 

Page 16 of 25



that may plan to assist with intervention for non-compliance or threats of violence by the offender.  As a result, 
the PAIP Coordinator completes a release of information specific to the 17th Judicial Circuit Court of 
Winnebago County, Illinois, and Winnebago County Adult Probation along with a release of information that 
allows the PAIP Coordinator to contact the victim(s) specific to the arrest related referral and current intimate 
partner of the offender.  Lastly, the PAIP Coordinator reviews the Contract for Participation in services.  In turn, 
the offender is informed of the expectations for services which include weekly attendance and attendance of 
at least 26 groups for program completion; meeting individually with the PAIP Coordinator after attendance of 
10-12 groups and upon an opening to PAIP services; understanding that all attendance or non-attendance will 
be recorded and reported to the offender’s probation officer and court; expectation to remain alcohol and/or 
substance free during services and understanding that if it is suspected of being under the influence of any 
substance the offender will be asked to leave the group receiving no credit; obtain a chemical dependency 
evaluation if referred by the PAIP Coordinator; understanding that if late to group the offender will not be 
allowed to participate and will be marked as absent; only 3 absences are allowed and at the fourth (4th) missed 
group the participant will be referred back to their probation officer; requirement to abstain from violence; 
agreement to cooperate with program expectations and norms; and that at its core, our PAIP program is about 
taking accountability for the violence perpetrated against an intimate partner. 

b. Describe treatment, counseling, and case management. Be specific.

As required by the Illinois Protocol for Partner Abuse Intervention Programs, core components of PAIP 
programming include that programs ensure the safety and rights of adult and child victims of domestic 
violence, work to reduce domestic violence through effective intervention, ensure that people who use 
violence against their intimate partner are held accountable and responsible for their behavior and to ensure 
persons who use violence against their intimate partner receive services that are effective.  As a result, 
Remedies Renewing Lives utilizes a curriculum known as the Change Curriculum for Men (Change), which was 
developed by Cognition Works, a multi-service organization located in Champaign, Illinois.  As required by the 
Protocol, the Change curriculum is approved to be used for the purposes of providing partner abuse 
intervention program services by IDHS.  The Change curriculum is specifically designed to focus on 
“prevention, intervention and change of irresponsible behavior” with persons who use violence against their 
intimate partner (Cognition Works, Change Curriculum for Men, Introduction, p. 1).  The curriculum utilizes 
the process of opposition and solutions during group format by facilitators that includes role playing and 
homework.  Maladaptive Thinking Patters (MTP’s) are a core component of the curriculum and fall in line with 
our agency’s philosophy that domestic violence is connected to a belief system centered around entitlement, 
often based on a view that one partner is allowed greater freedom than another.  The MTP’s that are 
routinely referenced within the 26-week group curriculum are victim script in which the person who uses 
violence consistently blames others for their circumstance; unrealistic self-image in which the person who 
uses violence views themselves as responsible despite actions; closed thinking in which the person who uses 
violence is unwilling to listen to share information or to be self-critical, goes on assumptions and lies by 
omission as opposed to outright; sense of entitlement that extends to persons, places and things and often 
includes intense jealousy; compartmentalized thinking where what happens before does not count or not 
impact the future with little sense that behavior has consequences; inappropriate expectations about life that 
lead to boredom, unwillingness to appreciate daily effort and/or has unreasonable fears; control through 
power in which the person who uses violence expects to be able to control situations and other individuals, 
uses manipulation and intimidation to achieve their goals including using sex for power and control rather 
than intimacy; and specialness in which the person has a sense of being superior or unique where they are 
living in a natural state and whatever rules may exist are for others.  In addition to the MTP’s, the Change 
curriculum includes Tactics to Avoid Being Accountable.  The different tactics include putting others on the 
defense such as when they attack competency, bring up irrelevant issues, minimize the situation and pick at 
details; control information like agreeing with no intention of following through, being intentionally vague, 
saying whatever will satisfy the moment or using silence; and controlling interactions such as listening 

Page 17 of 25



selectively and hearing only what is self-serving, insisting they forgot and/or focusing on being mis-
understood.   

The Change curriculum also has a heavy emphasis on choice language.  The Change curriculum values keeping 

responsibility on the irresponsible person, cutting through the denial system, and recognizing the power over 

their own lives to change. The curriculum focuses on cognitive restructuring.  PAIP co-facilitators model choice 

language during group by using phrases such as “you may choose to” or “your choices are”, etc.   

c. Describe staff roles; include education, training, and licensure requirements.

Remedies Renewing Lives PAIP program at the RIC is led by a Coordinator who is supervised by our PAIP 
Manager. Remedies staff offices are located on site at Adult Probation as are counselors assigned to this 
location who maintain duties at Adult Probation site only. The PAIP Manager has received the 40-hour 
domestic violence training and the 20-hour partner abuse intervention training. The PAIP Coordinator has also 
received the 40-hour domestic violence training described within the Illinois Domestic Violence Act and the 
required 20-hour partner abuse intervention training. All trainings were received through IDCVP Board 
approved training sites. Any part-time co-facilitators for Remedies Renewing Lives PAIP services that may fill 
in at the RIC also meet these same training qualifications. Remedies Renewing Lives PAIP Manager oversees 
PAIP services at the RIC and provides supervision of the PAIP Coordinator and co-facilitators. The Vice 
President of Domestic Violence Services, who oversees and supervises the PAIP Manager, holds a Bachelors of 
Sociology and a Masters of Public Administration and has over 20 years of experience in domestic violence 
programming including direct service with adults and child survivors and continues to hold management roles 
with Remedies Renewing Lives. 

Qualifications for PAIP positions are as follows: 
PAIP Coordinator:  
EDUCATION: 

• Bachelor’s Degree required.
EXPERIENCE: 

• Demonstrated skills in individual, group case management.
CERTIFICATE/LICENSE: 

• Completion of the 40-hour domestic violence training as required by the Illinois Domestic Violence
Act (IDVA) from an Illinois Certified Domestic Violence Professional (CDVP) approved training site

• Completion of 20-hour partner abuse intervention program training from an Illinois Certified Partner
Abuse Intervention Prevention (CPAIP) approved training site.

PAIP Co-Facilitator: 
EDUCATION: 

• Bachelor’s Degree preferred.
EXPERIENCE: 

• Demonstrated skills in case management and or group facilitation preferred
CERTIFICATE/LICENSE: 

• Completion of the 40-hour domestic violence training as required by the Illinois Domestic Violence
Act (IDVA) from an Illinois Certified Domestic Violence Professional (ICDVP) approved training site.
This training will be provided by Remedies Renewing Lives at the start of employment if not yet
completed.

Page 18 of 25



• Completion of the 20-hour partner abuse intervention program training from an Illinois Certified
Partner Abuse Intervention Program training site will be required after starting employment, if not yet
completed.

d. Describe program oversight and accountability.

To provide program oversight and accountability, Remedies Renewing Lives meets monthly with Winnebago 
County Adult Probation Department staff to help address emerging needs and client support. Our PAIP Manager 
oversees all PAIP services held at the RIC and provides weekly supervision of the PAIP Coordinator and PAIP Co-
facilitators. The Vice President of Domestic Violence Services also observes PAIP groups periodically to ensure 
agency standards are adhered to and provides supervision to the PAIP Manager Groups should be open for 
review by Resource Intervention Center Management (Karen Mohr, RIC Supervisor or Jodi Gerue) to ensure RIC 
standards, policies and procedures are adhered to and to ensure fidelity of curriculum facilitation. Observation 
may be quarterly. Should follow up be required, a follow up observation visit may take place within 45 days to 
ensure the issue has been addressed.   

IV. GOALS/PERFORMANCE MEASURES/STANDARDS

Instructions: Complete the blanks in table below using projected objectives for the funded year. Your data report 

will reflect these numbers. Please note that any change to objectives will need to be approved by Winnebago 

County Administration. Must include number served for each service. 

Objectives/Standards Performance Measures Projected 

Maintain 1.1875 employees as FTE. # of employees maintained as FTE 1.1875 

Conduct intake/assessment, mid-point 
and final evaluation with persons 
referred by Courts 

# persons enrolled in PAIP 150 

Facilitate weekly PAIP groups. # PAIP groups facilitated 156 

Communication with Winnebago 
County, Illinois Adult Probation 
Department. 

# meetings with Winnebago County Adult 
Probation 

12 

Supervision with PAIP staff. # of coaching with staff completed 50 

Page 19 of 25



V. CONTACT INFORMATION  

 

 

CONTACTS 
 

Person Completing this Document 
Name:  Alberto Carrion 
Title: Vice President of Contracts  
Address: 215 Easton Pkwy.  
Rockford, IL 61108               
Telephone: (815) 966-1287 ext 241 
Email: acarrion@remediesrenewinglives.org 

Notices Contact (for Agreement) 
Name:  Gary Halbach 
Title: President/CEO 
Address: 215 Easton Pkwy. 
Rockford, IL 61108 
Telephone: (815) 966-1285 
Email: ghalbach@remediesrenewinglives.org 

Administrative Contact (Reports) 
Name:  Alberto Carrion 
Title: Vice President of Contracts  
Address: 215 Easton Pkwy.  
Rockford, IL 61108               
Telephone: (815) 966-1287 ext 241 
Email: acarrion@remediesrenewinglives.org 

Program Contact 
Name: Laurie Graciana 
Title: Vice President of Clinical Services 
Address: 215 Easton Pkwy. 
Rockford, IL 61108               
Telephone: 815-962-0871 
Email: lgraciana@remediesrenewinglives.org 

Payments Sent to: 
Name: Meg Jagielski 
Title: Vice President of Finance 
Address: 215 Easton Pkwy. 
Rockford, IL 61108 
Telephone: 815-966-1287 ext. 425 
Email: mjagielski@remediesrenewinglives.org 

 

 

 

Page 20 of 25



Chairman’s Office of Criminal Justice Initiatives | 404 Elm Street, Suite 533, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.us 

Phone: (815) 319- 4059 | Email: mdokken@admin.wincoil.gov

Public Safety Sales Tax Alternative Funding 
Budget Detail Worksheet and Narrative 

A. Personnel / Salary– List each position by title and name of employee, if available. Show the annual
salary rate and the percentage of time to be devoted to the project. Compensation paid for
employees engaged in grant activities must be consistent with that paid for similar work within the
applicant organization.

Name/Position Computation Cost 

  TOTAL SALARY 

SALARY NARRATIVE: 

EXHIBIT C

Page 21 of 25

http://www.wincoil.us/
mailto:mdokken@wincoil.us


Chairman’s Office of Criminal Justice Initiatives | 404 Elm Street, Suite 533, Rockford, IL 61101 |  www.wincoil.gov
Phone: (815) 319- 4059 | Email: mdokken@admin.wincoil.gov

B. Fringe Benefits—Fringe benefits should be based on actual known costs or an established
formula. Fringe benefits are for the personnel listed in budget category (A) and for 100% time
devoted to the project.

Name/Position Computation Cost 

 TOTAL FRINGE 

 FRINGE NARRATIVE: 

Page 22 of 25

http://www.wincoil.us/
mailto:mdokken@wincoil.us


 

Chairman’s Office of Criminal Justice Initiatives | 404 Elm Street, Suite 533, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.us 

Phone: (815) 319- 4059 | Email: mdokken@admin.wincoil.gov.

C. Travel -- Itemize travel expenses of project personnel by purpose (e.g., staff to training, field
interviews, advisory group meeting, etc.). Indicate source of Travel Policies applied, Applicant or
Federal Travel Regulations.

Purpose of Travel Location Item Computation Cost 

 TOTAL TRAVEL 

TRAVEL NARATIVE: 

D. Supplies

Supply Item Computation Cost 

 TOTAL SUPPLIES 

Page 23 of 25

http://www.wincoil.us/
mailto:mdokken@wincoil.us


Chairman’s Office of Criminal Justice Initiatives | 404 Elm Street, Suite 533, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.us 

Phone: (815) 319- 4059 | Email: mdokken@admin.wincoil.gov

  SUPPLY NARRATIVE: 

E. Other Costs

Item Computation Cost 

  OTHER COSTS NARRATIVE: 

           TOTAL OTHER

Page 24 of 25

http://www.wincoil.us/
mailto:mdokken@wincoil.us


Chairman’s Office of Criminal Justice Initiatives | 404 Elm Street, Suite 533, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.us 

Phone: (815) 319- 4059 | Email: mdokken@admin.wincoil.gov

Budget Category Amount 

A. Personnel

B. Fringe Benefits

C. Travel

D. Supplies

E. Other Costs

 TOTAL PROJECT COSTS 

Page 25 of 25

http://www.wincoil.us/
mailto:mdokken@wincoil.us

	Agenda
	Approval of Minutes
	Resolution Accepting FY24 Award & Authorizing Agrmts. between Cty. of Winn., US Dept. of Justice & PSN Partners
	Resolution Accepting Award & Authorizing Service Agrmt. for the VCRIC Program
	Resolution Authorizing Service Agrmts. using PSST Alternative Funding to Tommy Meeks, Rosecrance & Remedies

	NamePositionRow1: Tommy Meeks
	ComputationRow1: 1000 (rate) x 12 (mo)
	CostRow1: 12000.00
	NamePositionRow2: 
	ComputationRow2: 
	CostRow2: 
	NamePositionRow3: 
	ComputationRow3: 
	CostRow3: 
	NamePositionRow4: 
	ComputationRow4: 
	CostRow4: 
	NamePositionRow5: 
	ComputationRow5: 
	CostRow5: 
	NamePositionRow6: 
	ComputationRow6: 
	CostRow6: 
	CostTOTAL SALARY: 12000
	SALARY NARRATIVE: Tommy Meeks works every Thursday from 8 am to 5 pm at the Resource Intervention Center, in the field seeking employers, or meeting with potential employers. He also meets with clients and employers on his off days via telephone, transportation, to give advise, or provide other support. 1,000 (mo) x 12 (mos) = $12,000.00 total cost
	AmountA Personnel: 12000
	AmountB Fringe Benefits: 0
	AmountC Travel: 0
	AmountD Supplies: 0
	AmountE Other Costs: 0
	AmountTOTAL PROJECT COSTS: 12000
	NamePositionRow1_2: James N / Program Director
	ComputationRow1_2: 10,057.32*.28
	CostRow1_2: 2816.05
	NamePositionRow2_2: Johnny C / PT Assessor
	ComputationRow2_2: 29,697.41*.28
	CostRow2_2: 8315.27
	NamePositionRow3_2: 
	ComputationRow3_2: 
	CostRow3_2: 
	NamePositionRow4_2: 
	ComputationRow4_2: 
	CostRow4_2: 
	NamePositionRow5_2: 
	ComputationRow5_2: 
	CostRow5_2: 
	NamePositionRow6_2: 
	ComputationRow6_2: 
	CostRow6_2: 
	NamePositionRow7: 
	ComputationRow7: 
	CostRow7: 
	NamePositionRow8: 
	ComputationRow8: 
	CostRow8: 
	NamePositionRow9: 
	ComputationRow9: 
	CostRow9: 
	NamePositionRow10: 
	ComputationRow10: 
	CostRow10: 
	NamePositionRow11: 
	ComputationRow11: 
	CostRow11: 
	NamePositionRow12: 
	ComputationRow12: 
	CostRow12: 
	NamePositionRow13: 
	ComputationRow13: 
	CostRow13: 
	NamePositionRow14: 
	ComputationRow14: 
	CostRow14: 
	NamePositionRow15: 
	ComputationRow15: 
	CostRow15: 
	NamePositionRow16: 
	ComputationRow16: 
	CostRow16: 
	NamePositionRow17: 
	ComputationRow17: 
	CostRow17: 
	CostTOTAL FRINGE: 11131.32
	FRINGE NARRATIVE: Total Fringe Benefits of 28% includes: Group Health/Dental/ Life 15.9%, 401K Match 2.0%, Retirement 1.6%, FICA/Workers Comp/Unemployment 8.3%, Other .2%
	Purpose of TravelRow1: 
	LocationRow1: 
	ItemRow1: 
	ComputationRow1_3: 
	CostRow1_3: 
	Purpose of TravelRow2: 
	LocationRow2: 
	ItemRow2: 
	ComputationRow2_3: 
	CostRow2_3: 
	Purpose of TravelRow3: 
	LocationRow3: 
	ItemRow3: 
	ComputationRow3_3: 
	CostRow3_3: 
	CostTOTAL TRAVEL: 0
	TRAVEL NARATIVE: 
	Supply ItemRow1: 
	ComputationRow1_4: 
	CostRow1_4: 
	Supply ItemRow2: 
	ComputationRow2_4: 
	CostRow2_4: 
	Supply ItemRow3: 
	ComputationRow3_4: 
	CostRow3_4: 
	Supply ItemRow4: 
	ComputationRow4_3: 
	CostRow4_3: 
	Supply ItemRow5: 
	ComputationRow5_3: 
	CostRow5_3: 
	Supply ItemRow6: 
	ComputationRow6_3: 
	CostRow6_3: 
	CostTOTAL SUPPLIES: 0
	SUPPLY NARRATIVE: 
	ItemRow1_2: Indirect Costs
	ComputationRow1_5: $39,754.73*.2895
	CostRow1_5: 14731.51
	ItemRow2_2: 
	ComputationRow2_5: 
	CostRow2_5: 
	ItemRow3_2: 
	ComputationRow3_5: 
	CostRow3_5: 
	ItemRow4: 
	ComputationRow4_4: 
	CostRow4_4: 
	ItemRow5: 
	ComputationRow5_4: 
	CostRow5_4: 
	CostTotalOTHER: 14731.51
	OTHER COSTS NARRATIVE: Rosecrance has a Federally Negotiated Indirect Cost Rate Agreement. Current overhead rate is 28.95%


